
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.   

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                              Mayor Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Goss, Council Member Arizmendi, 

Council Member Delmar, and Council Member Harabedian 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT                                       Regarding Closed Session Items 

 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING: 

 

PERSONNEL 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54957 

Public Employee Performance Evaluation      Title: City Manager 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54957.6 

City Negotiators: City Manager Elaine Aguilar and Assistant City Manager Elisa Cox 

Employee Organization: Police Association 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: 

Anticipated Litigation Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section G.C 54956.9d(2)  

 

Number of Potential Cases:  1 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, February 23, 2016 

 

Closed Session 5:30 pm / Open Session 6:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 John Capoccia, Mayor  

Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

Denise Delmar, Council Member 

John Harabedian, Council Member 

 

Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk  

Richard Mays, City Treasurer 



 

OPEN  SESSION 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Goss,  

Council Members Arizmendi, Delmar, and Harabedian 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Mayor John Capoccia 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION  

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council 

meeting on February 9, 2016. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Council Member activities relating to City business. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 

 

PRESENTATION   Update from Public Works Director Inman regarding 

water conservation and the City’s Water Quality Report 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 16-12 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 16-12 for approval of payment of City 

Warrants in aggregate amount of $216,606.44; Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $4,257.38, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $295,963.81 

for fiscal year ending June 2016. 

 

 b) AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN CENIC 

AGREEMENT FOR INCREASED 

BROADBAND FOR SIERRA MADRE 

PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council authorize the 

City Manager to execute the agreement between the 

Sierra Madre Public Library and Califa for the provision 

installment and maintenance of Advanced Network 

(Data) Services. 

 
 c) CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED 

EXCHANGE OF $196,515 IN 

FEDERAL SURFACE 

TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM-

LOCAL (STP-I) HIGHWAY FUNDS 

WITH METRO FOR $192,584.70 IN 

LOCAL HIGHWAY FUNDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve the 

exchange of $196,515 in Federal Surface Transportation 

– local funds with Los Angeles METRO for an amount 

of $192,584.70 in local highway funds and direct staff 

to send a letter to METRO authorizing the exchange. 

 

 d) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 

16-14 APPROVING THE RENEWAL 

OF GENERAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH LOS ANGELES 

COUNTY 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 16-14 approving the General Services 

Agreement between the City of Sierra Madre and 

the County of Los Angeles and authorize the 

Mayor to execute that agreement 

 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706128
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706128
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706126
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706126
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706126
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706126
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706124
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706124
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706124
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706124
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706122
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706122
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706122
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706122
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706122
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706122
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706122
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706120
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706120
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706120
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706120
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706120


 ITEMS FOR DISUSSION 

 

  

2. COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 

REPORT (CAFR) FOR FISCAL YEAR 

ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council receive and file. 

 

3. TEMPORARY SUPPLEMENTAL POLICE 

SERVICES FOR NIGHTTIME PATROL 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve the 

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Agreement 

that provides Los Angeles Sheriff Department to 

provide temporary nighttime patrol services beginning 

February 28, 2016 and approve the necessary funding in 

the amount of $400,000 from General Fund Reserves. 

 

4. DISCUSSION  REGARDING 

CONSOLIDATED ELECTION  

FOR THE “STOP THE UTILITY USERS 

TAX” MEASURE 

 Recommendation that the City Council provide staff 

with direction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

The appellant and/or applicant will each be provided a total of ten (10) minutes to address their item.  

A portion of their allotted time may be reserved for rebuttal or a summary conclusion at the close of 

public comment.  All other speakers will be limited to a total of three continuous minutes, which 

cannot be delegated.   

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Regular Meeting at this same place on Tuesday, March 8, 2016 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706117
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706117
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706117
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706115
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706115
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706113
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706113
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706113
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=2706113
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Agenda 
Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council, 

Successor Agency and Public Finance Authority 
Tuesday, February 9, 2016 

Closed Session: 5:30 p.m.; Open Session: 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

  
Mayor, John Capoccia, opened the Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council, Successor Agency, and Public 
Finance Authority at 5:30 p.m.  The Mayor asked for public comment and there was none so the Mayor 
immediately adjourned to a Closed Session.  The City Council returned from Closed Session at 6:40 p.m. and the 
Mayor opened the Open Session at 6:42 p.m.  City Clerk, Nancy Sue Shollenberger, read the Roll noting that all City 
Council Members were present. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
 
Present:  John Capoccia, Mayor; Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem, Council Members 
   Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar and John Harabedian 
 
Absent:  None 
 
Also Present:  Elaine Aguilar, City Manager 
   Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 
   Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation 
   Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works 
   Larry Giannone, Public Safety Director 
   Joe Ortiz, Captain, Sierra Madre Police Department 
   Elisa C. Cox, Assistant City Manager 
   Steve Heydorff, Fire Chief 
   Antoinette Buckner, Interim Director of the Library 
   Marcie Medina, Finance Director 
   James Carlson, Management Analyst 
   Nancy Sue Shollenberger, City Clerk 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION: 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, led the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with the following quote in memory 
of Washington’s birthday. 
 

“The marvel of all history is the patience with which men and women submit to burdens unnecessarily 
laid upon them by their governments.” 
 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Teresa Highsmith, announced that the City Council held a Closed Session this evening to discuss the following: 
 
Conference with Labor Negotiator 
Pursuant to Calif. Government code Section 54957.6 
City Negotiators:  City Manager Elaine Aguilar and Assistant City Manager Elisa Cox 
Employee Organization:  Police Officer’s Association 
 
The City Attorney reported that direction was given to labor negotiator, but no action was taken. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 2 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
Personnel 
Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54957 
Public Employee Performance Evaluation.  Title:  City Manager 
 
The City Attorney reported that the City Council did not have time to discuss this item in Closed Session, and would 
be meeting again after the Open Session this evening. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise Delmar, for approval of 
the Agenda as presented.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JANUARY 26, 2016: 
 
City Manager, Elaine Aguilar,  reported that staff has some changes to the Minutes and Mr. Inman would be giving 
them to the City Clerk. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, moved and it was seconded by Council Member, John Harabedian, for 
approval of the Minutes of January 26, 2016 as amended by staff.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Mr. Inman made changes to Item 4) Consideration of a Community Request for Installation of a four-way stop at 
the intersection of East Highland Avenue and North Mountain Trail and direct staff to develop a Code Amendment 
adopting the current California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  The City Clerk made the changes 
requested by Mr. Inman. 
 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
1). Council Member, Denise Delmar, announced that she and Mayor Capoccia attended a meeting with 

Independent Cities regarding CalPERS, etc.  It was a very educational meeting.  They are working on new 
formulas, and AB bills were discussed.  With regard to crime in cities – we have to look at staffing of the 
Police Department. 

 
2). Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, congratulated Clem and Nina Bartolai on their  Citizens of Year 
award. 
 
3). Council Member, John Harabedian, did not have a report. 
 
4). Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem, also wanted everyone to know that the Dinner honoring Clem and Nina 

Bartolai was packed.  They are a very deserving couple as Citizens of the Year. 
 
5). John Capoccia, Mayor, also wanted to remark about the conference in Santa Barbara.  AB 109 and Prop. 

47 which is releasing criminals on the street.  The Probation Department does a risk assessment.    Low 
risk is 5% of the people; Medium risk is 35%, Higher risk is 60%.  It is a threat in our cities.  We need to 
fight this.  Prop 47 makes it no longer a felony of grand theft if less than $950.00 – our law enforcement 
officials refer to this as “Catch & Release”. 

 



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 3 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
George Gardner, St. Rita’s 8

th
 Grade class. 

 
Mr. Gardner was present this evening to thank the City Council for their support of schools.  Thank you for 
serving the people of Sierra Madre.  He followed by presenting cookies to the City Council. 

 
Debbie Sheridan 
 

Good evening Council Members.  You are faced with the demanding task of trying to balance the budget, 
with or without the passage of the UUT.  Please do NOT consider reducing the pay of the City Clerk, as has 
been suggested.  The City Clerk is the backbone of Sierra Madre.  We citizens hear about how we must 
pay our City staff and our Police Force a competitive wage to get and retain high caliber employees.  The 
City Council minutes are the legal document of the city.  We’ve been extremely fortunate to have Nancy 
Shollenberger as our City Clerk for 32 years.  When I was Deputy City Clerk, it took me a week to 
transcribe the minutes the two times I was called upon to make sure they were correct.  From 2004-2008 
the City Council gave this task to staff.  The residents complained because routinely the staff was four 
months behind in preparing and presenting the minutes for City Council approval, and demanded the 
return of Nancy Shollenberger.  The City Clerk is responsible for our elections.  She must attend classes 
and briefings before all elections – city, county, state, federal and special elections. She must maintain the 
integrity of our system.  Our City Clerk’s position does not earn as much as those in nearby towns.  Even 
though the City Clerk does staff work, she does NOT get the benefits that staff does, and will get nothing 
when she retires in April.  Sierra Madre has been lucky to have Nancy Shollenberger as our City Clerk, and 
we must value the position.  We are getting quite a bargain. 

 
Mayor Capoccia closed public comment portion. 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1). CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the following report under the Consent Calendar: 
 
1a). WARRANTS - RESOLUTION NO. 16-11 
 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 16-11 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS”, and approval for payment City Warrants in the 
aggregate amount of $256,710.65; Sierra Madre Library Warrants in aggregate amount of $710.18 and 
Payroll Transfer in the aggregate amount of $305,938.01 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 

 
1b). SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 1375 
 

On January 26, 2016, the City Council introduced for first reading Ordinance No. 1375 amending Title 17, 
Chapter 17.20 (One Family Residential Zoning Ordinance), Chapter 17.48 (Development Standards 
Ordinance), and Chapter 17.60 (Variances and Conditional Use Permits). 



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 4 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
  

The changes include revisions to the conditional use permit findings, minor conditional use permit 
noticing requirements, clarification of prevailing front yard setback requirements, specifying chimneys as 
a permitted encroachment into the angle plane setback requirement, establishment of a maximum 
allowable height for chimneys, elimination of flag lots and exclusive access easements on newly created 
or reconfigured lots, and elimination of the modified front yard setback for cul-de-sacs. 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and approve for second reading by title only, and waive 
further reading, Ordinance No. 1375 “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL O FTHE CITY OF SIERRA 
MADRE, CALIFORNIA EMNDING TITLE 17 (“ZONING”) OF THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE BY 
AMENDING CHAPTER 17.20 (“R-1 ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL”), SECTION 17.20.053 (“ANGLE PLANE”), 
SUBSECTION 17.20.050.A.2 (“FRONT YARD SETBACKS GREATER THAN 25 FEET”), AND ADDING SECTION 
17.20.115 (“FLAG LOTS PROHIBITED”), AMENDING CHAPTER 17.48 (“DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS”),  
SECTION 17.48.020 (“HEIGHT OF PENTHOUSES AND ROOF STRUCTURES”) AND REPEALING SECTION 
17.48.080 (“VARIANCES AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS”) SECTION 17.60.040 (“CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMITS – BURDEN OF PROOF”) SECTION 17.60.041 (“ADDITIONAL BURDEN OF PROOF FOR PERMITS FOR 
SINGLE-FAMILY HOUSES AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 17.20.025”) AND SUBSECTION 17.60.055.b (“PUBLIC 
NOTICE”).  and designate the City Attorney to prepare a summary of Ordinance No. 1375 pursuant to 
Government Code Section 36933©(1).  A lean copy of Ordinance No. 1375 was attached to the Agenda as 
Exhibit A.  A redline version representing the changes to Ordinance No. 1375 was also included as Exhibit 
B in the Agenda. 

 
1c). CANCELLATION OF APRIL 12, 2016 CITY COUNCIL MEETING. 
 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the cancellation of the April 12, 2016 City Council 
meeting and direct staff to pay all necessary expenses during that time. 

 
Sierra Mare Municipal Code Section 2.04.010 requires that meetings of the City Council shall be held at 
6:30 p.m. on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each calendar month unless and until the City Council 
establishes another regular meeting time by resolution.  This year, the municipal election falls on the 
same date as the April 12

th
 City Council meeting.  Because the Council Chambers is used to conduct 

election related activities on Election Day, it is recommended that the regular City Council meeting be 
cancelled.  Currently only one item is scheduled for the April 12

th
 Council meeting; the warrant register. 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, moved and it was seconded by Council Member, John Harabedian,  for approval of the 
Consent Calendar as presented by staff.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 5 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
 
2). CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A MAP AMENDMENT MODIFYING CONDITIONS OF 

APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 15-01 FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCENTIVES AND A TENTATIVE 
PARCEL MAP FOR THE ADAPTIVE REUSE AND RENOVATION OF THE PROPERTY AT 186 WEST HIGHLAND 
AVENUE 

 
Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation, gave the staff report. 

 
Mr. Gonzalez followed with a slide presentation, On July 28, 2015, the City Council approved entitlements 
designating the former First Church of Christ Scientist building located at 186 W. Highland Avenue as a 
Historic Cultural Landmark, approved a Mills Act Contract, Certificate of Appropriateness 15-02, 
Affordable Housing Incentives, and Tentative Parcel Map 15-01. 

 
The applicant HHP-HIGHLAND< LLC acquired the building from the City of Sierra Madre Housing Successor 
agency to adaptively reuse the structure to build an affordable ownership project that will consist of three 
townhouse style units. 

 
Since receiving entitlement approvals, the applicant has obtained construction bids, which exceed 
anticipated building construction costs.  In order to address budget constraints the applicant is requesting 
to amend a Public Works condition of approval, requiring the replacement of the sidewalk on North 
Hermosa Avenue and West Highland Avenue and all damaged curbs and gutters.  The Public Works 
condition also requests that the sidewalk along West Highland Avenue shall take a meandering alignment 
within the parkway. 
 
The applicant’s response is that the sidewalk along both Hermosa Avenue and Highland Avenue are in 
excellent condition and do not require replacement.  The applicant agrees to repair the sidewalks, 
driveway approaches and curb and gutter if damage occurs during construction, but not a total 
replacement.  The applicant also requests an exemption from the requirement to provide a meandering 
sidewalk along Highland  
Avenue, stating that a meandering sidewalk is not in character with the historic structure and setting.  The 
construction estimate to replace the existing driveway approaches, all sidewalk and all damaged curb and 
gutter on the perimeter of the project site including the meandering sidewalk on Wet Highland is $25,000. 
 
The applicant agrees to remove the existing brick pavers in the parkways on both street frontages and 
replace the brick with decomposed granite and drought-tolerant plantings, as required by a landscape 
condition of approval noted during plan check review. 
 
The remaining standard “boiler plate” Public Works Conditions of Approval attached to the Agenda as 
Exhibit A do not apply or are in conformance to the proposed project as noted below: 
 
Condition 1: Prior to or concurrent with submittal of building construction plans for plan check, 
submit a drainage plan and hydrology study as required by the Director of Public Works.  All standard 
SUSMP requirements apply to this project as does the current NPDES Permit for Los Angeles County (in-
conformance). 

 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 6 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 

Condition 4:  Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy, comply with the requirements of the City’s 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (SMMC 15.60) (in-conformance). 
 
Condition 5.  Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy, comply with all provisions of the City’s Tree 
Protection Ordinance (SMMC 12.20). (in-conformance). 
 
Condition 7.  Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy, comply with the recommendations and 
mitigation measures issued by the Energy, Environment, and Natural Resources Commission included 
herein by reference (Condition has been met). 
 
Mr. Gonzalez reviewed he Parcel Map 15-01 for Condominium purposes.  Staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission confirm the findings and Conditions of Approval which were attached to Resolution 
No. 16-09, Exhibit A and approve Tentative Parcel Map No. 15-01. 
 
Direct cost to the City and Agency includes the transfer of ownership of property estimated at $230,000, 
and the waiver of Development Impact Fees totaling $66,105.  All other application and permit fees apply. 
 
Alternatives: 
 
1. The City Council can APPROVE the applicant’s request based on the staff report prepared for the 

project. 
2. The City Council can DENY the application, identifying the findings that the Council feels cannot be 

made and the basis for rejecting those findings. 
3. The City Council can CONTINUE the project for further analysis. 
 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council reaffirm the findings and approve Resolution No. 16-09 “A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF 
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 16-01 FOR A CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT TO CONVERT THE EXISTING FIRST 
CHURCH OF CHRIST SCIENTIST FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS AT 
186 WEST HIGHLAND AVENUE AND RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
INCENTIVES”,  reinstate the prior approval for the use of affordable housing incentives and Tentative 
Parcel Map 15-01, and amend Public Works condition of approval omitting the requirement to provide a 
meandering sidewalk along Highland Avenue and a new sidewalk along Hermosa Avenue.. 

 
 The staff is revising the Public Works Condition 2 as follows: 
 

“Prior to Certificate of Occupancy, repair all damaged sidewalks, prepare curb and gutter along 
North Hermosa Avenue and West Highland Avenue if damaged during construction, remove 
bricks and replace with gravel or decomposed permeable granite material and landscape”. 

 
Mr. Gonzalez announced that Bob Spears from the Planning Commission was present if the City Council 
had additional questions. 

 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 7 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
Mayor Capoccia announced that he walked the area and the sidewalk on the west side – there are two cracks that 
run through the sidewalk.  It will look shabby if not replaced. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez noted that during construction there could be more damage. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, remarked that his issue is that this seems to be budget driven.  The project is 
costing more than expected.  There are budgetary setbacks.  Does staff think we should alter the project to 
compensate for these costs? 
 
Mr. Gonzalez stated, “Construction price is tight”. 
 
Tim Sales, Heritage Housing Partners 
 

Mr. Sales stated that they want to do a quality project.  The new standards in the City is to do meandering 
sidewalks.  We would keep historic setting.  We want relief from the meandering requirement at least, as 
it is not historic.  We take pride in doing a good job.  We feel that 80% of the sidewalk is in good shape, 
and we can restore or repair any damaged parts rather than to replace the whole sidewalk. 

 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public comment and there was none so he closed it right away. 
 
 The City Council revealed that they received a letter from John Hutt, a member of the Planning Commission. 
 
Mayor Capoccia suggested getting rid of the requirement for a meandering configuration for the sidewalk.  The 
bricks look shabby.  Put something more permeable in there.  I would like to replace with all straight sidewalks. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, stated that he agrees it is a great project.  When we considered the project we 
made concessions.  We waived the $60,000 fees.  Now you want to cut costs.  The project would benefit by 
replacing the sidewalks.   I hope Heritage Partners would replace the sidewalks. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, asked how expensive would it be?  We have gone the extra mile on this project. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, concurs with what has been said.  It costs less for straight sidewalks, but still 
prefers total replacement. 
 
Council Member Delmar agrees with all that has been said. 
 
Mayor Capoccia questioned the replacement of the handicapped curb cut if it is damaged. 
 
City Attorney, Teresa Highsmith, suggested the following wording for Condition 2: 
 

“Prior to Certificate of Occupancy, replace the sidewalk, repair curb and gutter along North Hermosa 
Avenue and West Highland Avenue if damaged during construction; remove brick and replace with gravel, 
decomposed granite or equivalent permeable materials and landscape with drought tolerant plants.” 

 
 
Mr. Inman feels that decomposed granite does work or an equivalent.  Sierra Place condos have firm surface to 
step out of vehicles. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 8 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
Council Member, John Harabedian moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, for 
approval of the changes suggested by the City Attorney, as noted above.  The motion passed by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 
 
3). APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION DENYING A REQUEST FOR A CONDTIONAL USE PERMIT TO 

ALLOW A NEW TWO-STORY, 1,322 SQUARE FOOT RECREATION BUILDING AND ALSO ALLOW IT TO 
ENCROACH INTO THE REQUIRED SIDE YARD SETBACK ALONG THE EASTERN PROPERTY LINE BY NO MORE 
THAN 10 PERCENT, ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 156 W. HIGHLAND AVENUE. 

 
Mayor, John Capoccia, and Council Member, Denise Delmar, recused themselves from discussion of this item due 
to their proximity of the project.  They left the room. 
 

Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation, gave the staff report. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez presented a slide presentation, with the following Project Summary: 
 

 Appeal of Planning Commission decision denying a request for a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP 15-24) for a new two-tory recreation and exercise room and to allow the building 
to encroach into the required side yard setback along the eastern property line. 

 The building was constructed without prior building or zoning approvals. 

 De Novo Hearing 

 Evaluation of conceptual plans to determine conformance with the R-3 Multiple Family 
Residential Standards. 

 Determine that the application complies with the Conditional Use Permit findings to 
approve or deny the application. 

 Not evaluating the project according to the structural integrity of the existing building 
constructed without building permits. 

 
The Applicant is requesting the following: 
 

 The applicant is requesting approval of a conditional use permit to allow a 2-story, 1,322 
sq. ft. structure recently built without permits to be used as a Recreation & Exercise 
building on an R-3 Zoned property developed with three existing dwelling units. 

 The applicant is requesting to approve the bathrooms as originally designed. 

 The applicant did not appeal the Commission’s decision to deny the request.  At the 
Planning Commission meeting, the applicant stated that he would be willing to modify 
the building to comply with the required side-yard setback, should the Council approve 
the project. 

 If approved, the City would need a covenant. 
 
The issue before the City Council is an appeal of the Planning Commission decision denying a request for 
Conditional Use Permit 15-24 (CUP 15-24) to allow a new two-story, 1,322 square foot recreation/exercise 
building, and to also allow it to encroach into the required side yard setback along the eastern property 
line by no more than 10 percent, on the property located at 156 W. Highland Avenue.  Pursuant to SMMC 
17.60.030.G, a conditional use permit is required for all developments in the R-3 Zone. 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 9 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
The Planning Commission denied CUP 11-05 at its November 19, 2015 meeting.  This report provides 
background on the proposed project, the basis for the Planning Commission denial, and the basis for the 
applicant’s appeal to the City Council. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council deny the appeal and uphold the decision of the Planning 
Commission to deny CUP 15-24.  Resolution No. 16-10 is attached to the Agenda for the City Council’s 
consideration. 

 
Mr. Gonzalez remarked that the project can work as a recreation space.  When staff reviewed, the project at the 
Planning Commission level, staff did not consider it as if the building had not been built and so didn’t look at open 
space that surrounded the property.  Staff changed the recommendation at the appeal level because there was 
adequate space for a recreational project which does not encroach and could have been sited differently. 
 
Council Member Harabedian asked if the City Council is supposed to consider outside recreational space as 
equivalent to indoor recreational space? 
 
Mr. Gonzalez stated that if the project complies with the zoning, it can be indoor recreation space. 
 
Council Member Harabedian noted that lot coverage is the issue.  A big part of the application or required findings 
is whether there is a need for this?  There is plenty of outside space.  If it rains, is indoor different than outside 
space?  Does the Code make a distinction? 
 
Mr. Gonzalez stated, no, the code does not make a distinction between indoor and outdoor recreational space. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that both the staff and Planning Commission stated that a CUP is 
required for R-3 zone. 
 
City Manager, Elaine Aguilar, stated that one distinguishing factor is that when the staff reviewed this project, the 
building was already there.  Staff looked at existing building, but staff  would not have recommended a site plan 
with the building as it is. 
 
Council Member Harabedian stated that if we are to consider the project, we need to consider it as if it was not 
built.  Did the staff have a suggestion on a better spot?  The Planning Commission would not have put the building 
where it is. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez stated that there was sufficient space on the lot that it should have been able to be compliant within 
setback requirements. 
 
Council Member Harabedian questioned if we are talking substantial change in moving it out of the setback? 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that the project was not built as a recreation concept. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez stated that the use changed after Code Enforcement red tagged the project.  When applicant applied 
for CUP, they removed the kitchen and bathrooms and changed its use to “recreation”.  Because that is the only 
use that can be made under the code.  Mr. Steve Salisian, owner of the property, is present to answer questions. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated, “How could you begin a process like this without permits?”  What do you plan 
to use as recreation? 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 10 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
Mr. Salisian stated that the original building was falling apart.  I am not familiar with building process.  I never 
worked with architects before.  This has been a good learning experience.  When I couldn’t live there, I could have 
a studio and office.  The family visits, and we needed a larger room.  I didn’t know about parking requirements.   A 
recreation area doesn’t require parking.  It is an awesome property.  I would like to apologize.  The project has 
been going on since June 2014.  It has been very stressful.  Friends have helped me. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss asked if the two-story building impeded anyone’s view? 
 
Mr. Gonzalez stated that the building doesn’t impede anyone’s view. 
 
City Attorney, Teresa Highsmith, stated that the City Council needs to review this as though the building was not 
there.  There was a lot of discussion at the Planning Commission about the fact that the building was constructed 
without review or permits, and the comment was made that this is a case of it being better to ask for forgiveness 
than permission.  Although the structure was originally built as a residence, there are already three existing house 
on the property and the lot is too small to allow a fourth residence.  If there had been a site plan, this would have 
been caught.  The property is also under-parked.  The only way for the applicant to use this structure as a 
residence would be to tear down one of the smaller existing structures and use the space for parking.  As a 
recreational use, the siting was not what the Planning Commission would have approved and they did not feel they 
had sufficient information to alter the design. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss asked Mr. Bob Spears from the Planning Commission to speak. 
 
Bob Spears, Planning Commission 
 

Mr. Spears stated that the Planning Commission was asked to approve, but there were encroachments.  
There is lots of room in back of the lot.  Why did they need this building.  The applicant made no attempt 
to explain why they needed the building.  It is difficult to know now what would be accepted.  The 
Planning Commission makes sure applications comply with General Plan and are built in compliance with 
the zoning code. 

 
Council Member, John Harabedian, asked Mr. Spears where he would have put the building -  the east side or a 
little west. 
 
Mr. Spears stated a little bit to west and south.  But there was no reason shown by the applicant why a recreation 
building needed a bathroom and storage area.  There was no public notice on the 2

nd
 story configuration.  We 

were confused and the applicant did not make a good case that he needed this recreation area. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss opened for public comment. 
 
De Alcorn, E. Grand View 
 

Mr. Alcorn stated, “On the surface, this stinks”.  His father is a contractor.  There is inadequate parking.  If 
this project is approved, there will be a kitchen.  I don’t see how you can approve. 

 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 11 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
Burt Fair, Pasadena (Development Company) 
 Mr. Fair works with a development company and he agrees this should not have happened. Somewhere 
in the framing foundation, etc. it would have been better for everyone if this project would have come to the City.  
The building is there now, and you need to figure out a way to solve a bad problem.  There is nothing saying you 
can’t have a recreation area.  The 2

nd
 story doesn’t have windows.  This is an R-3 zone.  The General Plan does talk 

to these issues.  Does it infringe on properties.  To be honest, staff presented a good direction to go.  What needs 
done to building to get approval.  It is going to cost a lot to correct.  Correct the building and find a solution.  Work 
out conditions able to make it work.  It was through a friend that I was asked to assist and help a friend out.  I am 
receiving no pay. 
 
Joe Catalano, N. Lima 

Mr. Catalano announced that he is a licensed architect.  I want to add my objection to people violating.  I 
wanted to voice my objection to the way it is going about.  The building is already built, shape could 
change.  If recreation building, why the shape it is now.  It could be reshaped.  Regardless, this is 
interesting.  We are backing into this, if you go forward with this at the Planning level, we did not address 
building and safety – without permits, no inspector, construction is covered up.  How can you reverse 
engineer a situation like this.  How does building official react?  There are options of placement on 
property. 

 
Debbie Sheridan 

Ms. Sheridan stated that the attorney noted that you need to address the building as though it was not 
there.  If you approve, what precedent does it set? 

 
Robert Salisian, Part Owner of Property 

Mr. Salisian stated that he lives in the front house.  I have helped fund this project.  I feel like I should 
have put an end to it, but I will benefit from it.  We have a small family, our house is small.  We felt the 
extra room could be used for our family.  Our family enjoys each other.  I went into major debt for this 
project.  I am just a partner in name.  It has been very stressful.  We have family problems.  I apologize for 
what has happened.  We love living here. 

 
Barry Gold, Ramona Avenue 

Mr. Gold stated that he was at the Planning Commission when this was agendized.  He was impressed 
with the discussion.  The Planning Commission made the right decision.  I agree with them. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss closed public input portion. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, thanked all the speakers.  I watched the Planning Commission meeting.  The 
Planning Commission had excellent questions.  I reviewed the six findings.  Encroachment issue – setback is not 
grievous.  There are no windows on the second floor.  I think what we haven’t heard is from a neighbor.  I talked 
with a neighbor and he was happy with the project.  I looked at encroachment, it is not in a perfect place, but given 
where it is, east of it, not a horrible place.  Maybe a few feet would have been better, but at this stage, I could 
makethe six findings.   The property would be enhanced with the recreation room.  Considering permits, the 
property is sound.  I don’t like, but don’t feel it sets a precedent.  What we want are reasonable projects.  The 
residents live here.  The end result is that I feel the project is okay.  Planning Commissioner, John Hutt, noted that 
the City can increase the amount of CUP fees when done after the fact, and other fees.  Put aside and consider on 
merits of projects.  If we deny, is it punitive, should we award CUP?  If deny, we are asking them to demolish and 
maybe come back.  We are missing the point of CUP.  The building fits in.  Are they safe?  If approve CUP, the 
building inspector will come in and inspect. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 12 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
The City Attorney stated, that is correct – the building would need to pass building inspection.  The structure is 
close to the property line.  There may need to be changes to the structure and siting.  You could remand to 
Planning Commission.  Whatever decision you make, the City Council must be unanimous because it takes three 
votes to approve legislation.. 
 
Council Member Harabedian remarked about the safety of the building – that needs to be worked out.  If we deny, 
we could talk to the applicant on moving the building, consider soft landing.  I think standing here today, I am fine 
with it.  Maybe make changes on encroachment.  
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that originally, I was insulted.  It is hard for me to understand how 
anyone could construct an entire building without permits.  Looking at merits itself, it doesn’t meet our 
requirements.  Setting precedent is the consequence of allowing someone to proceed this way.  The Planning 
Commission did a thorough job.  I would deny the CUP. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that he came to the meeting this evening straddling the fence.  My bias is to 
make families whole.  Most of the findings can be made.  I believe in rules.  In 2009 and 2010 we went through 
plans and fees.   It was expensive.  I have compassion to affected family.  The public interest is a concern.  It is 
pretty obvious that the project was not designed for a recreation area.  It is with a heavy heart that I have to follow 
the Planning Commission’s decision. 
 
City Attorney Highsmith stated that before you take a vote, the applicant did say he would be willing to make 
changes.  You could remand to Planning Commission and see if he can work with Planning Commission to see if the 
project can be better sited.  The encroachment wall is too close to the property line and must be a fire wall with no 
windows.  So the structure would have to undergo some alterations.  Maybe there are some alterations that could 
be made to the structure in order to salvage the building. 
 
Council Member Harabedian stated that he is open to that. 
 
Robert Spears, Member of Planning Commission 
 

Mr. Spears stated that the project was brought to the Planning Commission as a recreational building. It 
could not be a rental.  Nothing came before us that they needed to exercise.  There are parking concerns.  
There are lots of problems that we could not address.  A recreational building is all that they could do.  
There are no disabilities. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss asked if the building could meet recreational? 
 
Mr. Spears stated that we can only comment on what we have.  I can’t comment on hypothetical issues.  I want 
our residents to be safe. 
 
Council Member Harabedian stated that proper inspections will be done.  If remanded to the Planning 
Commission, there could be a workable solution.  Show me something and I will comment. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, moved to deny the CUP as recommended by the Planning Commission and 
uphold the Planning Commission’s decision.  Mayor Pro Tem Goss seconded the motion, but expressed that he 
wanted relief for the applicant. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 13 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
Council Member, John Harabedian stated that it is not ruled out, that there is probably a way to work around this.  
Why do now and entertain option of soft landing. Why not give the applicant an opportunity.  If Planning 
Commission slays not workable, there was two Planning Commissioners who wanted to deal with it, to allow the 
building to transform.  Rather than tear down, give them the opportunity. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss asked if the building could be changed into recreational building.  It doesn’t work the way it is 
built. 
 
The City Attorney stated that the Planning Commission, articulated by Robert Spears, noted that the Planning 
Commission can’t design a building for the applicant.  The applicant needs to return with a new design.  If you deny 
tonight the applicant can go back to the Planning Commission with a new application, different from current 
design.  The applicant could tear down one of the smaller existing residential buildings, and create parking and 
possibly keep the new structure. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss stated that the way the staff presented the project to the City Council tonight, it is not a 
recreational building.  Let’s send it back to the Planning Commission. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, asked that if it goes back to the Planning Commission, what is the Appeal fee? 
 
The City Attorney stated that there will be an appeal fee because it takes staff time. 
 
Upon voice vote of the City Council, the motion passed 2-1 to deny the appeal with Council Member, John 
Harabedian voting no. 
 
The City Attorney stated that because there were not three votes on the appeal, the Planning Commission denial 
stands, and is the final decision. 
 
BREAK:  The City Council requested a break at 8:42 and the City Council reconvened at 8:50. 
 
4). CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 16-02, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERA 

MADRE ESTABLISHING FEES FOR CITY PLAN CHECK, PERMITTING, AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR WATR 
EFFICIENT LANDSCAPES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016. 

 
 Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works, gave the staff report. 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council hold a Public Hearing and adopt Resolution 16-02, setting plan 
check, permit, and inspection fees in conjunction with the Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance adopted 
January 26, 2016. 

 
On January 26

th
 the City Council adopted Ordinance 1374 replacing the previous Water Efficient 

Landscape Ordinance (WELO) with a new WELO designed to be consistent with the State’s 2015 Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.  In order to implement the new ordinance, it is necessary to 
establish a fee for the review and approval of the plans that will be required for each project and a fee to 
cover permit issuance and field inspection of the project to ensure compliance with the approved plan. 

 
Resolution No. 16-02 establishes the fees to cover the necessary city services relative to each project.  
Those fees are as follows: 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 14 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 Water Efficient Landscape Plan Check Fee  $ 399.00 

(Includes 3 plana reviews.  Additional reviews, if required, will be charged at hourly rate of $205.00). 
 
 Landscape Permit and Inspection Fee  $ 299.00 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public comment and there was none so he closed it immediately. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, for 
approval of staff’s recommendation as follows:  Staff recommends that the City Council hold a Public Hearing and 
adopt Resolution No. 16-02 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE ESTABLISHING 
FEES FOR CITY PLAN CHECK, PERMITTING, AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPES FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016”, in conjunction with the Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance adopted January26, 2016. 
 
5). ELECTIONS CODE 9212 REPORT – REPORT ANALYZING THE IMPACT OF THE “STOP THE UTILITY USERS’ 

TAX”. 
 
 Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the staff report. 
 

Two Sierra Madre residents, Mr. Earl Richey and Mr. David McMonigle (Proponents) have circulated a 
petition to have an initiative measure entitled, “Stop the Utillity Users’ Tax” placed on the ballot in an 
upcoming election.  On January 12, 2016, the Sierra Madre City Clerk presented her certification to the 
City Council that a sufficient number of valid voter signatures had been collected in order to place the 
initiative measure on the ballot. 

 
At the January 12, 2016 meeting, the City Council referred the initiative to staff for preparation of a “30-
day report” as outlined in Elections Code Section 9212 for an analysis on the impacts and effects of the 
initiative ordinance.  The Council deferred the decision on the date the initiative would go before the 
voters. 

 
The 30-day report has been prepared by City staff and reviewed by the City Attorney.  The analysis 
discusses the impacts and effects of the initiative pursuant to Elections Code Section 9212.  The 30-day 
report is hereby presented on February 9, 2016, within the 30-day time frame. 

 
The analysis discusses the impacts and effects of the initiative.  The financial impact is estimated at a 
$2.5M loss in General Funds.  The analysis discusses the City’s funding sources and the City’s budget.  
There were three basis options to address the revenue loss, the Council could decide to: 

 
1. Take No Action – This requires the use of General Fund Reserves to balance the City’s budget.   This 

option is not sustainable and was not recommended. 
2. Reduce Operating Costs – This requires the reduction of General Fund expenditures by $2.5M.  This is 

the option that Staff used in preparing the report, and two alternatives were examined.  Alternative A 
represents a 25% reduction in General Fund expenditures for all Departments.  Alternative B 
attempts to restore some funding to the Fire Department (but assumes the City-operated Paramedic 
program was discontinued) and restores some funding to Public Works and the Planning 
Departments.  Under both alternatives, it was not possible to continue in-house Police services while 
still maintaining other non-public safety services. 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 15 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
3. Generate Additional Revenue – This alternative required that new revenue enhancement measures 

be implemented, and because most revenue enhancement measures of the magnitude needed to 
generate $21.5M would require voter approval, this alternative option was not evaluated. 

 
Both alternatives in the report result in a significant reduction in staff.  City staff provides City services and 
to achieve a reduction in General Fund expenditures of $2.5M is the equivalent of a 52% reduction in total 
full-time staffing, and more than a 71% reduction in General Fund staffing. 
 
There are some variations in service under the two alternatives.  Depending on the alternative, City Hall 
hours (open to the public) are reduced to approximately 4 hours a day, four days a week, the Planning 
Counter is open approximately 2 hours per day, four days a week; City special events are significantly 
reduced or eliminated.  Police services are contracted to another agency, the Fire Department is staffed 
entirely with part-time staff, and under Alternative B, the City would no longer provide Paramedic services 
(Paramedic services would be returned to the County).  Depending upon the alternative, Public Works 
staffing is reduced such that there would be reduced sidewalk and street repairs an little to no staffing for 
community events.  Lastly, the Library would be open to the public for as much as 50% fewer hours, and 
Library programming would be significantly reduced. 

 
The estimated reduction in FY 2015-2016 General Fund revenues is approximately $1,996,000, and an 
additional $529,527 is needed to balance this fiscal year’s budget.  The General Fund reduction target is 
$2,525,527 to balance the budget.  The analysis presents two alternatives that reach a $2.5M reduction in 
expenditures. 

 
 Alternatives: 

1). The City Council may approve the Elections Code 9212 report, and direct that the initiative be 
placed on the April 10, 2018 ballot, unless the council takes action to schedule a Special Election. 

2). The City Council may modify the Elections Code 9212 report, approve the report, and direct that 
the initiative be placed on the April 10, 2018 ballot, unless the Council takes action to schedule a 
Special Election. 

 
Staff recommends the City Council approve the Elections Code 9212 report, and direct that the 
initiative be placed on the April 10, 2018 ballot, unless the Council takes action to schedule a 
Special Election. 

 
The slide presentation presented by the City Manager is available at City Hall should anyone want a copy. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, wanted the public to know that if the Sheriff’s Department comes to the City, 
they would be stationed in Temple City.  The Police Department building would be closed. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian asked staff what an election, special election would cost? 
 
City Manager stated somewhere between $20,000-$30,000 range. 
 
Council Member Delmar stated that it could not get on the April election. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public comment and there was none.  The Mayor closed it immediately. 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 16 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, stated that the analysis speaks for itself.  When do we put on ballot?  Sooner is 
fairest?  It is fair to the community to be at April or June 2016 election. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, thanked the staff for the report.  I would like to see what other elections we 
will see in June and November.  June is next, maybe we can bear the cost with other entities.  Voters elected to put 
on ballot.  We need to consider costs. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, thanked staff for analysis.  If passes, as far as election, do in June, but then I 
reread the initiative, and we don’t want government money wasted.  Proponents did not ask for a special election.  
But I am willing to go for June election. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, noted that Council Member Delmar’s point is a good point.  My feeling is that this is 
really bad medicine we have to take.  It is a pure waste of $20,000-$30,000.  June is okay with me. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, stated that he doesn’t care and isn’t willing to rush.  Why spend $30,000 for people in left 
field.  They are getting legal help.  We must fight to keep our independence.  I am not rushed to spend $30,000. 
 
The City Manager stated that March 11

th
 is the date to get the resolution to the County for the June Primary. 

 
Mayor Capoccia stated that if we do nothing, it will be scheduled for April 2018. 
 
The City Manager noted that staff can get an estimate to consolidate in June. 
 
Council Member Arizmendi asked staff to get information and cost for a special election.  Otherwise, it will be 
scheduled for April 2018. 
 
The City Attorney stated that the City Council needs to decide “yes or no” to put on April 2018 election.  The five 
members of the City Council agreed on April 2018 election. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, moved and it was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, for approval of 
the Elections Code 9212 report, and direct that the initiative be placed on the April 10, 2018 ballot unless the 
Council takes a later action to schedule for a special election..  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 17 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
6). SIERRA MADRE LAW ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 
 
 Larry Giannone, Public Safety Director, gave the staff report. 
 

The City of Sierra Madre currently has nine full-time vacancies in the Police Department.  This report 
provides information about the current status of police services in the community, timing of the vacancies 
and possible causes, and what the City is doing to recruit new staff.  Information is also provided 
regarding temporary patrol assistance while the City recruits and fills vacant positions in the Police 
Department. 

 
The Sierra Madre Police Department is budgeted for 20-full-time employees, including the Police Chief 
and Captain.  In addition there are several part-time employees who compliment the full-time staff.  Over 
the course of several months eight full-time employees (in addition to one previous vacancy), three part-
time, Community Service Officers, and one part-time Police Officer, have resigned.  There is the possibility 
that the SMPD may lose a few more employees in the upcoming months. 

 
Employees are leaving for a variety of reasons including retirement, opportunity to work for higher paying 
departments, and a perceived lack of job security in light of the scheduled decrease of the Utility Users 
Tax (UUT) and the pending revenue measure on the April ballot. 

 
The timing for most of the resignations coincide with Budget reduction discussions associated with the 
decrease in the UUT and discussions regarding possible service level reductions including the decision to 
further evaluate contracting with the Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department (Phase 2 Review) in 
October 2015.  A chart was provided in the Agenda showing the Primary Titles and Termination Dates of 
employees of the Police Department.  A chart also showed the 2014 Average Police Officer Compensation 
reported to state Controller.  A chart showing cities current recruiting showed a high of $75,670 to a low 
of $53,221 for Police Officers. 
 
The City has hired a part-time retired Police Sergeant to mainly focus on recruiting staff for the Police 
Department.  The City is currently publicly recruiting for Police Recruit.  It should be noted that the City is 
generally not permitted to hire CalPERS retired annuitants.  However, the law has a few exceptions, one 
of which allows the City Council to appoint a retired annuitant for an interim or temporary basis to 
provide extra help during an emergency to prevent stoppage of public business or to perform work of 
limited duration, special projects, and have specialized skills required to perform the needed work.  The 
City’s current staffing shortage in the Police Department qualifies an emergency.  Under this clause the 
City is currently looking for qualified retired Police personnel to temporarily assist while the City recruits 
and trains full-time staff. 
 
The Sierra Madre Police Department is currently policing the City 24 hours a day, seven days a week with 
its current staff.   
 
Staff originally reached out to the Cities of Arcadia and Monrovia to patrol the city from 6:00 p.m. to 6:00 
a.m..  Staff had a tentative agreement with the City of Arcadia, but due to a recent up-tic in burglaries in 
Arcadia and the Arcadia PD not being fully staffed, the Arcadia City Council determined that they needed 
all of their available resources in their city. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 18 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
 
Staff has reached out to the cities of Monrovia, Irwindale, Azusa, South Pasadena, San Gabriel and San 
Marino, and they are all facing Police Department staffing shortages and are unable to provide consistent 
coverage for the City of Sierra Madre.  As of this report, staff is still waiting to hear if the City of Pasadena 
could provide patrol services to the City of Sierra Madre. 
 
Staff has contacted the Los Angeles Sheriff’s Department (LASD), who is well equipped and prepared to 
provide this temporary service to cities in Los Angeles County.  LASD was not staff’s first call as the City 
Council had previously directed staff to work with LASD on a Phase 2 Review, as an alternative service 
provider should the City’s General Fund Revenues decline to the point where the city could no longer 
offer in-house policing services.  As a general business practice it would be better to keep the temporary 
staffing completely separate from the Phase 2 Review; however, the City’s only option may be to have the 
LASD provide the temporary staffing.  LASD is drafting a plan for Sierra Madre’s services along with the 
cost of such services. 
 
Staff anticipates bringing a Supplemental Service Contract for night-time patrol, to the City Council for 
consideration at the February 23, 2016 meeting.  At this time, the contract will most likely be with the 
Sheriff’s Department. 
 
Staff recommends the City Council receive and file this informational report. 

 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, thanked the Police Chief for the report.  There is a police shortage.  I commend 
our officers – they are doing a great job.  We will have dedicate Sheriffs.  I would like to see the contract. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, reported that with the sacrifices, we have full coverage 24/7. 
 
Police Chief Giannone stated that we are here and our staff is sacrificing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss asked the Police Chief to tell the officers we appreciate it.  Council Member Delmar and the 
Mayor discussed their meeting - property crimes apply to us.  We are expecting ore criminals on the street. 
 
Police Chief Giannone noted that transients come through our town.  Residents, please observe “See something, 
say something”, it is very important. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian asked the Police Chief if they heard from the Pasadena Police Department? 
 
Police Chief Giannone stated that we did not get a report for this meeting. 
 
Council Member Harabedian wanted the public to know that we can’t have our Police Chief and Captains working 
the evening shift to maintain coverage. 
 
Police Chief Giannone stated first and foremost, we need night-time coverage.  We need to expedite training and 
recruitment.  We brought back retired officers.  We need staff back in regular mode.  Officers are leaving which 
coincides with Stage 2. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 19 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
Police Chief Giannone reported that Stage 2 brings morale down. 
 
Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager, remarked that Phase 2 is a hindrance.  The officers don’t know if their job will 
exist. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, commended the Police Department and media coverage – we received 
concern.  The schedule now is not sustainable.  My question, we will receive the supplement contract for the 
February 23th City Council Meeting.  We can get through March.  When will Sheriffs come in? 
 
Police Chief Giannone hopes that our Police Department can get through February and the Sheriff will start 
February 28, 2016. 
 
Mayor Capoccia thanked the Police Chief and his Police Department for their commitment. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public comment. 
 
Carol Canterbury 
 

Ms. Canterbury announced that if we say yes to the UUT, we won’t lose our police services?  Right?  
Preserve all services? We lost the pool. 

 
Mayor Capoccia stated that with a 10% UUT, if we can balance the budget, we will see. 
 

Ms. Canterbury feels that the people do not see what is happening.  We don’t want to lose our services.  I 
hope we receive “yes” on UUT. 

 
Mayor Capoccia stated that we are projecting a $1M deficit. 
 
 Ms. Canterbury stated that with regard to the slide show – can we see in other venues? 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar stated that the power point was to show the impact of  No UUT.  A 10% UUT will 
maintain service level. Educational materials will be mailed. 
 

Ms. Canterbury asked if material will be available for the Wistaria Festival on March 13
th

.  We can hand it 
out. 

 
Allen Wolf, Grand View 
 

Mr. Wolf showed the brochure he received in the mail.  Make people aware of the pending disaster. 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated that the City staff cannot take a position on the ballot measure at a community event. 
 
Council Member Delmar stated that there will be two mailers, post cards, and town hall meetings.  We outlined a 
plan. 
 
Council Member Arizmendi stated that historically, you have residents taking positions. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 20 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
Rich Proctor, Citizen and Taxpayer 
 

Mr. Proctor remarked about the importance of supporting the Police and Fire Department.  There is a 
crisis, but we have a great opportunity.  We have something special here.  It is worth saving.  I work in 
Burbank.  Everybody loves Sierra Madre that lives here.  We love everything about it.  What is foundation 
of love – Police and Fire.  We know we are safe.  That is important.  We will affirm our love for this City. 

 
Joan McQuire, San Gabriel 
 

Ms. McQuire remarked that the Library and Fire – what I have learned the last few months – I finally got 
it.  Let people know what is going on.  I have lived here for 33 years.  The Police Department is great and 
needs help.  I want it all – we will work on passing UUT – one-on-one.  We will keep doing it.  I love this 
City.  It is a passionate time, with love and excitement.  Thank you for all you do. 

 
Mayor Capoccia closed public input. 
 
Mayor Capoccia wanted to point out the fact that we pay our Police Officer 20% below other cities.  We are 
currently in negotiations with the Police Association.  The public needs to know we can keep our Police Depart 
with salaries 20% below. 
 
Mayor Capoccia thanked everyone for speaking this evening and remarked that this agenda item is a “receive and 
file”. 
 
 
7). CONSIDERATION OF OPTIONS FOR ACCESSING WATER FROM THE MAIN SAN GABRIEL BASIN. 
 
 Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works, gave the staff report. 
 
 Mr. Inman presented a slide presentation that is available at City Hall. 
 

The October 20, 2015 Strategic Plan lists as a goal “Restore High Quality Water, Supply and 
Independence.”  Under that goal, a stated task is “Recommend to the City Council for Action, Options as 
an Additional source of Water Supply from the Main San Gabriel Basin.”  This report provides that 
recommendation, that the City Council direct staff to proceed with implementation of the Alternative 
actions 2 and 3 as provided in this report, with highest priority given to Alternative 3, construction of a 
new well for the City of Sierra Madre in the Main San Gabriel Groundwater Basin. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 21 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
 

Alternative 1 – Activate Existing System Interconnection 
Activation of the existing system interconnection is the simplest of the the proposed options.  This can 
literally be done at any time with an email to Arcadia city staff by Sierra Madre staff.  This is an informal 
arrangement:  there is no formal, binding agreement in place, no agreed upon price for the water, and it 
cannot provide enough flow (due to system hydraulics) to meet Sierra Madre’s entire demand.  The 
interconnection would be subject to shutdown at any time by Arcadia should their own system demand 
or require them to do so.  Also, there is no clarity as to where the water we receive is actually doming 
from.  Water from Main Basin and the East Raymond Basin can mix within Arcadia’s system; as a result 
water that Sierra Madre receives from the interconnection could consist of East Raymond Basin water.  
While Arcadia could balance that ERB production with Main Basin production, there is no instrument to 
accurately allocate the production between the basins. 
 
Alternative 2 – Share an Existing Well in Main Basin (Camino Real) 
Under Alternate 2, Sierra Madre would purchase a percentage share in an existing Arcadia well.  While a 
determination has not been made which well Sierra Madre would purchase a share of, Arcadia’s Camino 
Real #3 well has been frequently mentioned by Arcadia staff as being the likely selection.  That well was 
built with federal assistance in about 2008.  The well produced 2,394 acre/feet inn 2014-15 according to 
Watermaster Records. 
 
Alternative 3 – Construct New Well in Main Basin 
This alternate assumes that a new well would be created within the Main Basin for Sierra Madre’s 
exclusive use.  The City has requested assistance from SGVMWD in constructing the well and it 
appurtenant pipeline to Sierra Madre at an estimated cost of $6,441,065.  This would provide the City 
with its own direct connection to the imported water supply provided by the District (In the past, there 
has been discussion of extending the District’s pipeline to Sierra Madre.  This option would be more cost 
effective, utilizing the groundwater basin as the conduit rather than constructing over seven miles of 
pipeline. 
 
The only Alternate listed that provides for true water independence for Sierra Madre is the third 
alternative, and most costly alternate. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council direct staff to proceed with implementation of the Alternative 
actions 2 and 3 as provided in this report, with highest priority given to Alternative 3, construction of a 
new well for the City of Sierra Madre in the Main San Gabriel Groundwater Basin. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss stated that Federal money is a wish list – is the Water District our funding source? 
 
Mr. Inman stated that Tom Love is here this evening to answer questions.  We need to start the process with the 
Corp of Engineers.  
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 22 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
Tom Love, Consultant and representative for Sierra Madre 

Mr. Love stated that we have consultants to help cities.  Water District funding – our goal is to supply 
water to our cities.  There is no conduit for Sierra Madre.  Supplement water is not permanent.  We have 
$8M to build project and deliver water.  We need to extend the pipeline from Azusa, it would cost more 
than $20M.  To put a well in the main basin is best.  With regard to the District funding, the General 
Manager has offered support.  We received a letter opening dialog.  Staff will correspond with us on grant 
funding. 

 
Mayor, John Capoccia, thanked Mr. Love, for all he has done for us. I am impressed with the creative deal.  Your 
job is supplying supplement water for 55 years, but we have had water for 30 years in MWD connection.  I don’t 
care if we go with a well, but I want guaranteed source of water.  My opinion, either option is fine as long as you 
deliver.  Why would you want to spend millions more to satisfy your obligation.  You need to negotiate with 
Arcadia, and if you can’t negotiate, build a well.  I only want a guaranteed water source.  I feel the District has this 
responsibility. 
 
Mr. Love stated that we need to work closely together with both cities.  We are willing to broker an arrangement 
with Arcadia.  We can deliver water to main basin for Sierra Madre. 
 
Mayor Capoccia thanked Mr. Love for what he has done – we need a low-cost option to get water. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, questioned with regard to the $8M set-a-side to build a well – if you don’t use, 
can we use the money? 
 
Mr. Love stated that the use of reserve funds are determined by San Gabriel Board. 
 
Council Member Harabedian asked if another city could come along and use these funds? 
 
M<r. Love remarked that there is the potential to use fund for other services.  We had $10M and we helped cities.  
Funds will remain available. 
 
Council Member Arizmendi stated that the $8M is not for Sierra Madre.  $8M is for infrastructure projects and 
where it can be used for all four cities. 
 
Mr. Love noted that the $8M was set-a-side if we moved forward with pipeline. 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked what other pressures the District is seeing? 
 
Mr. Love stated that as it stands now, is the ability to opt in or out on projects.  With regard to State Water Project 
– if built, it is the liability of allocation 40-42% with projects, with 65% reliability.  Is it worth increased liability.  
Sierra Madre is taking more water than previously. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public comment. 
 
De Alcorn, E. Grand View 
 

Mr. Alcorn stated that some years ago, he talked with City Council Members, I was told we have our 
water.  Arcadia has a problem now.  The whole state has a problem.  How sustainable is the whole thing.  
We need to take some steps.  I would like to see an overall sustainable solution. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 23 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
Mayor Capoccia stated, “We want our share”. 
 
Mayor Capoccia closed public comment. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, stated that it is time to go forward and get our own well.  It is a win – we have 
paid in for 55 years.  Now is critical point with District to get this done.  We then have a reliable water source.  We 
can then control our own destiny.  If we can get the money, it would be great.  Reach out to the District and 
request money for our own well. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, noted that we have a benefit there and should put it to use.  MWD saved us, even 
though it was treated water.  It gives us more independence.  We don’t have guarantee now that we will always 
have water. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi requested that we consider Alt. 3.  We aren’t highest priority city on grant 
money. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, also agrees on Option 3. 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated that he is not optimistic that money will be available.  We have MWD. 
 
Council Member Harabedian stated, “At this point, pursue, then reassess”. 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated that if Arcadia is willing participant, we can consider them. 
 
Council Member Harabedian stated that he would rather our City be self-sufficient. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, stated, “How long have we talked about this.  What progress have we made – I am not 
confident”. 
 
Council Member Harabedian noted that we have been discussing this for four years.  We need Option 3 as highest 
priority, then 1 or 2 is great. 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked, “If we say Option 3, what is next step?” 
 
City Manager, Elaine Aguilar, remarked that we need to secure funding for it – grants, Corp of Engineers – it could 
be lengthy – 2-3 years. 
 
Council Member Arizmendi stated that her priority is Option 3, but could pursue Option 2. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, moved and it was seconded by Council Member, John Harabedian,  moved for 
staff’s recommendation,  and added a friendly amendment to give direction to put funding before the District 
Board and see reaction and set timeline for April.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Mr. Tom Love stated that the District may not need contingencies necessary, given circumstance, District could 
meet mission statement.  If 100% of project, work diligently to get funds.  Encourage staff to come forward with 
the project. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 24 of 24 
February 9, 2016 

 
 
 
Mr. Inman stated that staff will approach Arcadia one more time to see if they are interested in fine line cost 
estimate.  If we can’t use Arcadia site, we will need to do well site study, then proceed with cost analysis.  Ideally, 
we could use District money from WRDA. 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated, “Arcadia has to agree”. 
 
Mr. Inman stated that staff will get with Arcadia and see what we can do by April. 
 
8). STRATEGIC PLAN FROM OCTOBER 20, 2015 RETREAT 
 
 
This item was postponed due to late hour. 

 
 
 

 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  None 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City Council adjourned to Closed Session at 10:55 p.m.  The City Attorney reported that due to the lateness of 
the hour, it was decided to continue the Annual Performance Evaluation of the City Manager. 
 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      John Capoccia, Mayor 
 
Minutes taken and typed by: 
 
 
 
Nancy Sue Shollenberger 
City Clerk 



















































































Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report 

City of Sierra Madre, California 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2015 



 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

City of Sierra Madre, California 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

 
 

Prepared By the Administrative Services Department 

Marcie Medina, Finance Director 

City of Sierra Madre 
232 West Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre, CA 91024 



 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION  

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL i 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART Vi 
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT vii 

FINANCIAL SECTION   

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
(REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION) (UNAUDITED) 5 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:   

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:  
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 23 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 24 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:  

BALANCE SHEET 26 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET  

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 27 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES 28 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,  

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 29 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 30 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 31 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 32 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 33 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 34 
 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):  

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 87 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 94 
BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 95 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE – GENERAL FUND 96 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:  

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:  
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 98 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 99 
 
 



  
FINANCIAL SECTION (CONTINUED)  

 
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS: 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 100 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 101 
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -GRANTS:  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 102 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 104 
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -ASSESSMENTS:  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 106 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 108 
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -OTHER:  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 110 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 116 
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS:  

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 122 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 123 
 
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS: 
    SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL:  

LSTA TEEN DOCENT GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 124 
BONITA SEWER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 125 
CENTRAL BUSINESS ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 126 
FANE/WINWOOD LANE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 127 
LIGHTING DISTRICT #1 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 128 
LIGHTING DISTRICT ZONE A SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 129 
LIGHTING DISTRICT ZONE B SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 130 
PARKING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 131 
SANTA ANITA/ARNO MAINTENANCE DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 132 
SEWER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 133 
SIERRA MADRE CFD SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 134 
DEVELOPMENT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 135 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 136 
DEVELOPMENT FEES ART IN PUBLIC PLACES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 137 
DUI ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 138 
POLICE DEPARTMENT DONATIONS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 139 
PUBLIC SAFETY AUGMENTATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 140 
STATE COPS GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 141 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 142 
FIRE DEPARTMENT DONATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 143 
COMMUNITY ARTS COMMISSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 144 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PROP A SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 145 
OPEN SPACE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 146 
SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 147 
SM COMMUNITY FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 148 
YAC –YOUTH ACTIVITY CENTER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 149 
 



FINANCIAL SECTION (CONTINUED)  
 
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS: 
    SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL:  

LOCAL TRANSIT PROP C SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 150 
CA BEVERAGE CONTAINER GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 151 
CLEAR AIR (AQMD) SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 152 
ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 153 
GAS TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 154 
MEASURE R SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 155 
LIBRARY GIFT AND MEMORIAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 156 
FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 157 
LIBRARY HISTORICAL SOCIETY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 158 

 
MAJOR FUNDS: 
    SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL:  

LOW AND MODERATE INCOME HOUSING ASSET CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 159 
 
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:  

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 160 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES  

IN NET POSITION 162 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 164 

 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS:  

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 166 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES  

IN NET POSITION 168 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 170 

 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS – AGENCY FUNDS:  

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 172 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 173 
 

STATISTICAL SECTION  
 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 176 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 178 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 182 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 184 
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 186 
DIRECT & OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 188 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 190 
DIRECT & OVERLAPPING DEBT AS OF JUNE 30, 2015 191 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 192 
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 194 
DEMOGRAPHIC & ECONOMIC STATISTICS 196 
TOP 25 SALES TAX PRODUCERS FISCAL YEAR 2014/15 197 
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 198 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 199 
FIXED ASSETS  202 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 









-iv- 
 

• Secured title sponsors to cover the Fourth of July parade entry costs, allowing the elimination of registration 
costs for parade entries. 

• Installed new park signage at Memorial Park and the Hart Park House Senior Center. 
• Partnered with Athens Services and identified locations for dog waste stations at all City parks. 
• Worked with a local scout to refurbish the wood picnic benches at Sierra Vista Park and Memorial Park for 

Eagle Scout project. 
• Partnered with the Rotary Club of Sierra Madre and introduced the first World Day event which focused on 

conservation and education on water resources in 2015. 
• Increased sponsorship levels for the Concert in the Park series, increasing the number of concerts for the 

summer season. 
• Renewed lease for Aquatics Center increasing lease payments to the City by $1,000 per month. 
• Acquired a grant from Los Angeles County Department of Health Services for the purchase of electronic 

Patient Care Reporting (ePCR) equipment. 
• Entered into agreement with Monrovia and Arcadia for the service of Battalion Chief Coverage. 
• Completed and instituted a new Fire Policy Manual that is distributed online to all members and Department. 
• Established a four-week training program for newly hired Fire recruits. 
• Established an Earthquake Awareness Fair to provide residents with the necessary safety information in the 

event of an earthquake. 
• Implemented City-wide reorganization for a savings of $180,000. 
• Began hosting annual employee benefit fair and health screenings. 
• Began implementation of updated integrated Library System. 
• Created and installed Digital Storyboards both in the Library and Richardson House to display local history 

photographs and artifacts. 
• Formed Library Facilities Master Plan Committee to assess library structure and develop Library Facility 

Master Plan document; RFP for a Library Facility Condition Assessment is underway. 
• Re-opened Local History Room to the public; created study space and increased public access to the Local 

History Collection. 
• Draft EIR for the General Plan was reviewed by the Planning Commission at a public hearing and presented 

to the public for the 45 day comment period. 
• Adopted “Water Meter” Building Moratorium. 
• Adopted Demolition Moratorium and Ordinance. 
• Granted Local Historic Landmark status to the Bulmer Farmhouse at 390 Olive Tree Lane. 
• Adopted amendments to R-1 single –family residential standards, to address problematic development 

standards and to minimize impacts of bulk, mass, and scale of homes. 
• Implemented the “Volunteers on Patrol” program. 
• Instituted the Community Service Officer program providing additional personnel paid by the State Cops 

Grant. 
• Updated legacy Police radio system to a new county wide ICIS system. 
• Updated Police Records and Communications Software. 
• Increased police volunteers for 18-20. 
• Received new portable radios for police personnel under a county wide grant. 
• Trained volunteers to direct traffic at community events. 

  
 
Relevant Financial Policies 
On June 23, 2015, the City Council adopted the Budget, which includes a comprehensive set of financial policies and 
procedures.  It is established that the budget should be adopted on an annual basis prior to the beginning of the 
budget cycle.  The budgets are adopted on a basis that does not materially differ from Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
 
In addition, the financial policies set the General Fund operating reserve at 50% of operating revenues. 
 
 





City of Sierra Madre
Organizational Chart

Residents

City Council City ClerkCity Treasurer

City Manager City Attorney

Assistant City 
Manager

Planning & 
Community 
Preservation

Public WorksLibrary Services
Community 

Services Public Safety
Administrative 

Services

UUT Oversite 
Committee

Community Services 
Commission

Senior Community 
Commission

Library Board of 
Trustees

Planning 
Commission

Energy, Environment & 
Natural Resources 

Commission 

Fire Police

-vi-



-vii- 
 

City of Sierra Madre, California 
 

Village of the Foothills 
 

Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

 
For the Year Ending June 30, 2015 

 

Sierra Madre, California 
 

City Council and Elected Officials 
John Capoccia Mayor 
Gene Goss Mayor Pro Tempore 
Rachelle Arizmendi Council Member 
Denise Delmar Council Member 
John Harabedian Council Member 
  

Nancy Shollenberger City Clerk 
Richard Mays City Treasurer 

 

Executive Management 
Elaine Aguilar City Manager 
Elisa Cox Assistant City Manager 
Terri Highsmith City Attorney 
Marcie Medina Finance Director 
Vincent Gonzalez Planning and Community Preservation Director 
Steve Heydorff Fire Chief 
Antoinette Buckner Interim Director of Library Services 
Larry Giannone Director of Public Safety 
Bruce Inman Public Works Director 



-viii- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

 



735 E. Carnegie Dr . Suite I 00 
San Bernardino , CA 92408 
909 889 087 I T 
909 889 5361 F 
ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda l. Odle, CPA. MST 

Terry P. Shea. CPA 

Kirk A Franks, CPA 

Scott W. Manno, CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag, CPA. MST, CGMA 

Jay H. Zercher, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

Phillip H . Waller, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

DIRECTORS 

Bradferd A Welebir, CPA. MBA 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Jenny Liu , CPA. MST 

Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA. MBA 

Charles De Simoni, CPA 

Nathan Statham, CPA. MBA 

Brigitta Bartha, CPA 

Gardenya Duran, CPA 
Juan Romero, CPA 
Ivan Gonzales, CPA. MSA 
Brianna Pascoe, CPA 
Daniel Hernandez, CPA. MBA 
Ryan Smith. CPA 

MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Alliance 
for CPA Firms 

Governmencal Audit 
Quality Center 

California Society of 
Certified Public Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Sierra Madre, California 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of City of Sierra Madre, California (the City), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparat ion and fai r presentat ion of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of t he United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes eva luating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

-1-
STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 



-2- 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion,  the  financial  statements  referred  to above present  fairly,  in all material  respects,  the 
respective  financial  position  of  the  governmental  activities,  the  business‐type  activities,  each major 
fund,  and  the  aggregate  remaining  fund  information  of  the  City  of  Sierra Madre,  California,  as  of 
June 30,  2015,  and  the  respective  changes  in  financial  position,  and,  where  applicable,  cash  flows 
thereof  for  the  year  then  ended  in  accordance with  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the 
United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of a Matter 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As discussed  in Note 1 of the financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement 
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and 
GASB  Statement No. 71,  Pension  Transition  for  Contributions Made  Subsequent  to  the Measurement 
Date  ‐ An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Our opinions are not modified with  respect  to  this 
matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it  to  be  an  essential  part  of  financial  reporting  for  placing  the  basic  financial  statements  in  an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the  required  supplementary  information  in accordance with auditing  standards generally accepted  in 
the  United  States  of  America,  which  consisted  of  inquiries  of management  about  the methods  of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 
to our  inquiries, the basic  financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the  basic  financial  statements.  We  do  not  express  an  opinion  or  provide  any  assurance  on  the 
information because  the  limited procedures do not provide us with  sufficient evidence  to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our  audit  was  conducted  for  the  purpose  of  forming  opinions  on  the  financial  statements  that 
collectively comprise the City of Sierra Madre, California’s basic financial statements. The  introductory 
section,  combining  and  individual  nonmajor  fund  financial  statements,  nonmajor  fund  budgetary 
comparison schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 



-3- 

The  combining  and  individual  nonmajor  fund  financial  statements  and  nonmajor  fund  budgetary 
comparison schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 
to  the underlying accounting and other  records used  to prepare  the basic  financial  statements.  Such 
information has been  subjected  to  the auditing procedures applied  in  the audit of  the basic  financial 
statements  and  certain  additional  procedures,  including  comparing  and  reconciling  such  information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or  to  the basic  financial  statements  themselves,  and other  additional procedures  in  accordance with 
auditing  standards generally accepted  in  the United States of America.  In our opinion,  the combining 
and  individual  nonmajor  fund  financial  statements  and  the  nonmajor  fund  budgetary  comparison 
schedules  are  fairly  stated,  in  all material  respects,  in  relation  to  the basic  financial  statements  as  a 
whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 12, 
2016,  on  our  consideration  of  the  City  of  Sierra Madre,  California’s  internal  control  over  financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of  internal control over  financial  reporting and compliance and  the  results of  that  testing, and not  to 
provide  an  opinion  on  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  or  on  compliance.  That  report  is  an 
integral part of an audit performed  in accordance with Government Auditing Standards  in considering 
City of Sierra Madre, California’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
San Bernardino, California 
February 12, 2016 
 



This page intentionally left blank. 

4



City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2015

5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

6



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the City of Sierra Madre (“City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information 
that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-v of this report. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The City implemented the Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, “Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions.”(GASB68) and Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date–
an amendment of GASB Statement 68” (GASB71), which resolves transition issues in GASB 68.  As a
result of the implementation of these standards, the City recorded a net pension liability in the
amount of $ 9,021,416 and deferred outflows and inflows of resources in the amount of $1,170,525
and $2,192,514, respectively. GASB 68 also resulted in net position and fund balances restatements
due to the change in accounting principle.

• The City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at June 30, 2015 by $ 208,491,190 (net position).  Of this amount, $198,531,086 is net
investment in capital assets, $7,201,339 is restricted for various programs and $2,758,765 represents
unrestricted net position.

• The City’s governmental activities net position decreased $8,503,952. This was due to prior period
adjustments, changes in accounting principles, and current change in net position for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015 of $65,091 or 0 percent. Net position of the business-type activities decreased by
$1,354,460 also due to prior period adjustments, changes in accounting principles, and current change
in net position of $1,685, or 0 percent.  Additional information on prior period reinstatements can be
found in the notes to the basic financial statements.

• During the year, the City’s General Fund reserves increased by $1,008,334, or 15.6 percent, and total
governmental funds reserves increased $840,632, or 7.5 percent.

• In the City’s proprietary funds:  The Water Fund net position decreased by $825,816 due to prior
period adjustments, changes in accounting principles, and current change in net position of $22,010 or
.1 percent; the Sewer Fund decreased $653,986, the current change in net position was a decrease of
$145,667 or 3.2 percent and the additional decrease was due to changes in accounting principles; Non-
Major Enterprise Funds increased $125,342; and total Internal Service Funds decreased $1,825,266.
Additional information on prior period adjustments and changes in accounting principles can be found
in the notes to the basic financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Sierra 
Madre’s basic financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components:  
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to the basic financial
statements.  This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to

7



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

support the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City 
of Sierra Madre’s finances, in a manner similar to the private sector business.  These statements are designed 
to provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s 
finances. The statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting which considers money available 
when earned and considers money spent when a liability is incurred. As such, this basis of accounting focuses 
on measuring economic resources that are available to the City regardless of the timing of the availability of 
those resources.  The accrual basis of accounting is similar to that used by most private sector companies.  
 
Accordingly, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. Additionally, these statements reflect the capitalization and depreciation of infrastructure 
and other capital assets (e.g., buildings, vehicles, and equipment, etc.) as well as the recognition of various 
long-term liabilities (e.g., bonds payable, accrued employee benefits, claims and judgments payable, etc.).  
 
The statement of net position presents information on all the City of Sierra Madre’s assets, liabilities and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources.  The difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources, 
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is reported as net position.  This statement includes changes in 
“capitalized and depreciated” capital assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City of Sierra Madre’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes 
and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by 
taxes, and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to 
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The 
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety (police and fire protection), 
public works, development services, and culture and recreation (community and library services).  The City's 
business-type activities include the Municipal Utility operations, and other self-supporting activities. 
 
The government-wide financial statements include the City and its component units. As stated in Note 1.a. of 
the notes to the financial statements, the inclusion of an organization within the scope of the reporting entity 
of the City of Sierra Madre, as either blended or separately shown, is based on the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 14 the Financial Reporting Entity.   
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 25 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The fund financial 
statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds and other funds – not the City as a 
whole. Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants. In addition, in order to meet legal 

8



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other resources, prudent fiscal management requires the 
establishment of other funds to help control and manage money.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
By contrast to the government-wide financial statements, the governmental fund financial statements, a part 
of the Fund Financial Statements, use the modified accrual basis of accounting which considers money 
available when it is collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (60 days after the end of 
the current fiscal period) to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred. Debt service, claims and judgments, and accrued employee leave benefits are not recorded as 
liabilities, they are expensed at the time a payment is due.  Note 1 of the notes to the Financial Statements 
more fully describes each basis of accounting. 
 
Governmental funds: Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on 
how money flows in and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. 
The governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general 
government operations and the basic services it provides.  Governmental fund information helps determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s 
programs. The differences between the results in the governmental fund financial statements and those in the 
government-wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each governmental fund 
financial statement (see pages 23 through 25, 27 and 29 of this report). 
 
The City maintains 48 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental 
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances for the General Fund and the Low & Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund, of which are considered 
to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements in the Supplementary Information. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has 
been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This comparison can be found on page 96 of this 
report. 
 
Although legally separate, component units function for all practical purposes as departments of the City and, 
therefore, have been blended as part of the primary government.   
 
Proprietary funds: When the City charges customers’ fees to cover the cost of the services it provides, these 
services are generally reported in proprietary funds.  The City maintains two different types of proprietary 
funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. In the fund financial statements section, proprietary funds 
provide similar information to that contained in the business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 
through 32 of this report. 
 
“Enterprise” refers to the fund type while “business-type” refers to the activity type. The City uses enterprise 
funds to account for its Water Utility and Sewer Utility, both of which are major funds; and various smaller 
self-supporting community operations, which are shown in aggregate titled Non-Major Enterprise Funds. 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as Business-Type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 
 

9



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

Internal Service funds by contrast are an accounting mechanism used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for 
Vehicle/Equipment Replacement and Maintenance, Facilities Maintenance, City Administration, and 
Information Technology (IT), Personnel/Risk Management (previously Workers Compensation and Self 
Insurance funds), and General Plan/Housing Update. All internal service funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.  

Internal Service funds are presented as proprietary funds because both enterprise and internal service funds 
follow the accrual basis of accounting.  However, because these services predominantly involve governmental 
rather than business-type activities, this fund type has been included within Governmental Activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  

Fiduciary funds: The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds held as a conduit or clearinghouse, 
established to account for assets (usually cash) received for and paid to other funds, individuals, or 
organizations. The assets thus received are usually held very briefly. The City has Agency Funds to account for 
the payment of various employee benefits and deductions including, but not limited to, health and dental 
insurance premiums, federal and state withholding taxes and various other items that are withheld from 
regular compensation. The City has a Private Purpose Trust Fund for recording the financial activities of the 
Successor Agency as it relates to the dissolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency. 

The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in 
Fiduciary Net Position found on pages 33 through 34. These activities are excluded from the City’s other 
financial statements since the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for 
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to obtain a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 37 of 
this report. 

Other Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information concerning the City’s budgetary information and compliance; Schedule of 
the City’s Proportionate Share of the Plan’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios; Schedule of Plan 
Contributions; and OPEB Schedule of Funding Progress. Required supplementary information can be found on 
pages 87 through 96 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, enterprise 
funds, internal service funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required 
supplementary information captioned supplementary schedules.  Combining and individual fund statements 
and schedules can be found on pages 98 through 174 of this report. 

THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s 
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. 

10



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
As noted earlier, the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the 
City as a whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets, liabilities and deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources of the City using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies.  
 
These two statements report the City’s net position and changes in them. Net position is the difference 
between assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of resources, which is one way to measure the City’s 
financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are one 
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in 
the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure, such as City wells and reservoirs 
construction/replacements, street maintenance/repairs, and building maintenance/ improvements. 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, City activities are separated as follows: 
 

Governmental activities – The majority of the City’s basic services are reported in this category, 
including Administrative Services, Police, Fire, Public Works, Planning and Development Services, Parks 
and Recreation, and the Library.  Revenues such as property taxes, sales taxes, utility user taxes, 
franchise fees, and other state and federal funds finance these activities. 

 
Business-type activities – The City charges a fee to customers to cover the services it provides within 
this category. The City’s Water system, Sewer system and Community operations are reported in this 
category. 

 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
Our analysis focuses on the City’s net position (Table 1) and the changes in net position (Table 2) as a result of 
the City’s activities. Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented. An analysis of the significant 
increases/decreases from the prior year is provided after each table. 
 
Net Position: Net Position, the difference between a government’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources 
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, may serve over time as one potential useful indicator of a 
government’s financial position (Table 1).  Net Position includes the City’s capital assets, cash balances, 
amounts receivable from other entities, and other similar resources offset by payments due to vendors, 
interest payable, long-term debt, and other similar obligations.  By far the largest portion of the City’s net 
position (95%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, utility plant, machinery, equipment, 
and infrastructure), net of any related outstanding debt, used to acquire those assets. The City uses these 
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  
Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. In the case of the City, total assets and deferred outflows of 
resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $208,491,190 at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year as compared to the net position of $218,349,602 in fiscal year 2013-14.  

11



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

      

 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position: Program expenses by function, general revenues by 
major source, excess and/or deficiency of revenues over expenses before contributions to fund principal, 
special, and extraordinary items, changes in and total net position are presented in the Statement of Activities 
(Table 2). Total revenues increased by approximately $3 million, or 1.5 percent; and total expenses increased 
by $2.7 million, or 18.3 percent.  

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Assets:

15,191$    16,418$    5,572$      5,671$      20,763$    22,089$    
2,105         2,042         -             -             2,105         2,042         

183,566    182,322    26,239      26,355      209,805    208,677    
TOTAL ASSETS 200,862    200,782    31,811      32,026      232,673    232,808    

Deferred Outflows of Resources: -             1,018         -             152            -             1,170         

1,676         1,522         887            1,746         2,563         3,268         
2,003         9,692         9,757         10,335      11,760      20,027      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,679         11,214      10,644      12,081      14,323      23,295      

Deferred Inflows of Resources: -             1,907         -             285            -             2,192         

Net investment in capital assets 183,026    181,862    15,964      16,669      198,990    198,531    
Restricted 13,952      6,052         1,150         1,149         15,102      7,201         

205            765            4,053         1,994         4,258         2,759         
197,183$  188,679$  21,167$    19,812$    218,350$  208,491$  

TOTAL

TABLE 1

NET POSITION AT YEAR-END
(In Thousands)

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

Net Position:

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

Non-Current Liabil ities

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

Current and Other Assets
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets

Liabil ities:
Current and Other Liabil ities

12



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

   

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES TOTAL

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services 3,526$      2,374$      4,979$    5,498$   8,505$      7,872$      
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,237        1,072        -           -          1,237        1,072        
Capital Grants and Contributions -            -            259          243         259            243            

General Revenues:
Taxes 8,217        8,435        -           -          8,217        8,435        
Investment Income 11              12              7              6             18              18              
Other Sources (854)          -            -           -          (854)          -             

TOTAL REVENUES 12,137      11,893      5,245      5,747     17,382      17,640      

Expenses:
General Government 743           1,581        -           -          743            1,581        
Public Safety 5,525        5,501        -           -          5,525        5,501        
Public Works 1,499        2,256        -           -          1,499        2,256        
Development 993           1,089        -           -          993            1,089        
Culture and Recreation 1,407        1,326        -           -          1,407        1,326        
Interest Expense 24              21              -           -          24              21              
Water -            -            3,542      4,627     3,542        4,627        
Sewer -            -            844          939         844            939            
Recreation Services -            -            132          114         132            114            
Strike Team -            -            93            101         93              101            
Fi lming -            -            55            18           55              18              

TOTAL EXPENSES 10,191      11,774      4,666      5,799     14,857      17,573      

Excess (deficiency) in net position before
transfers and extraordinary item 1,946        119           579          (52)          2,525        67              

Transfers (4)               (54)            4              54           -             -             

Increase (decrease) in net position 1,942        65              583          2             2,525        67              

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 195,241   188,614   20,584    19,810   215,825    208,424    

Net position, end of year 197,183$ 188,679$ 21,167$  19,812$ 218,350$ 208,491$ 

TABLE 2

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(In Thousands)

13



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

Governmental Activities: The following (Table 3) presents the cost of each of the City’s largest programs – 
general government, public safety, public works, community development, culture and recreation, and interest 
on long-term debt – as well as, each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities). 
The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions.   
 

 
 

THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related 
legal requirements. The following financial analysis is performed only for the governmental (Table 4) and 
proprietary funds (Table 5). The fiduciary funds are excluded from this analysis as they do not represent 
resources available to the City. 

 
 
Governmental Funds: Based upon the audited Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance, the total fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by approximately $1 million in FY 2014-
2015.  General Fund revenues decreased by approximately $54,000, or .5 percent; expenditures decreased by 
approximately $258,000, or 3.3 percent; and net transfers out decreased by approximately $308,000, or 29.9 
percent.  Other governmental funds decreased total fund balance by about $168,000 in FY 2014-2015. 
  

TABLE 3

NET COST OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(In Thousands)

As of June 30, 2015

1,581$           565$                 (1,016)$         
5,501             725 (4,776)            
2,256             926 (1,330)            
1,089             886                   (203)               
1,326             344 (982)               

21                   -                    (21)                 
11,774$        3,446$             (8,328)$         

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Development
Culture and Recreation
Interest Expense

Net Cost of 
Services

Total Program 
Revenues

Total Cost of 
Services

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015

9,270$   9,216$   7,746$   7,488$   (1,028)$  (720)$     496$      1,008$   
Low/Mod Income Housing Fund -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          

3,745     2,672     3,644     3,512     621         672         722         (168)       
TOTAL 13,015$ 11,888$ 11,390$ 11,000$ (407)$     (48)$       1,218$   840$      

General Fund

Other Governmental Funds

EXPENDITURES 

TABLE 4

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
(In Thousands)

REVENUES

TRANSFERS & 
EXTRAORDINARY 
GAINS/(LOSSES)

TOTAL CHANGE IN 
FUND BALANCE

14



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

At June 30, 2015, the fund balance for the General Fund was $7,454,668; however the City Council has 
committed and assigned certain amounts adjusting the unassigned fund balance to $1,021,355.  

 

The unassigned General Fund reserves were accumulated over time.  The total unassigned General Fund 
reserves increased mainly as a result of a reduction of expenditures that do not occur on an annual basis, such 
as election expenses and additional funding of OPEB.  The unassigned General fund reserves are the result of: 
• Fluctuations in assigned reserves (50% of annual operating revenues per the City’s fund balance 

policy); 
• Council authorized changes in committed reserves (setting aside funds for designated purposes); and 
• Year End operating surpluses/deficits. 
 
The City of Sierra Madre has appropriated $525,000 of unassigned surplus funds for spending in the 2015-16 
fiscal year budget.  This action was taken as an additional measure to mitigate the impact of the 2% sunset of 
the Utility User’s Tax on July 1, 2015. The $525,000 was the projected surplus for FY 2014-2015.  The Historical 
trends of the General Fund reserves can be seen in the Statistical Section located at the end of the financials. 
 
Business-Type Funds: As shown in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, the 
Enterprise Funds had a total change in net position of $1,685, or 0.00 percent for the current year.  The Water 
fund had an increase in net position of approximately $22,000, or.14 percent; and the Sewer Fund had a 
decrease in net position of approximately $146,000, or 3.22 percent. At the close of FY 2014-2015, the total 
net change in net position of the City’s Internal Service Funds was a decrease of $1,077,808.  The decrease was 
mainly due to retirement of capital assets, buildings and streets, with the street replacements capitalized as 
general assets. 

TABLE 4-a

FUND BALANCES FOR GENERAL FUND

General Fund Reserves for the Year Ending June 30, 2014 6,446,334$         
Total Revenue 9,216,556
Total Expenditures 7,487,915
Net Budgeted Transfers, In/(Out) (720,307)

General Fund Reserves for the Year Ending June 30, 2015 7,454,668$         

Nonspendable 19,535$               
Committed Reserves

IT  Master Plan 25,000                 
Website Redesign 25,000                 
CAJPIA Retrospective  Claims 125,000               
Integrated Library System 25,000                 
NPDES 213,500               
Public Safety/City Hall  Roofs 160,000               
Exterior Library Paint 35,000                 
Street Resurfacing or Replacement 404,000               
Ambulance Purchase 184,000               
City Parking Lot Maintenance 45,000                 
Emergency Management & Response 39,000                 

Assigned Reserves
50% of operating revenues for cashflows - reserve policy 4,608,278           
Subsequent year's budget appropriation of fund balances 525,000               

Unassigned Reserves 1,021,355           

15



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

 
 
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
The City of Sierra Madre investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
June 30, 2015, amounts to $208,676,561 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets 
includes land, buildings, machinery, equipment, vehicles, park facilities, roads, highways, bridges, sewer lines, 
and the water distribution system.   
 

 
 
Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following: 
 
• Street replacement projects at a cost of $337,587. 
• Water pipelines replacement projects at a cost of $704,536. 
• Sewer pipelines replacement projects at a cost of $212,657. 
 
Additional information on the City of Sierra Madre’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 52 through 
53 of this report. 
 

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015

Water 4,110$  4,621$   3,542$  4,613$  -$       14$        568$      22$        
Sewer 745        808         844        954        -         -         (99)         (146)       

389        318         279        233        4             40          114        125        
TOTAL $5,244 $5,747 $4,665 $5,800 4$          54$        583$      1$          

 Internal Service Funds 3,986$  4,325$   4,513$  5,396$  1,090$  (6)$         563$      (1,077)$ 

Other Enterprise Funds

Governmental Activities-

CONTRIBUTIONS & 
TRANSFERS

TABLE 5
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

(In Thousands)

REVENUES EXPENSES
TOTAL CHANGE IN 

NET POSITION

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
162,276$  162,276$  1,483$      1,483$      163,759$  163,759$  

1,206         1,206         -             -             1,206         1,206         
6,444         5,650         271            254            6,715         5,904         
1,720         1,524         405            362            2,125         1,886         

11,919      11,666      24,080      24,255      35,999      35,921      
183,565$  182,322$  26,239$    26,354$    209,804$  208,676$  

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

TABLE 6

CAPITAL ASSETS (net of depreciation)
(In Thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

TOTAL

Structures and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Land
Trees

16



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

Debt Administration 
At the end of FY 2014-2015, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $8,590,000 (of which $425,000 is 
due in FY 2015-2016) for the Water Revenue Bonds.  In addition, the Water Fund has an interest free loan from 
the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, with an outstanding balance of $874,125 (of which $145,688 is 
due in FY 2015-2016) at June 30, 2015. 
 
In 2010, the City entered into a 10-year Master Lease with the Municipal Finance Corporation.  The Citywide 
debt as of June 30, 2015 was $681,349 (of which $124,221 is due in FY 2015-2016).  Additional information on 
the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 of the Financial Statements (pages 54 through 58). 
 
Economic Condition and Budget Outlook 
The City is a full service municipality operating with a $23 million budget that funds 61 full-time employees 
assigned to nine operating departments and includes its own water and sewer utilities.  For more than a 
decade the City of Sierra Madre had maintained expenditures under the available resources, but this has not 
always been easy.  Like most governments since the recent recession, Sierra Madre has received relatively flat 
revenues despite increases in insurance, pension, and other cost drivers.  In order to provide a balanced 
budget, the City expenditures have had to be re-benchmarked lower each budget year to remain aligned with 
incoming revenues.  In addition to the impacts of the five year recession, in FY 2011-2012, the State dissolved 
redevelopment and the General Fund was faced with absorbing most of these costs. 
 
For FY 2013-2014 the City further reduced its staffing through attrition, resulting in a decrease of an additional 
two full-time employees.  In addition, filling vacant positions was delayed to further increase cost savings.  This 
resulted in the delay of some projects and programs. In FY 2014-2015, the City continued cost reductions by 
conducting a staff reorganization with savings of about $180,000.  The City also caped management benefits, 
reduced library contracts, community events and senior programing in order to incur cost savings. 
 
General Fund  
The City’s largest fund is the General fund and its revenues are approximately $9 million.  It provides the 
resources necessary to sustain the day-to-day activities and services to the community.  All nine departments 
receive support from the General Fund, either directly or indirectly in the form of subsidies (recorded as 
Transfers Out in the financials) or cost allocation (overhead).  The General Fund supports more than half of the 
City’s total personnel costs and supports 36% of the City’s operations (see chart below). 
 

   
  

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

Estimated FY14-15

36%

19%

7%
20%

18%
All Other Funds

Internal Service Funds

Sewer

Water

General Fund

17



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

The City of Sierra Madre, with a population of approximately 11,000, is primarily a residential community.  Its 
small size and quiet neighborhoods provide a small town atmosphere the residents are proud to maintain.  
This, however, does not lend itself to a commercial base; thus, the City receives its significant support from 
property tax and utility user tax (UUT).   At fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, Property Tax and VLF/Property Tax 
backfill constituted over 58% of the City’s General Fund resources, UUT was 17%, Franchise Fees were 6%, and 
all other revenues combined were 19%.  Today that same ratio has changed to reflect: 55% Property Tax and 
VLF/Property Tax Backfill; 27% Utility User Tax and 18% other sources which includes Franchise fee, Sales Tax, 
and Business Licenses.   
 
Over the last decade, the Los Angeles and California housing economy experienced the 2004 housing boom 
and the 2008 housing market crash.  During the last seven years, unlike most of Los Angeles County, Sierra 
Madre’s housing market, while not experiencing great gains has not had a negative growth.  In fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2015, the City property tax revenue was $5,082,813.   This amount includes, property tax in-
lieu of VLF and the former redevelopment agency residual taxes.  The decrease of $111,100 over FY 2013-2014 
was the due to a decrease of the former Redevelopment residual taxes by $241,471. 
     
The median sale price of a single family home in Sierra Madre for 2015 was $821,500.  This represents a 
$34,500 (4.4%) increase in median sale price from 2014.  Los Angeles County (as a whole) has a median sale 
price of $500,000, a $40,000 (8.7%) increase from last year.  Consumer Price Indexes (CPI) for the last year has 
increased by 1.525%; lower than the two (2) percent of Proposition 13.  Therefore, it is likely that Los Angeles 
Assessor’s office will be applying a countywide adjustment of less than 1.6 percent to next year’s tax rolls.  
 
Since 2008, the voter increase in the Utility User Tax (UUT) has resulted in making this funding source an 
important resource to meet the City’s needs. The increased UUT revenues were linked to increases in public 
safety services, the Paramedic Program and public safety salaries, through a 2008 voter advisory measure.  As 
a result, the UUT has provided the necessary funding to allow for salary increases to the Police Association and 
to continue to deliver Paramedic Services to the community.   
 
The City’s legal maximum taxable rate was 12% for FY 2011-2012 through FY 2013-2014.  However, pursuant 
to formal City Council action, the UUT rate never exceeded 10%.  On July 1, 2015, the City’s taxable rate is 8% 
due to a sunset clause in the 2008 UUT ordinance which was not extended in April 2012 or in April 2014 by the 
voters.  Without an extension to the 2008 UUT ordinance, the UUT collection rate will be diminishing to 6% on 
July 1, 2016.  This resulting loss of revenue is estimated to be $1 million.   
 
Water Fund 
The City Water fund utility is the City’s second largest fund.  As a proprietary fund, the fund must collect fees 
for the services (water) that it provides and should be self-funding.  In other words, the water fund must 
perform as if it were a separate business that should stand alone from the other city funds.   
 
The City Water fund increased its rates during FY 2013-2014.  Prior to 2010, the City last raised its rates in 2003 
when it issued new bonds.  The rate increases for 2006, 2007, 2008, and 2009 - were not implemented 
because of changes in State laws.  As a result, by 2010, the rates assumed to fund operational, capital and debt 
were more than 20% below anticipated revenues (between 2006 and 2009 – costs continued to increase while 
revenues remained flat). 
 
In FY 2013-2014, the City initiated a new rate study and a Proposition 218 process to increase the rates.  The 
new rates have been in effect since March 2014.  The rate study estimates that the fund balance would be 
trending upward.  However, the rate study did not take into account the additional water conservation due to 

 

18



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

the drought and City and State mandated water conservation, and the full cost of purchased water.  Another 
factor in the fund balance not increasing as estimated was the cost of maintenance and improvements. 
 
During FY 2008-2009 when the prior rate study began, the City had just completed almost $20 million in 
infrastructure improvements.  The rate study therefore was absent any new capital projects with the hope that 
the fund reserves would rebound and new projects could take place at the end of the rate study period.  
However, three of the City’s four wells have needed major repairs.  Other maintenance items that were 
planned to be delayed, instead, needed to be prioritized and repaired at a faster pace than was predicted.   
 
Sewer Fund 
The City Sewer fund utility is the City’s third largest fund.  As a proprietary fund, the fund must collect fees for 
the services (sewer discharge) that it provides and should be self-funding.  Similar to the Water fund, following 
the rate increase in 2003, the Sewer fund was unable to implement rate increase because of changes to State 
law.  In 2008, the City considered a rate proposal for the Sewer fund, but instead focused on rate increases in 
the Water Fund because there was greater fiscal need there.  Because the Sewer Fund was unable to meet its 
operational, capital and debt needs, in FY 2013-2014, the City initiated a new rate study and a Proposition 218 
process to increase the rates.  The new rates have been in effect since March 2014. 
 
Contacting the City’s Financial Management 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the City of Sierra Madre’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it 
receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department at the City of Sierra Madre, 232 West 
Sierra Madre Boulevard, Sierra Madre, California, 91024. 
 

19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

20



City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
 
    
 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2015 
 
 
 

21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

22



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Primary Government
Governmental 

Activities Business-type Activities Total

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments 15,895,807$                  3,594,985$                    19,490,792$                  
Restricted cash and investments 
   with fiscal agents -                                   1,149,456                       1,149,456                       
Receivables:

Accounts 147,800                          629,671                          777,471                          
Taxes 325,803                          -                                   325,803                          
Interest 5,145                               -                                   5,145                               

Due from other governments 11,992                            -                                   11,992                            
Prepaids 31,872                            297,074                          328,946                          

Total current assets 16,418,419                    5,671,186                       22,089,605                    
Noncurrent assets:

Net other post-employment 
   benefits (OPEB) asset 358,844                          -                                   358,844                          
Land held for resale 1,682,998                       -                                   1,682,998                       
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable assets 163,482,159                  1,483,250                       164,965,409                  
Depreciable assets-net 18,839,951                    24,871,201                    43,711,152                    

Total noncurrent assets 184,363,952                  26,354,451                    210,718,403                  
Total assets 200,782,371                  32,025,637                    232,808,008                  

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension related 1,018,357                       152,168                          1,170,525                       

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 498,662                          926,653                          1,425,315                       
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 357,893                          73,311                            431,204                          
Interest payable 7,093                               73,543                            80,636                            
Deposits and retentions 258,026                          39,617                            297,643                          
Claims payable - current 197,000                          -                                   197,000                          
Compensated absences - current 119,252                          21,775                            141,027                          
Capital lease payable - current 83,788                            40,433                            124,221                          
Loan payable - current -                                   145,688                          145,688                          
Bonds payable - current -                                   425,000                          425,000                          

Total current liabilities 1,521,714                       1,746,020                       3,267,734                       
Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims payable 980,851                          -                                   980,851                          
Compensated absences 487,161                          87,101                            574,262                          
Net Pension Liability 7,848,631                       1,172,785                       9,021,416                       
Capital lease payable 375,786                          181,342                          557,128                          
Loan payable -                                   728,438                          728,438                          
Bonds payable -                                   8,165,000                       8,165,000                       

Total noncurrent liabilities 9,692,429                       10,334,666                    20,027,095                    
Total liabilities 11,214,143                    12,080,686                    23,294,829                    

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension related 1,907,487                       285,027                          2,192,514                       

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 181,862,536                  16,668,550                    198,531,086                  
Restricted 6,051,883                       1,149,456                       7,201,339                       
Unrestricted 764,679                          1,994,086                       2,758,765                       

Total net position 188,679,098$                19,812,092$                  208,491,190$                

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
23



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Operating Capital
Charges for grants and grants and

Functions/programs Expenses services contributions contributions Total

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government 1,581,532$          564,721$             -$                      -$                      564,721$             
Public safety 5,500,997            471,066               253,647               -                        724,713               
Public works 2,255,560            302,828               623,389               -                        926,217               
Development services 1,089,493            886,329               -                        -                        886,329               
Culture and recreation 1,325,706            149,146               194,945               -                        344,091               
Interest on long-term debt 20,580                 -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total governmental activities 11,773,868          2,374,090            1,071,981            -                        3,446,071            

Business-type activities:
Water 4,626,949            4,373,849            -                        242,500               4,616,349            
Sewer 939,202               806,429               -                        -                        806,429               
Recreation services 113,608               212,948               -                        -                        212,948               
Special services 101,219               69,275                 -                        -                        69,275                 
Film services 18,035                 35,254                 -                        -                        35,254                 

Total business-type activities 5,799,013            5,497,755            -                        242,500               5,740,255            

Total primary government 17,572,881$        7,871,845$          1,071,981$          242,500$             9,186,326$          

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Utility user taxes
Other taxes

Investment earnings
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year, as restated

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Program Revenues

24



Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

(1,016,811)$         -$                      (1,016,811)$         
(4,776,284)           -                         (4,776,284)           
(1,329,343)           -                         (1,329,343)           

(203,164)               -                         (203,164)               
(981,615)               -                         (981,615)               

(20,580)                 -                         (20,580)                 

(8,327,797)           -                         (8,327,797)           

-                         (10,600)                 (10,600)                 
-                         (132,773)               (132,773)               
-                         99,340                  99,340                  
-                         (31,944)                 (31,944)                 
-                         17,219                  17,219                  

-                         (58,758)                 (58,758)                 

(8,327,797)           (58,758)                 (8,386,555)           

5,264,471             -                         5,264,471             
330,053                -                         330,053                

2,467,813             -                         2,467,813             
372,694                -                         372,694                

11,875                  6,425                    18,300                  
(54,018)                 54,018                  -                         

8,392,888             60,443                  8,453,331             

65,091                  1,685                    66,776                  

188,614,007        19,810,407          208,424,414        

188,679,098$      19,812,092$        208,491,190$      

Net (expense) revenue
and changes in net position

25



General Fund

Low & Moderate 
Income Housing 

Asset Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Assets:
Cash and investments 7,088,189$          2,506$                 3,674,929$          10,765,624$        
Receivables:

Accounts 122,449               -                        21,679                 144,128                
Taxes 287,556               -                        38,247                 325,803                
Interest 5,145                    -                        -                            5,145                    

Due from other agencies -                            -                        11,992                 11,992                  
Due from other funds 287,922               -                        -                        287,922                
Prepaid 19,535                 -                        -                        19,535                  
Land held for resale -                        1,682,998            -                        1,682,998             

Total assets 7,810,796$          1,685,504$          3,746,847$          13,243,147$        

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 97,741$               -$                      335,948$             433,689$              
Accrued payroll and related
   liabilities 232,436               -                        58,604                 291,040                
Due to other funds -                        -                        287,922               287,922                
Deposits and retentions 25,951                 2,500                    229,575               258,026                

Total liabilities 356,128               2,500                    912,049               1,270,677             

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 19,535                 -                        -                        19,535                  
Restricted -                        1,683,004            2,430,438            4,113,442             
Committed 1,280,500            -                        661,036               1,941,536             
Assigned 5,133,278            -                        -                        5,133,278             
Unassigned 1,021,355            -                        (256,676)              764,679                

Total fund balances 7,454,668            1,683,004            2,834,798            11,972,470          

Total liabilities and fund balances 7,810,796$          1,685,504$          3,746,847$          13,243,147$        

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2015
Governmental Funds

26



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Total fund balances - total governmental funds 11,972,470$         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position were different because:
   

Capital assets used in governmental activities were not current financial resources. Therefore, they
were not reported in the governmental funds:

Capital assets, net of depreciation 1,202,699              

Long-term assets that are not available for current use. Amounts are not reported in the
governmental funds:

Net other post-employment benefits (OPEB) asset 358,844                 
   

Accrued interest payable of the current portion of interest due on long-term debt has not been
reported in governmental funds. (6,146)                    

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and payable in the
current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current and
long-term are reported in the Statement of Net Position: 

Capital lease payable (398,230)                
Compensated absences (483,139)                
Net Pension Liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (7,833,855)            

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
facilities management, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 183,866,455         

  
Net position of governmental activities 188,679,098$       

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

27



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

General Fund

Low & Moderate 
Income Housing 

Asset Fund

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Revenues:
Property taxes 5,082,813$          -$                      181,658$             5,264,471$          
Other taxes 3,170,560            -                        -                        3,170,560             
Charges for services 212,175               -                        659,062               871,237                
Intergovernmental 6,511                    -                        1,067,386            1,073,897             
Licenses and permits 408,778               -                        610,193               1,018,971             
Fines and forfeitures 223,072               -                        -                        223,072                
Investment income 1,114                    3                           4,280                    5,397                    
Miscellaneous 111,533               -                        149,277               260,810                

Total revenues 9,216,556            3                           2,671,856            11,888,415          

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 1,605,329            -                        67,606                 1,672,935             
Public safety 4,436,205            -                        946,191               5,382,396             
Public works 509,413               -                        1,161,417            1,670,830             
Development -                        -                        1,019,712            1,019,712             
Culture and recreation 936,968               -                        226,015               1,162,983             

Debt Service:
Principal -                        -                        69,391                 69,391                  
Interest -                        -                        21,651                 21,651                  

Total expenditures 7,487,915            -                        3,511,983            10,999,898          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
   over (under) expenditures 1,728,641            3                           (840,127)              888,517                

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 131,445               -                        810,076               941,521                
Transfers out (851,752)              -                        (137,654)              (989,406)               

Total other financing sources (uses) (720,307)              -                        672,422               (47,885)                 
Net change in fund balances 1,008,334            3                           (167,705)              840,632                

6,446,334            1,683,001            3,002,503            11,131,838          

Fund balances, end of year 7,454,668$          1,683,004$          2,834,798$          11,972,470$        

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated

28



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 840,632$            

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities
and Changes in Net Position, the costs of those assets meeting the City's capitalization policy are
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciation expense in the current period: 

Depreciation expense (102,074)             
Capital outlay 390,223               

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net
Position. These differences are as follows:

Principal payments 69,391 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (1,916) 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of self-insurance and capital
replacements to individual funds. The net revenue of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. (1,077,808)          

Some expenses reported on the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds:

Net change in accrued interest 1,071 
Net change in compensated absences (86,615) 
Net change in OPEB (63,736) 
Net change in pension liability 95,923 

Change in net position of governmental activities 65,091$               

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
were different because:

29



Water Sewer

  Non-Major 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Governmental 
Activities Internal 

Service Funds

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments 1,911,502$       1,296,160$      387,323$        3,594,985$      5,130,183$          
Restricted cash and investments

with fiscal agents 1,149,456         -                    -                   1,149,456        -                         
Accounts receivable 547,784             81,887              -                   629,671            3,672                    
Prepaids 297,074             -                    -                   297,074            12,337                  

Total current assets 3,905,816         1,378,047        387,323          5,671,186        5,146,192             
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets 1,483,250         -                    -                   1,483,250        162,275,945        
Depreciable assets-net 21,065,702       3,805,499        -                   24,871,201      18,843,466          

Total noncurrent assets 22,548,952       3,805,499        -                   26,354,451      181,119,411        
Total assets 26,454,768       5,183,546        387,323          32,025,637      186,265,603        

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension related 93,642               58,526              -                   152,168            105,346                

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 917,081             390                   9,182               926,653            64,973                  
Accrued payroll and related 

liabilities 42,012               26,275              5,024               73,311              66,853                  
Interest payable 70,120               3,423                -                   73,543              947                        
Deposits and retentions 23,082               10,118              6,417               39,617              -                         
Claims payable - current -                     -                    -                   -                    197,000                
Compensated absences - current 13,020               8,235                520                  21,775              24,655                  
Capital lease payable - current -                     40,433              -                   40,433              11,184                  
Loan payable - current 145,688             -                    -                   145,688            -                         
Bonds payable - current 425,000             -                    -                   425,000            -                         

Total current liabilities 1,636,003         88,874              21,143            1,746,020        365,612                
Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims payable -                     -                    -                   -                    980,851                
Compensated absences 52,078               32,942              2,081               87,101              98,619                  
Net Pension Liability 721,714             451,071            -                   1,172,785        811,926                
Capital lease payable -                     181,342            -                   181,342            50,160                  
Loan payable 728,438             -                    -                   728,438            -                         
Bonds payable 8,165,000         -                    -                   8,165,000        -                         

Total noncurrent liabilities 9,667,230         665,355            2,081               10,334,666      1,941,556             
Total liabilities 11,303,233       754,229            23,224            12,080,686      2,307,168             

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension related 175,401             109,626            -                   285,027            197,326                

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 13,084,826       3,583,724        -                   16,668,550      181,058,067        
Restricted for debt service 1,149,456         -                    -                   1,149,456        -                         
Unrestricted 835,494             794,493            364,099          1,994,086        2,808,388             

Total net position 15,069,776$     4,378,217$      364,099$        19,812,092$    183,866,455$      

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Enterprise Funds

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2015

Business-type Activities

30



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer

 Non-Major 
Enterprise 

Funds

Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Governmental 
Activities Internal 

Service Funds

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 4,373,849$       806,077$        301,769$       5,481,695$      4,305,871$          
Licenses and permits -                     352                  15,708           16,060             10,859                 
Miscellaneous -                     -                   -                  -                    1,360                   

Total operating revenues 4,373,849         806,429          317,477         5,497,755        4,318,090            

Operating expenses:
Personnel services 683,350            449,594          116,659         1,249,603        1,352,243            
Contractual services 292,146            77,761             60,337           430,244           586,885               
Materials and supplies 704,512            8,764               4,030             717,306           251,235               
Utilities 352,834            -                   35,560           388,394           367,231               
Maintenance and operation 541,480            -                   16,276           557,756           58,619                 
Administrative Charges 983,360            215,319          -                  1,198,679        966,982               
Depreciation 563,938            176,303          -                  740,241           1,716,058            

Total operating expenses 4,121,620         927,741          232,862         5,282,223        5,299,253            

Operating income (loss) 252,229            (121,312)         84,615           215,532           (981,163)              

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Grant 242,500            -                   -                  242,500           -                       
Investment Income 4,270                 1,674               481                 6,425               6,478                   
Loss on disposal of property (52,749)             (14,568)           -                  (67,317)            (93,820)                
Interest expense (438,012)           (11,461)           -                  (449,473)          (3,170)                  

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (243,991)           (24,355)           481                 (267,865)          (90,512)                

Income (loss) before transfers 8,238                 (145,667)         85,096           (52,333)            (1,071,675)          

Transfers:
Transfers in 13,772              -                   40,246           54,018             11,897                 
Transfers out -                     -                   -                  -                    (18,030)                

Total transfers 13,772              -                   40,246           54,018             (6,133)                  

Change in net position 22,010              (145,667)         125,342         1,685               (1,077,808)          

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 15,047,766       4,523,884       238,757         19,810,407      184,944,263       

Net position, end of year 15,069,776$     4,378,217$     364,099$       19,812,092$   183,866,455$     

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Business-type Activities

31



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

 Water Sewer

 Non-Major 
Enterprise 

Funds 

 Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 

 Governmental 
Activities 

Internal Service 
Funds 

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users 4,326,717$    805,451$        317,477$        5,449,645$    -$                    
Receipts from interfund services provided -                  -                  -                  -                  4,314,418          
Payments to suppliers (2,374,494)     (303,822)        (108,671)        (2,786,987)     (1,151,872)         
Payments to employees (678,994)        (445,596)        (119,286)        (1,243,876)     (1,521,711)         

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,273,229      56,033            89,520            1,418,782      1,640,835          

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds 13,772            -                  40,246            54,018            11,897               
Transfers to other funds -                  -                  -                  -                  (18,030)              

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 
financing activities 13,772            -                  40,246            54,018            (6,133)                

Cash flows from capital and related  financing activities:
Grant revenue 242,500          -                  -                  242,500          -                      
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (710,180)        (212,657)        -                  (922,837)        (2,304)                
Principal paid (550,686)        (38,644)           -                  (589,330)        (10,689)              
Interest paid (441,470)        (12,057)           -                  (453,527)        (3,335)                

Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities (1,459,836)     (263,358)        -                  (1,723,194)     (16,328)              

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 4,270              1,674              481                 6,425              6,479                  

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 4,270              1,674              481                 6,425              6,479                  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (168,565)        (205,651)        130,247          (243,969)        1,624,853          

Cash and investments:
Beginning of year 3,229,523      1,501,811      257,076          4,988,410      3,505,330          

End of year 3,060,958$    1,296,160$    387,323$        4,744,441$    5,130,183$        

Cash and investments, end of year include:
Cash and investments 1,911,502$    1,296,160$    387,323$        3,594,985$    5,130,183$        
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agents 1,149,456      -                  -                  1,149,456      -                      

Total 3,060,958$    1,296,160$    387,323$        4,744,441$    5,130,183$        

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 252,229$        (121,312)$      84,615$          215,532$        (981,163)$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 563,938          176,303          -                  740,241          1,716,058          
Actuarial pension expense 76,668            47,918            -                  124,586          86,252               
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date (86,506)           (54,066)           -                  (140,572)        (97,321)              
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (47,132)           (978)                -                  (48,110)           (3,672)                
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -                  -                  1,650              1,650              1,088,013          
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 490,363          (12,096)           5,567              483,834          (8,933)                
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 5,349              3,175              (440)                8,084              11,655               
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable 9,475              10,118            315                 19,908            (180,206)            
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 8,845              6,971              (2,187)             13,629            10,152               

Total adjustments 1,021,000      177,345          4,905              1,203,250      2,621,998          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,273,229$    56,033$          89,520$          1,418,782$    1,640,835$        

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

32



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

Private-purpose
Trust Fund

Redevelopment 
Obligation Retirement 

Fund

Assets:
Cash and investments 463,182$                         
Restricted cash and investments
   with fiscal agents 401,575                           

Total assets 864,757                           

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 4,418                               
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 5,308                               
Interest payable 14,339                             
Compensated absences 5,386                               
Bonds payable - current 315,000                           
Bonds payable - noncurrent 1,415,000                        

Total liabilities 1,759,451                        

Net Position (Deficit):
Unrestricted (894,694)                          

Total net position (deficit) (894,694)$                       

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

June 30, 2015

33



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Private-purpose
Trust Fund

Redevelopment Obligation 
Retirement Fund

Additions:
Property taxes 738,195$                                    
Investment income 594                                              

Total additions 738,789                                      

Deductions:
General and administration 186,253                                      
Interest expense 92,672                                        

Total deductions 278,925                                      

Change in net position 459,864                                      

Net position (deficit), beginning of year (1,354,558)                                  

Net position (deficit), ending of year (894,694)$                                   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

34



City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

36



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The basic financial statements of the City of Sierra Madre, California (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America as 
applied to governmental agencies.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles.  The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below. 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The City was incorporated on February 2, 1907, under the general laws of the State of California. The 
City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services: police 
protection, fire suppression and prevention, emergency medical response, recreation programs, senior 
services, local transportation, planning and permit processing, water utility, public library, streets, parks, 
sewer and storm drain utility, and general government and administrative services. 
 
As required by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its 
component unit for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The component unit 
discussed below is included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or 
financial relationship with the City.  The entity is legally separate; however, the City of Sierra Madre 
elected officials have a continuing oversight responsibility over the Authority. 
 
An organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government if it is unable to adopt its budget, levy 
taxes or set rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval by the primary government.   In a 
blended presentation, a component unit’s balances and transactions are reported in a manner similar to 
the balances and transactions of the City.  Component units are presented on a blended basis when the 
component unit’s governing body is substantially the same as the City’s or the component unit provides 
services almost entirely to the City. 
 
Blended Component Units 
 
The Sierra Madre Public Financing Authority (Authority): 
 
The Authority is a joint powers authority organized pursuant to Government Code Section 6500 of the 
State of California. The Authority exists pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated 
November 1972, between the City and the Agency. Its purpose is facilitating the issuance of debt 
instruments, loans, and other financing to the City or Agency for the construction of public 
improvements.  It has no separate existence and has acted as a conduit between the issuer (the Agency 
and/or the City) and the underwriters. It was established as a vehicle to reduce local borrowing costs 
and promote greater use of existing and new financial instruments and mechanisms. City Council 
members, in concurrent sessions, serve as the governing board of the Authority.  Financial activity of the 
Authority has been blended into the City’s CAFR into various governmental and business-type activities 
and funds of the City as applicable. 
 
Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Sierra Madre Public Financing Authority.  

37



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity, (continued) 
 
Organizations Other Than Component Units 
 
Other governmental agencies, such as the County of Los Angeles, the Pasadena Unified School District, 
etc., provide services within the City.  However, each of these agencies is governed by an independently   
elected governing board.  Accordingly,  their financial information  is  not  included  within  the  scope  of  
this financial report, because the City Council does not  have a continuing oversight responsibility over  
them, nor are their financial operations closely related thereto. 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
The basic financial statements of the City are composed of the following: 

• Government-wide financial statements 
• Fund financial statements 
• Notes to basic financial statements 

 
Financial reporting is based upon all Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. 

 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The City's government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities and Changes in Net Position. These statements present summaries of governmental and 
business-type activities for the City accompanied by a total column.  Fiduciary activities of the City are 
not included in these statements. 
 
These basic financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets (as 
well as infrastructure assets) and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of 
Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are 
recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.  The Statement of Activities demonstrates the 
degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. 
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Certain 
indirect costs are included in the program expenses reported for specific functions. 
 
Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories: (1) 
charges for services, (2) operating grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and contributions.  
Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the Statement of Activities to present the net 
cost of each program. 
 
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regard to interfund 
activities. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except those 
representing internal balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, 
which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column.  

38



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (continued) 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds 
aggregated.  The City has presented all major funds that met the applicable criteria.  
 
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Accordingly, only current assets and current 
liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures 
and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available 
to finance expenditures of the current period.  Revenues are considered available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, 
generally 60 days after year-end.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting.  
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and other taxes associated with the current fiscal year are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
year.  Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any 
time requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this 
revenue source (within 60 days of year-end).  Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue 
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been 
met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue 
source (within 60 days or year-end).  All other revenue items are considered to measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government.  
 
The reconciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements are 
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund – Accounts for all financial resources of the general government except those required to 
be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Capital Projects Fund – Accounts for the housing assets 
transferred from the former Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) and the revenues and 
expenditures for the project area related to low and moderate income housing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (continued) 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for the major proprietary funds 
and the non-major funds aggregated. City maintains two proprietary fund types: enterprise funds and 
internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to account for services provided to businesses and 
individuals within the community. Internal service funds account for services provided by one City 
department to other departments. 
 
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included 
on the Statement of Net Position.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period when they are earned; expenses are recognized when 
they are incurred.  Unbilled service receivables are recorded as accounts receivable and as revenue 
when earned. 
 
Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary 
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses 
are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are 
reported as non-operating expenses. 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 
Water Fund – Accounts for the operations of the City’s water utility operations. 
 
Sewer and Storm Drain Fund – Accounts for the operations of the City’s sewer system and storm drain 
operations. 
 
Additionally, the City also reports Internal Service Funds. These funds account for the administrative 
services, insurance coverage and facilities, fleet and electronic equipment maintenance services, all 
which are provided to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. A separate column 
representing internal service funds is also presented in these statements. However, internal service 
balances and activities have been combined with the governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, (continued) 
 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Changes in 
Net Position. The City maintains two fiduciary fund types: a private-purpose trust fund and agency 
funds. Fiduciary fund types are accounted for according to the nature of the fund. The private-purpose 
trust fund uses the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. It is 
used to report trust arrangements under which principal and income benefit individuals, private 
organizations, and other governments. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and 
do not involve measurement of results of operations. Agency funds do not have a measurement focus.  
 
C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 
The City pools its available cash for investment purposes.  The City has defined cash and cash 
equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, cash with fiscal agent, as well as short-term 
investments with original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  Cash and cash 
equivalents are combined with investments and displayed as cash and investments.  Additionally, each 
fund’s equity in the City’s investment pool is treated as a cash equivalent, because the funds can deposit 
or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement Number 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one 
year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost.  All other investments are stated at fair 
value.  Market value is used as fair value for those securities for which market quotation are readily 
available or exceed cost.  However, if the liquidity needs of the City were to require that investments be 
sold at a loss subsequent to year-end, the decline in value would be recorded as a loss at year-end. 
 
The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities.  LAIF’s investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State 
of California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-Backed 
Securities are subject to market risk as to change in interest rates. 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Disclosures (an amendment of 
GASB No. 3), certain disclosure requirements, if applicable, are provided for deposit and investment risk 
in the following areas: 

 
• Inherent Rate Risk 
• Credit Risk 
• Overall 
• Custodial Credit Risk 
• Concentration of Credit Risk 
• Foreign Currency Risk 

 

41



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
D. Land Held for Resale 
 
Land Held for Resale in the Capital Projects Fund is an inventory of land owned by the City’s Housing 
Fund for low-moderate housing needs, which will be sold or leased to developers.  The land is recorded 
at the lower of acquisition cost or market.  Fund balances are reserved in amounts equal to the carrying 
value of land held for resale, because such assets are not available to finance the City’s current 
operations. 
 
E. Prepaid Expenses 
 
Certain payments to vendors such as insurance premiums, prepaid rents, and deposits for real property 
acquisitions reflect costs applicable to future periods and are recorded as prepaid and other assets in 
both government-wide and fund financial statements. These costs will be recognized in the period when 
services are received or when the City receives title to the real property.  
 
F. Property Taxes 
 
Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article 13B of the State Constitution at one 
percent of county-wide assessed valuations.  This one percent is allocated pursuant to State law to the 
appropriate units of local government.  Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which 
taxes have been levied provided that the revenues collected in the current period or will be collected 
within 60 days thereafter. 
 
The following dates relate to property tax levies and collections: 
 
  Lien Date  January 1 
  Levy Date  July 1 
  Due Dates  November 1 and February 1 
  Delinquent Dates December 10 and April 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
G. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost was not 
available. The City's capitalization policy is $5,000 and above for fixed assets; $10,000 and above for 
building improvements; $20,000 and above for buildings; and $50,000 and above for infrastructure   
assets.  Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
  Roadways Pavement AC   25 years 
  Street Appurtenances Bridges  40 years 
  Park Structures    25 years 
  Wastewater Manholes   60 years 
  Pipelines    60 years 
  Spreading Basins   50 years 
  Pump Stations    60 years 
  Meters     30 years 
  Pipelines    50 years 
  Pressure Reducing Stations  40 years 
  Fire Hydrants    50 years 
  Wells     50 years 
  Reservoirs    75 years 
  General Fixed Assets Buildings  50 years 
  Vehicles & Equipment   10 years 
 
H. Claims Payable  
 
The City records a liability to reflect an estimate of ultimate uninsured losses for both general liability 
claims (including property damage claims) and workers’ compensation claims.   
 
I. Compensated Absences 
 
All vested vacation and compensatory leave time is recognized as an expense and as a liability in the 
proprietary type funds at the time the liability vests.  Governmental fund types recognize the vested 
vacation and compensatory time as expenditure in the current year to the extent that it is paid during 
the year.  Accrued vacation and compensatory time relating to governmental funds is only included as a 
liability in the statement of net position as those amounts are payable from future resources and within 
the respective balance sheets for amounts relating to proprietary fund types. For governmental funds, 
compensated absences are primarily liquated by the City’s General Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
J. Net Position and Fund Balances 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements – In the government-wide financial statements, net position 
are classified in the following categories: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvements.  
 
Restricted Net Position - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition of “net 
investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position.” 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted net position is available to meet an expense, the City's policy is to 
apply restricted net position first. 
 
Fund Financial Statements – In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions.  The Statement is designed to improve financial reporting by 
establishing fund balance classifications that are easier to understand and apply.  GASB 54 became 
effective in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, and requires the City to report the governmental fund 
balances in the following categories: 
 
Nonspendable  - reflects  amounts  that  are  not  in  a spendable  form,  examples  of  which include 
inventory, prepaid  items, and other items legally or contractually required to remain intact,  such as the 
principal  of a permanent  endowment.  
 
Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external 
resource providers or through enabling legislation. 
 
Committed - includes amounts  that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by  a  formal  
action  of  the  government's  highest   level  of  decision-making   authority. Committed  fund  balance  
may be redirected  by the City to other purposes,  as long as, the original  constraints  are  removed  or  
modified  in  the  same  manner  in  which  they  were imposed,  that  is,  by  the  same  formal  action  of  
the  highest  level  of  decision-making authority. 
 
Assigned - comprises amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes. 
Assignments may be established either by the City or by a designee of the City, and are subject to 
neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraints. 
 
Unassigned - is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all amounts not contained in 
the other classifications.  Unassigned amounts are technically available for any purpose. 
 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned 
fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted fund balance first, committed second, 
then assigned fund balance, and finally unassigned fund balance.  

44



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
K. Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expenses) until then.  The City currently has pension related deferred outflows 
of resources. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial element, deferred inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time.  The City currently has pension related deferred inflows or 
resources. 

 
M. Implementation of New Pronouncements 
 
Effective July 1, 2014, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions. GASB 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to 
recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability. Governments will report in their 
financial statements a net pension liability that represents the difference between the total pension 
liability and the pension plans’ fiduciary net position.  This statement also enhances accountability and 
transparency through new note disclosures and required supplementary information.  As a result of the 
implementation of GASB 68, the beginning net position as of July 1, 2014 was restated per Note 7.B of 
the financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.  This Statement amends paragraph 137 of Statement 
68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for 
its pension liability.  This Statement will eliminate the source of a potential significant understatement of 
restated beginning net position and expense in the first year of implementation.  The provisions of this 
statement were applied simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement 68. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued) 
 
N. Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related 
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions 
to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.  CalPERS audited financial statements are publicly 
available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. 
 
GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain 
defined timeframes.  For this report the following timeframes are used. 
 

Valuation Date (VD)  June 30, 2013 
  Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2014 
  Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 
 
 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as 
follows: 
  

 

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments 19,490,792$     
Cash and investments with fiscal agent -restricted 1,149,456         

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities:
Cash and investments 463,182             
Cash and investments with fiscal agent -restricted 401,575             

Total cash and investments 21,505,005$     

  
 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015 consist of the following: 

Petty cash 2,016$               
Deposits with financial institutions 12,672,915       
Investments 8,830,074         

Total cash and investments 21,505,005$     
 

 
 

 

46



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 
 
The City's investment policy only authorizes investment in the local government investment pool 
administered by the State of California (LAIF).   The City’s investment policy does not contain any specific 
provisions intended to limit the City's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk. 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California 
Government Code and the City's investment policy. The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, if more restrictive) that address interest 
rate risk and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held 
by the fiscal agent that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the 
general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy. 
 
 
 

Investment Types 
Authorized by State Law

Authorized by 
Investment 

Policy
Maximum 
Maturity*

Maximum 
Percentage of 

Portfolio*

Maximum 
Investment in 
One Issuer*

Local Agency Bonds No 5 years None None
US Treasury Obligations Yes 5 years None None
US Agency Securities Yes 5 years None None
Bankers' Acceptances No 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper No 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements No 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements No 92 days 20% of base value None
Medium-Term Notes No 5 years 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities No 5 years 20% None
Bank/Time Deposits Yes 360 days None None
County Pooled Investment Funds Yes N/A None 5,000,000$    
Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) Yes N/A None 50,000,000$ 
JPA Pools (other investment pools) No N/A None None
Passbook Accounts Yes N/A None None  
*Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, 
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy.   
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by the bond 
trustee.  The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate 
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity

Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio

Maximum 
Investment in One 

Issuer

US Treasury Obligations None None None
US Agency Securities None None None
Money Market Funds None None None
Certificates of Deposit Secured by Collat None None None
Interest-bearing Deposit Accounts None None None
Investment Agreements None None None
Commercial Paper None None None
Municipal Bonds or Notes None None None
State Bonds or Notes None None None
Bankers' Acceptances 1 year None None
Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None   
 

Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates which will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of 
its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to 
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by 
timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing, or coming close to 
maturity evenly over time, as necessary to provide cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.  
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held 
by fiscal agent) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the 
distribution of the City’s investment by maturity: 

Investment Type Total 12 or less 13 -24 25 - 60

State investment pool 7,279,043$ 7,279,043$ -$       -$        
Held by fiscal agent:
  Federated treasury obligations 1,551,031   1,551,031    -         -           

Total 8,830,074$ 8,830,074$ -$       -$        

Investment Maturities (in months)

 

48



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the 
California Government Code, the City’s investment policy or debt agreements, and the actual rating as 
of year end for each investment type. 

 

Minimum
Legal Not

Total Rating AAA Rated

State investment pool 7,279,043$    N/A -$              7,279,043$  
Held by fiscal agent:
  Federated treasury obligations 1,551,031      N/A 1,551,031    -                 

Total 8,830,074$    1,551,031$  7,279,043$  

Investment Type

Ratings as of Year End

 
Concentration of Credit 
 
The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  As of June 30, 2015, there were no 
investments in any one issuer (other than US Treasury securities and external investment pools) that 
represents 5% or more of total City investments.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a 
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or 
investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires 
that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging 
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so 
waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must 
equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows 
financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value 
of 150% of the secured public deposits.  As of June 30, 2015, none of the City’s deposits with financial 
institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in uncollateralized accounts. 
 
 
 

49



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued) 
 
Investment in State Investment Pool 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California.  The fair value of the City's  investment in this pool is reported  in the accompanying  financial  
statements at amounts based upon the City's  prorata share of the fair value provided  by LAIF for the 
entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized 
cost basis. 
 
3. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
 
A. Due To/Due From 
 
At June 30, 2015, the City had the following short-term interfund receivables and payables: 
 

 

Receivable Payable Amount

General Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds 287,922$           

 
The interfund amounts are for short-term loans to cover temporary cash deficits.  
 
B. Transfers 
 
At June 30, 2015, the City had the following transfers: 
 

 

Transfers out Transfers in

General Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds 797,734$             
Non-Major Enterprise Funds 40,246                  
Water Fund 13,772                  

851,752               (A)

Non-Major Governmental Funds General Fund 131,445               

Non-Major Governmental Funds Non-Major Governmental Funds (5,688)                  

Non-Major Governmental Funds Internal Service Fund 11,897                  

Internal Service Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds 18,030                  

Total 1,007,436$         

 
 (A) Transfers of unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs   
accounted for in other accounts in accordance with budgetary authorization.  

50



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

4. FUND DEFICITS AND EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS 
 
A. Fund Deficits 
 
The following funds reported deficits in fund balance/net position at June 30, 2015: 
 

 

Deficit Balances
Non-Major Governmental Funds:

Open Space 255,697$               
Friends of the Library 979                          

 
The deficits in the funds are due to expenditures being incurred before the revenue has been received.  

B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 
 
The following funds reported expenditures in excess of appropriations: 
 

Appropriations Expenditures Variance
Non-Major Governmental Funds:

LSTA Teen Docent Grant -$                        1,272$                 (1,272)$      
Parking Maintenance District 23,712                   26,168                 (2,456)        
Santa Anita/Arno Assessment -                          2,060                   (2,060)        
Sewer Assessment District 814                         816                       (2)                
Development Fees 982,273                 1,083,318           (101,045)   
Development Fees Art in Public Places -                          4,000                   (4,000)        
Police Department Donations 2,093                      7,517                   (5,424)        
Fire Department Donations 6,000                      10,041                 (4,041)        
SM Community Foundation -                          1,416                   (1,416)         

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A. Governmental Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the governmental activities capital assets at June 30, 2015 is as follows: 
 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Adjustments Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 162,275,945$     -$              -$               -$               162,275,945$     
Trees 1,206,214            -                 -                  -                  1,206,214            

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 163,482,159       -                 -                  -                  163,482,159       

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 12,111,663          -                 -                  (143,723)       11,967,940          
Machinery and equipment 3,400,520            -                 60,694           (148,815)       3,312,399            
Infrastructure 21,599,141          885,838        337,587         (198,920)       22,623,646          

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 37,111,324          885,838        398,281         (491,458)       37,903,985          

Less accumulated depreciation 
Structures and Improvements (5,667,309)           -                 (746,474)       96,294           (6,317,489)           
Machinery and Equipment (1,680,190)           -                 (253,334)       145,024         (1,788,500)           
Infrastructure (9,680,158)           (610,128)      (818,323)       150,564         (10,958,045)        

Total Accumulated Depreciation (17,027,657)        (610,128)      (1,818,131)    391,882         (19,064,034)        
Total capital assets 

being depreciated, net 20,083,667          275,710        (1,419,850)    (99,576)          18,839,951          

Governmental activities,
capital assets, net 183,565,826$     275,710$     (1,419,850)$  (99,576)$       182,322,110$     

 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City’s governmental activities as 
follows: 
  
 

 

Governmental activities:
General government 93,796$                       
Public safety 171,237                       
Public works 1,390,375                   
Culture and recreation 162,723                       

Total 1,818,131$                 

 

52



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS, (continued) 
 
B. Business-type Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the business-type activities capital assets at June 30, 2015 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,483,250$          -$               -$               1,483,250$          

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 1,483,250            -                  -                  1,483,250            

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 821,290               -                  -                  821,290               
Machinery and equipment 1,158,515            5,641             -                  1,164,156            
Infrastructure 41,694,950          917,193         (203,142)       42,409,001          

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 43,674,755          922,834         (203,142)       44,394,447          

Less accumulated depreciation 
Structures and improvements (550,265)              (16,426)          -                  (566,691)              
Machinery and equipment (754,052)              (48,426)          -                  (802,478)              
Infrastructure (17,614,516)        (675,389)       135,828         (18,154,077)        

Total Accumulated Depreciation (18,918,833)        (740,241)       135,828         (19,523,246)        
Total capital assets 

being depreciated, net 24,755,922          182,593         (67,314)          24,871,201          

Business-type activities,
capital assets, net 26,239,172$       182,593$      (67,314)$       26,354,451$       

 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City’s business-type activities as 
follows: 
 

Business-type activities:
Sewer 176,303$                     
Water 563,938                       

Total 740,241$                     

 

53



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
A. Governmental Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the governmental activities long-term liabilities at June 30, 2015 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due within Due more than 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance one year one year

Governmental activities:
Capital Lease  $          539,654 -$               $        (80,080)  $      459,574  $   83,788  $       375,786 
Claims Payable           1,358,057                    -            (180,206)       1,177,851     197,000           980,851 
Compensated Absences              509,646         606,413          (509,646)          606,413     119,252           487,161 
Net Pension Liabil ity                          -       7,848,631                        -         7,848,631                 -          7,848,631 

Total governmental
    activities  $      2,407,357  $ 8,455,044  $      (769,932)  $10,092,469  $ 400,040  $    9,692,429 

 
Capital Lease 
In January 2010, the City entered into a capital lease agreement to fund certain current and future 
major equipment purchases in the general and fleet funds.  The outstanding balance of the capital lease 
payable was $459,574 at June 30, 2015.  
 
The calculation of the present value of the future lease payments are as follows:  
 

Amount of future lease payments Governmental 
for the year ending June 30, Activities

2016 105,066$           
2017 105,067              
2018 105,067              
2019 105,067              
2020 105,066              

Subtotal 525,333              
Less: amount representing interest (65,759)              
Present value of future lease payments 459,574$           

 
 

Accumulated depreciation on assets purchased through lease agreements are as follows: 
 

 

Assets:
Machinery and equipment 856,714$           
Less: accumulated depreciation (340,874)            

Total  515,840$           
 

 
 
 
 
 

54



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
B. Business-type Activities 
 
A summary of changes in the Business-type Activities long-term liabilities at June 30, 2015 is as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due within Due more than 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance one year one year

Business-type activities:
Water Revenue Refunding
   Bonds, Series 1998A 2,245,000$    -$              (405,000)$    1,840,000$   425,000$ 1,415,000$   
Water Revenue Parity 
   Bonds, Series 2003 6,750,000      -                -                 6,750,000     -             6,750,000      
Loan Payable to SGVMWD 1,019,812      -                (145,686)       874,126         145,688    728,438         
Capital Lease 260,419         -                (38,644)         221,775         40,433      181,342         
Compensated Absences 95,247            108,876       (95,247)         108,876                21,775             87,101 
Net Pension Liabil ity -                  1,172,785    -                 1,172,785                       -       1,172,785 
Total business-type
    activities 10,370,478$ 1,281,661$ (684,577)$    10,967,562$ 632,896$ 10,334,666$ 

 
 
Sierra Madre Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A-Original issue $6,740,000 
 
In May 1998, the City entered into an installment agreement with a component unit of the City, the 
Sierra Madre Financing Authority, to issue bonds totaling $6,740,000. The purpose of the Water 
Revenue Refunding Bonds was to assist the City in prepayment of its City  Loan  Agreement,  dated  
November 1,  1988,  by  and  between  the  City  and  the Authority.  These bonds mature annually 
through November 1, 2018 in amounts ranging from $200,000 to $495,000 as of November 1, 1999. The 
interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually on each May 1 and November 1, as of November 1, 1998. 
The interest rates of the bonds range from 3.65% to 5.00%. The bonds are secured by and payable solely 
from revenues of the City’s Water Enterprise Fund. The outstanding balance of the Water Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A was $1,840,000 at June 30, 2015. 
 
Annual debt service requirements on these bonds are as follows:  
 

  

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Totals

2016 425,000$        81,375$          506,375$        
2017 450,000          59,500            509,500          
2018 470,000          36,500            506,500          
2019 495,000          12,375            507,375          

1,840,000$    189,750$        2,029,750$    

 
 
 
 
 

55



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
B. Business-type Activities, (continued) 
 
Sierra Madre Water Revenue Parity Bonds, Series 2003 -Original issue $6,750,000 
 
In August 2003, the City entered into an installment agreement with a component unit of the City, the 
Sierra Madre Financing Authority, to issue bonds totaling $6,750,000. The purpose of the Water 
Revenue Refunding Bonds was to finance certain improvements to the water production, treatment and 
distribution system of the City.  These bonds mature annually through November 1, 2018 in amounts 
ranging from $310,000 to $625,000. The interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually on each May 1 
and November 1, as of November 1, 2003. The interest rates of the bonds range from 5.14% to 5.25%. 
The bonds are secured by and payable solely from revenues of the City's Water Enterprise Fund.  The 
bonds are subject to special mandatory redemption, mandatory sinking fund redemption and 
redemption from optional prepayment of installment payments prior to maturity. The outstanding 
balance of the Water Revenue Parity Bonds, Series 2003 was $6,750,000 at June 30, 2015. 
 
Annual debt service requirements on these bonds are as follows: 
 
   

 
Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2016 -$                 339,345$        339,345$        
2017 -                   339,345          339,345          
2018 -                   339,345          339,345          
2019 -                   339,345          339,345          
2020 310,000          331,595          641,595          

2021-2025 1,800,000      1,403,225      3,203,225      
2026-2030 2,315,000      890,935          3,205,935      
2031-2034 2,325,000      242,753          2,567,753      

6,750,000$    4,225,888$    10,975,888$  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
B. Business-type Activities, (continued) 
 
Loan Payable to San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District· $1,456,875 
 
The City has identified equipment needed to help assure a reliable water supply, by replacing its Mira 
Monte Reservoir and Booster Station ("Reservoir Project").  Therefore, the City entered into a loan 
agreement with the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District to fund a portion of the reservoir cost in 
the amount of $1,456,875.  Proceeds of the loan were disbursed to the City during the duration of the 
Reservoir Project on a reimbursement basis.  Payments are due in annual installments of $145,688 for 
ten years. Notice of Completion was March 15, 2009 and was approved by City Council on April 28, 
2009.  The SGVMWD has extended the first payment terms until July 1, 2012.  The outstanding balance 
of the loan payable to San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District was $874,126 at June 30, 2015. 
 
Annual debt service requirements on this loan are as follows: 
 

  

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Totals

2016 145,688$        -$                 145,688$        
2017 145,688          -                   145,688          
2018 145,688          -                   145,688          
2019 145,688          -                   145,688          
2020 145,687          -                   145,687          
2021 145,687          -                   145,687          

874,126$        -$                 874,126$        
 

Capital Lease 
 
In January 2010, the City entered into a capital lease agreement to fund certain current and future 
major equipment purchases in the sewer fund. The balance of the capital lease payable was $221,775 at 
June 30, 2015.  
 
The calculation of the present value of the future lease payments are as follows: 
 

Amount of future lease payments Business-type
for the year ending June 30, Activities

2016 50,701$              
2017 50,701                
2018 50,702                
2019 50,702                
2020 50,702                

Subtotal 253,508              
Less: amount representing interest (31,733)              
Present value of future lease payments 221,775$           

  

57



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued) 
 
B. Business-type Activities, (continued) 

 
Accumulated depreciation on assets purchased through lease agreements are as follows: 

Assets:
Machinery and equipment $401,418
Less: accumulated depreciation (140,496)            

Total  260,922$           
 

7. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES 
 
A. Fund Balance Classifications 
As the result of GASB 54 adoption, the City had set aside the following funds: 
 

   

Low & Moderate 
General Income Housing Non-Major 

Fund Fund Governmental Funds

Nonspendable 19,535$       -$                         -$                                 
Restricted for:

Land held for resale -                1,682,998              -                                   
Public Works -                -                           581,368                          
Community Development -                6                               1,405,010                       
Public Safety -                -                           44,316                             
Community Services -                -                           130,699                          
Street Projects -                -                           262,277                          
Debt Service -                -                           6,768                               

Committed to:
IT  Master Plan 25,000          -                           -                                   
Website Redesign 25,000          -                           -                                   
CAJPIA Retrospective  Claims 125,000       -                           -                                   
Integrated Library System 25,000          -                           -                                   
NPDES 213,500       -                           -                                   
Public Safety/City Hall Roofs 160,000       -                           -                                   
Exterior Library Paint 35,000          -                           -                                   
Street Resurfacing or Replacement 404,000       -                           -                                   
Ambulance Purchase 184,000       -                           -                                   
City Parking Lot Maintenance 45,000          -                           -                                   
Emergency Management & Response 39,000          -                           100,153                          
Community Services -                -                           65,000                             
Tree Maintenance -                -                           71,725                             
Donor Restrictions -                -                           424,158                          

Assigned to:
Fund Balance Policy for Cash Flows 4,608,278    -                           -                                   
Subsequent year's budget appropriation 525,000       -                           -                                   

Unassigned 1,021,355    -                           (256,676)                         
Total fund balance 7,454,668$ 1,683,004$            2,834,798$                    

 

58



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

7. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES, (continued) 
 
B. Change in Accounting Principle/Prior Period Adjustment 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund balances of the Gas Tax Fund and the Traffic Congestion Relief Fund have been restated to 
comply with the findings per the audit report issued by the State Controller’s Office on the Special Gas 
Tax Street Improvement Fund for fiscal years July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2012 and Traffic Congestion 
Relief Fund for fiscal years July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2011. The adjustment is between two non-
major governmental funds and has no impact on total non-governmental funds or government-wide 
statements. 

Governmental Funds: Gas Tax Fund

Traffic 
Congestion 
Relief Fund

Non-major 
Governmental 

Funds
Fund balance, beginning of year 16,230$            (44,667)$           3,002,503$      
Prior period adjustment (44,667)             44,667               -                     
Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated (28,437)$           -$                   3,002,503$      

 
 
The fund balance for the Water Fund has been restated to adjust for pre-purchased water held in the 
Main Basin cyclic storage.  The prepaid water was purchased in 2009, the balance at June 30, 2015 was 
$297,074.  The Water fund balance was also adjusted for purchased water in the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2014.  The City received the billing for this water purchase, calendar year 2014, in the fall on 2015. 
$331,589 of the calendar 2014 bill was attributed to FY 2014 water purchases. 
 
The fund balance for the facilities internal service fund was restated to adjust capital assets beginning 
balances to actual for prior year misclassifications of capital assets and disposals.  
  
As discussed in Note 10, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 effective July 1, 2014. GASB 68, 
among other provisions, requires governments providing defined pensions to recognize their long-term 
obligations for pension benefits as a liability.  Governments will report in their financial statements a net 
pension liability.  As a result of the implementation of GASB 68 and prior period adjustments, the effect 
on beginning net position is as follows:  
 

Proprietary Funds: Water
Sewer and 

Storm Drain

Governmental 
Activities 
Internal 

Service Funds
Net Position, beginning of year 15,895,592$    5,032,203$      185,691,721$  
Prior period adjustment (34,515)             -                     167,517            
Change in accounting principle (813,311)           (508,319)           (914,975)           
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 15,047,766$    4,523,884$      184,944,263$  

 
 
 
 

59



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

7. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES, (continued) 
 
B. Change in Accounting Principle/Prior Period Adjustment, (continued) 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The city also had a prior period adjustment to governmental capital assets for capital assets entries for 
the prior year that have no effect on fund financial statements but an effect on the government-wide 
statements. The prior period adjustments and the change in accounting principle have the following 
effect on the government-wide net position: 
 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Net position, beginning of year 197,183,050$  21,166,552$    218,349,602$  
Prior period adjustment 275,710            (34,515)             241,195            
Change in accounting principle (8,844,753)       (1,321,630)       (10,166,383)     
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 188,614,007$  19,810,407$    208,424,414$  

 
 
8. SELF-INSURANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 
A. Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement  
 
The City of Sierra Madre is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Authority).  The 
Authority is composed of 122 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers agreement 
pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq.  The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and 
administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, 
and to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage.  The California 
JPIA began covering claims of its members in 1978.  Each member government has an elected official as 
its representative on the Board of Directors.  The Board operates through a nine-member Executive 
Committee. 
 
B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority 
 
Each member pays an annual contribution to cover estimated losses for the coverage period.  This initial 
funding is paid at the beginning of the coverage period.  After the close of the coverage period, 
outstanding claims are valued.  A retrospective deposit computation is then conducted annually 
thereafter until all claims incurred during the coverage period are closed on a pool-wide basis.  This 
subsequent cost re-allocation among members based on actual claim development can result in 
adjustments of either refunds or additional deposits required. 
  
The total funding requirement for self-insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and pre-
funded through the annual contribution.  Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure 
(payroll) and experience (claims) relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool.  Additional 
information regarding the cost allocation methodology is provided below. 
 
 

60



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

8. SELF-INSURANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, (continued) 
 

B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority, (continued) 
 
Liability 
 
In the liability program claims are pooled separately between police and non-police exposures.  (1) The 
payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members.  A variable credibility 
factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight 
applied to losses within the formula.  (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $30,000 
for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first 
layer.  (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from $30,000 to $750,000 for each 
occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer.  
(4) Incurred costs in excess of $750,000 up to the reinsurance attachment point of $5 million are 
distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.  (5) Costs of 
covered claims from $5 million to $10 million are paid under a reinsurance contract subject to a $2.5 
million annual aggregate deductible.  The $2.5 million annual aggregate deductible is fully covered 
under a separate policy; as such no portion of it is retained by the Authority.  Costs of covered claims 
from $10 million to $15 million are paid under two reinsurance contracts subject to a combined $3 
million annual aggregate deductible.  The $3.0 million annual aggregate deductible is fully retained by 
the Authority.  (6) Costs of covered claims from $15 million up to $50 million are covered through excess 
insurance policies. 
 
The overall coverage limit for each member including all layers of coverage is $50 million per 
occurrence.  Costs of covered claims for subsidence losses are paid by reinsurance and excess insurance 
with a pooled sub-limit of $25 million per occurrence.  This $25 million subsidence sub-limit is composed 
of (a) $5 million retained within the pool’s SIR, (b) $10 million in reinsurance and (c) $10 million in excess 
insurance.  The excess insurance layer has a $10 million annual aggregate. 
 
Workers’ Compensation 
 
In the workers’ compensation program claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and 
fire) and non-public safety exposures.  (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the 
payroll of other members.  A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, which 
establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula.  (2) The 
first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $50,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a 
percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer.  (3) The second layer of losses 
includes incurred costs from $50,000 to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage 
of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer.  (4) Incurred costs in excess of $100,000 up to 
the reinsurance attachment point of $2 million are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation 
within the first and second loss layers.  (5) Costs of covered claims from $2 million up to statutory limits 
are paid under a reinsurance policy.  Protection is provided per statutory liability under California 
Workers’ Compensation Law.  Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $2 million.  
Coverage from $2 million to $5 million is purchased as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer’s 
Liability losses from $5 million to $10 million are pooled among members. 
 
 
 

61



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

8. SELF-INSURANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, (continued) 
 
C. Purchased Insurance 
 
Pollution Legal Liability Insurance  
 
The City of Sierra Madre participates in the pollution legal liability insurance program (formerly called 
environmental insurance) which is available through the Authority.  The policy covers sudden and 
gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the City of Sierra Madre.  
Coverage is on a claims-made basis.  There is a $50,000 deductible.  The Authority has a limit of $50 
million for the 3-year period from July 1, 2011 through July 1, 2014.  Each member of the Authority has a 
$10 million sub-limit during the 3-year term of the policy. 

 
Property Insurance  
 
The City of Sierra Madre participates in the all-risk property protection program of the Authority.  This 
insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. City of Sierra Madre property is 
currently insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the City of Sierra Madre to 
the Authority. City of Sierra Madre property currently has all-risk property insurance protection in the 
amount of $57,365,882.  There is a $5,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle 
insurance which has a $1,000 deductible.  Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not 
subject to retrospective adjustments. 
 
Earthquake and Flood Insurance  
 
The City of Sierra Madre purchases earthquake and flood insurance on a portion of its property.  The 
earthquake insurance is part of the property protection insurance program of the Authority. City of 
Sierra Madre property currently has earthquake protection in the amount of $29,256,981.  There is a 
deductible of 5% per unit of value with a minimum deductible of $100,000.  Premiums for the coverage 
are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments. 
  
Crime Insurance   
 
The City of Sierra Madre purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with a $2,500 
deductible.  The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority.  Premiums are paid annually and 
are not subject to retrospective adjustments. 
 
Special Event Tenant User Liability Insurance   
 
The City of Sierra Madre further protects against liability damages by requiring tenant users of certain 
property to purchase low-cost tenant user liability insurance for certain activities on agency property.  
The insurance premium is paid by the tenant user and is paid to the City of Sierra Madre according to a 
schedule.  The City of Sierra Madre then pays for the insurance.  The insurance is arranged by the 
Authority. 
 
 
 
 

62



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

8. SELF-INSURANCE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, (continued) 
 
D. Adequacy of Protection 
 
During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or 
judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage.  There were also no significant reductions in 
pooled or insured liability coverage in 2014-15. 
 
E. Retrospective Payments 
 
Retrospective deposits and refunds are cost allocation adjustments to prior coverage periods.  Some 
claims take many years to resolve and over time their estimated value changes. The retrospective 
adjustments are calculated annually and take into consideration all the changes in claim values that 
occurred during the most recent year.   
 
Beginning in 2010, the Authority began a transition from the retrospective funding model to a 
prospective one. With significant consideration being given to the current economic challenges facing 
local governments, the Executive Committee took action at its meeting on March 24, 2010, to 
temporarily defer payment on retrospective deposits owed to the Authority by members. Liability 
program retrospective balances owed to the pool were deferred from payment until July 1, 2013. 
Workers’ Compensation program retrospective balances owed to the pool were deferred from payment 
until July 1, 2015. Members with credit retrospective balances in either pooled program automatically 
received 25% of the balance as a credit against other charges on the annual invoice due July 1, 2012.  
Until December 31, 2012, members that owed retrospective balances to the liability pool could take 
advantage of the early repayment incentive program for the liability pool. Members that owe 
retrospective balances to the workers’ compensation pool have until December 31, 2015 to take 
advantage of the early repayment incentive program for the workers’ compensation pool.  
 
The City enrolled in the six year payment plan with a percentage fee of 2.115% for the Liability Program 
and made its first payment on July 1, 2013. Although the retrospective deposit balance will be paid off 
by July 1, 2019, the City will still be responsible to pay any cost allocation adjustments for the past 
claims until all the claims are closed, so we may see retrospective adjustments past 2019.  
 
As of June 30, 2015, the City has a retrospective deposit balance for the Liability Program of $782,588 
and $198,263 for the Workers’ Compensation Program. The retrospective deposit payables are reported 
as claims payable on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
The City has made available to its employees a deferred compensation plan (Plan). The Plan permits 
employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years.  All amounts of compensation deferred 
under the Plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to 
those amounts are held in such trust accounts for the exclusive benefit of the employee participants and 
their beneficiaries.  The accumulated assets of the Plan are not required to be reported in the 
accompanying financial statements.   
 
 
 

63



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
A. General Information About the Pension Plans 

 
Plan Descriptions 
 
The City of Sierra Madre contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan.  A full description of the 
pension plans regarding number of employees covered, benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, 
but not account purposes), and membership information are listed in the June 30, 2013 Annual Actuarial 
Valuation Report. Details of the benefits provided can be obtained in Appendix B of the actuarial 
valuation report. The actuarial valuation report and CalPERS’ audited financial statements are publicly 
available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications, at 
www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death 
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years 
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of total service 
are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty 
disability benefits after 5 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death 
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living 
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  
 
The Plans operate under the provisions of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL), the 
California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), and the regulations, procedures and 
policies adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The Plans’) authority to establish and amend 
the benefit terms are set by the PERL and PEPRA, and may be amended by the California state 
legislature and in some cases require approval by the CalPERS Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

64

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/


CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
A. General Information About the Pension Plans, (continued) 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2014 (measurement date) are summarized as 
follows: 

     

Miscellaneous

Hire date
Prior to

January 1, 2013
On or after

January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.5 % @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8% 8%
Required employer contribution rates 19.725% 19.725%

Safety

Hire date
Prior to

January 1, 2013
On or after

January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 3% @ 55 2.7% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 50 - 57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.4% to 3% 2.0% to 2.7%
Required employee contribution rates 9% 11.715%
Required employer contribution rates 32.798% 12.250%  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
A. General Information About the Pension Plans, (continued) 
 
Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are 
determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. For public agency cost-sharing plans 
covered by either the Miscellaneous or Safety risk pools, the Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based 
on the estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the average 
active employee contribution rate for the respective miscellaneous, safety plans and PEPRA safety plans 
is 8, 9 and 11.715 percent of annual pay, and the employer’s contribution rate is 19.725, 32.798 and 
12.250 percent of annual payroll. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are 
amended. Employer Contributions for the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 for the respective 
miscellaneous and safety plans are $461,100 and $523,181.  Employer Paid Member Contributions for 
the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 for the plans are $127,711, or an average rate of 6.87 
percent of annual payroll.  The actual employer payments of $984,281 made to CalPERS by the City of 
Sierra Madre during the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 differed from the City of Sierra 
Madre’s proportionate share of the employer’s contributions of $877,778 by $106,503, which is being 
amortized over the expected average remaining service lifetime in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing 
Multiple Employer Plan. 
 
B. Net Pension Liability 
 
The City of Sierra Madre’s net pension liability for the (each) Plan is measured as the total pension 
liability, less the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is 
measured as of June 30, 2014, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to 
June 30, 2014 using standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods 
used to determine the net pension liability is as follows. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
 
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the total pension liability 
was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2013 total pension liability. The June 30, 2013 and 
June 30, 2014 total pension liabilities were based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 
  
  

Miscellaneous Safety
Valuation Date June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Market Value of 

Assets
Market Value of 

Assets
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Salary Increases (1) Varies by entry 

age and service
Varies by entry 
age and service

Investment Rate of Return (2) 7.50% 7.50%
Mortality Rate Table (3)

Post Retirement Benefit Increase

(1) Annual increases vary by category, entry age, and duration of service
(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; includes inflation

Derived using CALPERS' membership 
data for all Funds
Contract COLA up to 2.75% until 
purchasing power protection allowance 
floor on purchasing power applies, 
2.75% thereafter

(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table 
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more 
details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.  
 
 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under 
Forms and Publications. 
 
 
 
 

67



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent for the Plan (each Plan). 
To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for 
each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be 
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run 
out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal 
bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent is applied 
to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress test results are presented in a detailed 
report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the 
GASB 68 section. 
 
According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption 
used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are 
assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have 
been 7.65 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability 
and net pension liability. This difference was deemed immaterial to the Public Agency Cost-Sharing 
Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan. Refer to the sensitivity of the net pension liability to 
changes in the discount rate section of this note, which provides information on the sensitivity of the 
net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. 
 
CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability 
Management review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the 
discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS 
expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations 
through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference 
in calculation until such time as they have changed their methodology. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows 
were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on 
time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term 
(11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term 
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return 
was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of 
benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected 
rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down 
to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

68



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
B. Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
The following table reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.  
 

Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation
Real Return 
Years 1 - 101

Real Return 
Years 11+2

Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Incom 19.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% (0.55%) (1.05%)

Total 100%

1 An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this  period
2 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this  period  

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Information about the pension plans’ assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, and fiduciary net position are presented in CalPERS’ audited financial statements, which 
are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications, at 
www.calpers.ca.gov. The plans’ fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis used by the pension plan, which is the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. Investments are reported 
at fair value. 
 
The plan fiduciary net position disclosed in the GASB 68 accounting valuation report may differ from the 
plan assets reported in the funding actuarial valuation report due to several reasons. First, for the 
accounting valuations, CalPERS must keep items such as deficiency reserves, fiduciary self-insurance and 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) expense included as assets. These amounts are excluded for 
rate setting purposes in the funding actuarial valuation. In addition, differences may result from early 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report closing and final reconciled reserves. 
 
 
 
 
 

69



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
 
The following table shows the Plans’ proportionate share of the net pension liability over the 
measurement period. 
 

Miscellaneous
Increase (Decrease)

Plan Total 
Pension Liability

(a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

(b)

Plan Net Pension 
Liability

(c ) = (a) - (b)
Balance at: 6/30/2013 (VD) 21,043,485$      15,138,982$      5,904,503$        
Balance at: 6/30/2014 (MD) 22,295,775$      17,655,460$      4,640,315$        
Net Changes during 2013-14 1,252,290$        2,516,478$        (1,264,188)$        

 
Safety

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Total 

Pension Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

(b)

Plan Net Pension 
Liability

(c ) = (a) - (b)
Balance at: 6/30/2013 (VD) 17,657,251$      12,285,375$      5,371,876$        
Balance at: 6/30/2014 (MD) 18,513,882$      14,134,286$      4,379,596$        
Net Changes during 2013-14 856,631$           1,848,911$        (992,280)$           
 
PEPRA Safety Police

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Total 

Pension Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

(b)

Plan Net Pension 
Liability

(c ) = (a) - (b)
Balance at: 6/30/2013 (VD) 7,475$               5,547$               1,928$               
Balance at: 6/30/2014 (MD) 7,838$               6,381$               1,457$               
Net Changes during 2013-14 363$                  834$                  (471)$                  
 
PEPRA Safety Fire

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Total 

Pension Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

(b)

Plan Net Pension 
Liability

(c ) = (a) - (b)
Balance at: 6/30/2013 (VD) 256$                  190$                  66$                    
Balance at: 6/30/2014 (MD) 268$                  219$                  49$                    
Net Changes during 2013-14 12$                    29$                    (17)$                    

 
 Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD). 

70



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
The City of Sierra Madre’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of 
the net pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2014, 
and the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update 
procedures. The City of Sierra Madre’s proportion of the net pension liability was determined by 
CalPERS using the output from the Actuarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided 
in the CalPERS Public Agency Cost-Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a publicly available 
report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications, at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
The City of Sierra Madre’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 
2013 and 2014 was as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety PEPRA Safety Police PEPRA Safety Fire
Proportionate Share - June 30, 2013 0.18020% 0.11228% 0.00004% 0.00000%
Proportionate Share - June 30, 2014 0.18775% 0.11676% 0.00004% 0.00000%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00756% 0.00448% (0.00000%) (0.00000%)  
 
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  
 
The following presents the City of Sierra Madre’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for 
each Plan as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as 
what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-
point lower (6.50 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate: 
 
         

      

Discount Rate - 1%
(6.50%)

Current Discount
Rate (7.50%)

Discount Rate + 1%
(8.50%)

Miscellaneous Plan's 
Net Pension Liability 7,598,134$                       4,640,315$                       2,185,607$                       
Safety Plan's Net 
Pension Liability 6,859,484$                       4,379,596$                       2,336,275$                       
PEPRA Safety Police 
Plan's Net Pension 
Liability 2,506$                               1,457$                               592$                                   
PEPRA Safety Fire 
Plan's Net Pension 
Liability 85$                                     49$                                     20$                                     

 
 
 
 
 
 

71

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/


CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, (continued) 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this disclosure. 
 
Recognition of Gains and Losses 
 
Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position 
are recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 
 
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. 
 
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 
 
 

Difference between projected 
and actual earnings 
 

5 year straight-line amortization 

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the average expected 
remaining service lives of all members that are provided 
with benefits (active, inactive and retired) as of the 
beginning of the measurement period 

 
 
The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service 
years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the Public Agency Cost-
Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (PERF C). 
 
The EARSL for the Plan for the 2013-14 measurement period is 3.8 years, which was obtained by dividing 
the total service years of 460,700 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of the active employees) by 
122,789 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, and retired). Note that inactive employees 
and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. Also note that total future service is based on 
the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event other than receiving a cash refund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
Miscellaneous Plan 
 
As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2013), the net pension liability for the plan is 
$5,904,503 (the net pension liability of the aggregate plan as of June 30, 2013 is $3,276,668,431). 
 
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the City of Sierra Madre 
incurred a pension expense of $518,993 for the Plan (the pension expense for the aggregate plan for the 
measurement period is $239,824,465). A complete breakdown of the pension expense is as follows: 
 
Miscellaneous Plan

Description
Risk Pool 
Amounts

Employer's 
Share

Percentage of 
Employer's 

Share
Service Cost 338,829,351$     478,445$          0.1412%
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 921,162,366       1,566,479         0.1701%
Recognized Differences between Expected and

Actual Experience -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Changes of Assumptions -                        -                     N/A
Employee Contributions (159,834,203)     (200,464)           0.1254%
Employer Paid Member Contributions -                        106,984            N/A
Projected Earnings on Pension Plan Investments (678,133,636)     (1,128,423)       0.1664%
Recognized Differences between Projected and

Actual Earnings on Plan Investments (182,199,413)     (303,182)           0.1664%
Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Portion of Adjustment due to

Differences in Proportions -                        3,452                 N/A
Recognized Difference Between  Contributions

and Proportionate Share of Contributions -                        (4,298)               N/A
Subtotal: Employer's Share of Expense

Components 239,824,465$     518,993            
Changes of Benefit Terms -                     

Employer's Proportionate Share of
Pension Expense 518,993$          

 
 
 
Note: Plan administrative expenses are not displayed in the above pension expense table. Since the expected 
investment return of 7.50 percent is net of administrative expenses, administrative expenses are excluded from the 
above table, but implicitly included as part of investment earnings. 
 
 

73



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, 

(continued) 
 
Safety Plan 
 
As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2013), the net pension liability for the plan is 
$5,371,876 (the net pension liability of the aggregate plan as of June 30, 2013 is $4,784,321,560). 
 
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the City of Sierra Madre 
incurred a pension expense of $433,828 for the Plan (the pension expense for the aggregate plan for the 
measurement period is $351,644,102). A complete breakdown of the pension expense is as follows: 
 
 

Description
Risk Pool 
Amounts

Employer's 
Share

Percentage of 
Employer's 

Share
Service Cost 369,638,880$     499,450$          0.1351%
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,251,259,652   1,307,390         0.1045%
Recognized Differences between Expected and

Actual Experience -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Changes of Assumptions -                        -                     N/A
Employee Contributions (131,938,305)     (273,116)           0.2070%
Employer Paid Member Contributions -                        20,727               N/A
Projected Earnings on Pension Plan Investments (897,207,655)     (909,837)           0.1014%
Recognized Differences between Projected and

Actual Earnings on Plan Investments (240,108,470)     (243,488)           0.1014%
Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Portion of Adjustment due to

Differences in Proportions -                        377                     N/A
Recognized Difference Between  Contributions

and Proportionate Share of Contributions -                        32,325               N/A
Subtotal: Employer's Share of Expense

Components 351,644,102$     433,828            
Changes of Benefit Terms -                     

Employer's Proportionate Share of
Pension Expense 433,828$          

 
 
 
Note: Plan administrative expenses are not displayed in the above pension expense table. Since the expected 
investment return of 7.50 percent is net of administrative expenses, administrative expenses are excluded from the 
above table, but implicitly included as part of investment earnings. 
 

74



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, 

(continued) 
 
PEPRA Safety Police Plan 
 
As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2013), the net pension liability for the plan is $1,928 
(the net pension liability of the aggregate plan as of June 30, 2013 is $4,784,321,560). 
 
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the City of Sierra Madre 
incurred a pension expense of $1,718 for the Plan (the pension expense for the aggregate plan for the 
measurement period is $351,644,102). A complete breakdown of the pension expense is as follows: 
 
 

Description
Risk Pool 
Amounts

Employer's 
Share

Percentage of 
Employer's 

Share
Service Cost 369,638,880$     15,286$            0.0041%
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,251,259,652   553                     0.0000%
Recognized Differences between Expected and

Actual Experience -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Changes of Assumptions -                        -                     N/A
Employee Contributions (131,938,305)     (13,040)             0.0099%
Projected Earnings on Pension Plan Investments (897,207,655)     (411)                   0.0000%
Recognized Differences between Projected and

Actual Earnings on Plan Investments (240,108,470)     (110)                   0.0000%
Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Portion of Adjustment due to

Differences in Proportions -                        (560)                   N/A
Subtotal: Employer's Share of Expense

Components 351,644,102$     1,718                 
Changes of Benefit Terms -                     

Employer's Proportionate Share of
Pension Expense 1,718$               

 
 
 
Note: Plan administrative expenses are not displayed in the above pension expense table. Since the expected 
investment return of 7.50 percent is net of administrative expenses, administrative expenses are excluded from the 
above table, but implicitly included as part of investment earnings. 
 
 
 
 
 

75



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, 

(continued) 
 
PEPRA Safety Fire Plan 
 
As of the start of the measurement period (July 1, 2013), the net pension liability for the plan is $66 (the 
net pension liability of the aggregate plan as of June 30, 2013 is $4,784,321,560). 
 
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the City of Sierra Madre 
incurred a pension expense of $3,813 for the Plan (the pension expense for the aggregate plan for the 
measurement period is $351,644,102). A complete breakdown of the pension expense is as follows: 
 
 

Description
Risk Pool 
Amounts

Employer's 
Share

Percentage of 
Employer's 

Share
Service Cost 369,638,880$     7,456$               0.0020%
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,251,259,652   19                       0.0000%
Recognized Differences between Expected and

Actual Experience -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Changes of Assumptions -                        -                     N/A
Employee Contributions (131,938,305)     (2,283)               0.0017%
Projected Earnings on Pension Plan Investments (897,207,655)     (14)                     0.0000%
Recognized Differences between Projected and

Actual Earnings on Plan Investments (240,108,470)     (4)                        0.0000%
Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position -                        -                     N/A
Recognized Portion of Adjustment due to

Differences in Proportions -                        (1,361)               N/A
Subtotal: Employer's Share of Expense

Components 351,644,102$     3,813                 
Changes of Benefit Terms -                     

Employer's Proportionate Share of
Pension Expense 3,813$               

 
 
 
Note: Plan administrative expenses are not displayed in the above pension expense table. Since the expected 
investment return of 7.50 percent is net of administrative expenses, administrative expenses are excluded from the 
above table, but implicitly included as part of investment earnings. 
 
 
 
 
 

76



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, 

(continued) 
 
As of June 30, 2015, the City of Sierra Madre has deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions as follows: 
 

        

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience -$                                      -$                                      

Changes of Assumptions -                                        -                                        
Net Difference between Projected and

Actual Earnings on Pension Plan
Investments -                                        (2,187,136)                          

Adjustment due to Differences in
Proportions 10,722                                 (5,378)                                  

Changes in employer's proportion and
differences between the employer’s
contributions and the employer’s
proportionate share of contributions 78,476                                 -                                        

Pension Contributions Subsequent to
Measurement Date 1,081,327                           -                                        

Total 1,170,525$                         (2,192,514)$                        
       
 
These amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the 2013-14 measurement period 
expense. The $1,081,327 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2016. Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 
 

Measurement Period Ended 
June 30:

 Deferred 
Outflows/(Inflows) of 

Resources 
2015 (516,849)$                                    
2016 (516,849)                                       
2017 (522,834)                                       
2018 (546,784)                                       
2019 -                                                 

Thereafter -                                                  
 
 
 

77



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (continued) 
 
E. Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2015, the City of Sierra Madre reported a payable of $49,791 for the outstanding amount of 
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
 
11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN 
 
The City provides pension benefits for all of its part-time employees through a defined contribution 
plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus 
investment earnings. The plan is administered as part of the Accumulation Program for Part-time and 
Limited-service Employees (The APPLE Plan) all part-time employees are eligible to participate from the 
date of employment. Federal legislation requires contributions of at least 7.5% to a retirement plan; the 
employee pays the entire 7.5% of the contribution. The contributions for each employee (and interest 
earned by the accounts) are fully vested immediately. The 457(b) pension plan for part-time employees 
was implemented in response to the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA 90) that required all 
part-time employees working for governmental agencies to  include these employees in Social Security 
(Old Age Security and Disability Insurance - OASDI) or a qualified alternative to Social Security covered 
under section IRC 3121. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City’s payroll covered by the plan was $580,499. The employees 
contributed 100% of the contributions.  
 
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
A. Grant Audits 
 
The City participates in Federal and State grant programs. No cost disallowance is expected, as a result 
of these audits; however, these programs are subject to further examination by the grantors.   
Expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be determined at this 
time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
B. Litigation 
 
The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal course of 
conducting City business. City management believes, based upon consultation with the City Attorney, 
that these cases, in the aggregate, are not expected to result in a material adverse financial impact on 
the City beyond that already accrued in the basic financial statements. Additionally, City management 
believes that sufficient resources are available to the City to cover any potential losses, should an 
unfavorable outcome arise. 
 
C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations 
 
The City has complied with the California State Controller's requirements by filing its audited financial 
statements in a timely manner. Management is working to prepare and file the audited financial 
statements to fulfill such regulatory requirements. 
 

78



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City administers a single-employer defined benefit plan which provides medical benefits to eligible 
retirees and their spouses. Medical coverage is currently provided through CalPERS as permitted under 
the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). This coverage requires the employee to 
satisfy the requirements for retirement under CalPERS. CalPERS retirement requires attainment of age 
50 with 5 years of State or public City service or approved disability retirement.  
 
Benefits provided: The City has participated in the CalPERS medical program since 1995 for all 
employees other than Police Officer’s Association (POA) employees, and since 1999 for POA employees. 
As such, the City is obligated to contribute toward the cost of retiree medical coverage for the retiree’s 
and spouse’s lifetime so long as they remain eligible for and covered by this medical program. The City 
provides additional benefits based on employee agreements beyond those required under PEMHCA. 
The following is a summary of these benefits:  
• All employees who retire from the City (including disability retirement) and continue coverage in the 

CalPERS medical program are eligible for the benefit provided in the PEMHCA resolutions.  
• Those resolutions provide for the City to contribute toward retiree premiums by multiplying 

together the following three items:  
o 5% times  
o The number of prior years the City has been contracted with PEMHCA times  
o The contribution the employer makes towards active employee health benefits 

 
The (direct) contribution provided by the City on behalf of active employees is $122 per month for 2015.  
 
• $122.00 for CEA (and other non-POA) retirees, calculated as 5% times 20 (years in CalPERS medical) 

times $122. 
• $97.60 for the POA retirees, calculated as 5% times 16 years times $122. 
 
As noted, this amount will increase until the contributions for retirees are equal to that for active 
employees.  
 
In addition to the benefits described above, the City also provides the following monthly subsidy toward 
retiree (single coverage) medical premiums until the retiree reaches age 65. 
 
• For CEA (and other non-POA) employees hired before October 15th 1995 and POA employees hired 

on or before December 22, 2011 who meet the requirements for CalPERS retirement (including 
industrial disability retirement), 5% times the number of years worked for the City times the lesser 
of the actual premium and the lowest cost HMO premium in the Los Angeles area region.  

• For CEA (and other non-POA) employees hired on or after October 15th, 1995 and POA employees 
hired after December 22, 2011 who retire (including disability retirement) at age 60 or older with at 
least 30 years of service with the City, 100% of the actual premium or the lowest cost HMO premium 
in the LA area region, whichever is less.  

 
The lowest cost HMO plan premium in the LA area region was $458.74 per month in 2015. 
 

79



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Funding Policy 
 
The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by 
the City Council. The City voluntarily prefunds its annual contribution requirement (i.e. to set aside funds 
in advance of when medical premiums become due). Amounts that are prefunded are deposited into a 
prefunding account with CalPERS' California Employer's Retiree Benefit Trust Program (“CERBT"), the 
prefunding plan under Government Code Section 22940 for prefunding health care coverage for 
annuitants. CERBT is a trust fund that is intended to perform an essential governmental function within 
the "meaning of Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code as an agent multiple-employer plan as 
defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 43 consisting of an 
aggregation of single-employer plans with pooled administrative and investment functions. Assets held 
in this trust are considered to be assets held in a fiduciary capacity on behalf of City employees and 
these assets accordingly have been excluded from the City's reported assets. The CalPERS CERBT 
publishes GASB 43 compliant Financial Statements, Notes, and Required Supplementary Information 
which may be obtained from its executive office at 400 "Q" Street, Sacramento, California 95811. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  
 
The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount 
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation (asset) for these benefits: 
 

Annual required contribution 53,739$             
Interest on net OPEB obligation (31,550)              
Adjustment to annual required contribution 97,884               

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 120,073             
Contributions made (56,337)              

Decrease in OPEB obligation (asset) 63,736               
Net OPEB obligation (asset), beginning of year (422,580)           
Net OPEB obligation (asset), end of year (358,844)$         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation, (continued) 
 
The City’s annual OPEB cost, percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation (asset) for 2015 and the preceding three years were as follows: 
 

% of Annual
Fiscal Annual Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Year Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation/(Asset)
6/30/2013 194,820          280,242          143.8% (296,796)             
6/30/2014 216,235          342,019          158.2% (422,580)             
6/30/2015 120,073          56,337            46.9% (358,844)              

 
  
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial date, the funded status of the plan was as follows: 
 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 1,181,306$       
Actuarial value of plan assets 896,496             

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 284,810$           

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets / AAL) 75.9%
Covered payroll (active plan members) 3,688,531$       
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 7.7%  

 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for the benefits. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the 
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between employer and plan 
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

81



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

13. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS, (continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions, (continued) 
 
The ARC for the plan for the current fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was determined as part of the July 
1, 2013 actuarial valuation. The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the 
Entry Age Normal Cost, Level Percent of Pay Method. The actuarial assumptions included 1) a 7.5% 
investment rate of return, which is the assumed rate of the expected long-term investment returns on 
plan assets calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, 2) an annual 
healthcare cost trend rate of 10% initially, reduced by decrements of 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate 
of 4.5% in the tenth year and 3) a 3.25% annual increase in salaries. The actuarial value of assets is set 
equal to the reported market value of assets. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of 
payroll over a closed 10-year period, commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. The 
remaining amortization period at June 30, 2015 is 5 years. 
 
14. SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
 
Successor Agency Long-Term Debt 
 
The debt of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2015 is as follows: 
 
 

Beginning Ending Due within Due more than 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance one year one year

Successor agency:
Refunding Bond
   Series 1998A 2,030,000$       -$              (300,000)$       1,730,000$   315,000$ 1,415,000$    
Compensated Absences                   7,037             2,234               (3,885)               5,386          1,077                4,309 

Total successor agency  $      2,037,037  $         2,234  $      (303,885)  $   1,735,386  $ 316,077  $    1,419,309 

 
 
 
Sierra Madre Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A - Original Issue $5,175,000 
 
In May 1998, the Sierra Madre Financing Authority issued the Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 1998A on behalf of the Sierra Madre Community Redevelopment Agency in prepayment of its 
Agency Loan Agreement dated November 1, 1988, by and between the Agency and the Authority.  
These bonds mature annually through November 1, 2019 in the amounts ranging from $155,000 to 
$380,000 as of November 1, 1998. The interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually on May 1 and 
November 1, as of November 1, 1999.  The bonds are special obligations of the Authority secured by and 
payable solely as of the tax rate of the Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A ranging 
from 3.8% to 5.0%.  The bonds are subject to mandatory sinking redemption and redemption from 
optional loan prepayments prior to maturity. The outstanding balance of the Tax Increment Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A was $1,730,000 at June 30, 2015.   
 
 
 
 

82



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 

 

14. SUCCESSOR AGENCY, (continued) 
 

Successor Agency Long-Term Debt, (continued) 
 

Annual debt service requirements on these bonds are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Totals

2016 315,000$        78,625$          393,625$        
2017 330,000          62,500            392,500          
2018 345,000          45,625            390,625          
2019 360,000          28,000            388,000          
2020 380,000          9,500               389,500          

1,730,000$    224,250$        1,954,250$    

  
 
 
 
 

83



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

84



City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2015 
 
 
 
 

85



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 

86



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

1.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (PERS) 
 
Schedule of the Local Government's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date
Last 10 Years*

Miscellaneous Plan

Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability1 0.07457%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 4,640,315$           

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll2 2,550,076$           

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a percentage of
its Covered-Employee Payroll 181.97%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of 
the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 79.19%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contributions3,4 477,433$               

1 Proportion of the net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes
both the Miscellaneous and Safety Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool.
2 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on the total payroll of employees that are
provided pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.
3 The term Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) as used in this line denotes the aggregate risk pool’s FNP at
June 30, 2014 less the sum of all employers’ additional side fund contributions made during the
measurement period.
4 The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions
made by the employer during the Measurement Period. The plan’s proportionate share of
aggregate contributions is based on the plan’s proportion of Fiduciary Net Position shown on line 5
of the table above as well as any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by
the employer during the measurement period.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore,
only one year is shown.  

87



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

Schedule of Plan Contributions
Last 10 Years*

Miscellaneous Plan

Measurement Period 2013-14

Actuarially Determined Contribution 477,964$               
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (477,964)               
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                        

Covered-Employee Payroll 2,550,076$           

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 18.74%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: None

Change in Assumptions: None

1 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on the total payroll of employees that 
are provided pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore,
only one year is shown.

 
 
 

88



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

Schedule of the Local Government's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date
Last 10 Years*

Safety Plan

Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability1 0.07038%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 4,379,596$           

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll2 1,773,489$           

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a percentage of
its Covered-Employee Payroll 246.95%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of 
the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 76.34%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contributions3,4 400,158$               

1 Proportion of the net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes
both the Miscellaneous and Safety Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool.
2 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on the total payroll of employees that are
provided pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.
3 The term Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) as used in this line denotes the aggregate risk pool’s FNP at
June 30, 2014 less the sum of all employers’ additional side fund contributions made during the
measurement period.
4 The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions
made by the employer during the Measurement Period. The plan’s proportionate share of
aggregate contributions is based on the plan’s proportion of Fiduciary Net Position shown on line 5
of the table above as well as any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by
the employer during the measurement period.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore,
only one year is shown.  

89



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

Schedule of Plan Contributions
Last 10 Years*

Safety Plan

Measurement Period 2013-14

Actuarially Determined Contribution 509,077$                
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (509,077)                 
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                         

Covered-Employee Payroll 1,773,489$            

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 28.70%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: None

Change in Assumptions: None

1 Covered-Employee Payroll  represented above is based on the total payroll  of employees that are provided 
pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore, only one
year is shown.

 
 
 
 

90



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

Schedule of the Local Government's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date
Last 10 Years*

PEPRA Safety Fire Plan

Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability1 0.00000%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 49$                         

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll2 28,408$                 

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a percentage of
its Covered-Employee Payroll 0.17%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of 
the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 81.72%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contributions3,4 6$                            

1 Proportion of the net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes
both the Miscellaneous and Safety Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool.
2 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on the total payroll of employees that are
provided pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.
3 The term Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) as used in this line denotes the aggregate risk pool’s FNP at
June 30, 2014 less the sum of all employers’ additional side fund contributions made during the
measurement period.
4 The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions
made by the employer during the Measurement Period. The plan’s proportionate share of
aggregate contributions is based on the plan’s proportion of Fiduciary Net Position shown on line 5
of the table above as well as any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by
the employer during the measurement period.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore,
only one year is shown.  

91



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

Schedule of Plan Contributions
Last 10 Years*

PEPRA Safety Fire Plan

Measurement Period 2013-14

Actuarially Determined Contribution 2,253$                   
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (2,253)                    
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                        

Covered-Employee Payroll 28,408$                 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 7.93%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: None

Change in Assumptions: None

1 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on the total payroll of employees that 
are provided pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore,
only one year is shown.

 
 
 

92



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

Schedule of the City of Sierra Madre's Proportionate Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability and 
Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date
Last 10 Years*

PEPRA Safety Police Plan

Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability1 0.00002%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 1,457$                   

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll2 58,244$                 

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a percentage of
its Covered-Employee Payroll 2.50%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of 
the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 81.41%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contributions3,4 181$                       

1 Proportion of the net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes
both the Miscellaneous and Safety Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool.
2 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on the total payroll of employees that are
provided pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.
3 The term Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) as used in this line denotes the aggregate risk pool’s FNP at
June 30, 2014 less the sum of all employers’ additional side fund contributions made during the
measurement period.
4 The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions
made by the employer during the Measurement Period. The plan’s proportionate share of
aggregate contributions is based on the plan’s proportion of Fiduciary Net Position shown on line 5
of the table above as well as any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by
the employer during the measurement period.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore,
only one year is shown.  

93



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

Schedule of Plan Contributions
Last 10 Years*

PEPRA Safety Police Plan

Measurement Period 2013-14

Actuarially Determined Contribution 12,868$                 
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (12,868)                  
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                        

Covered-Employee Payroll 58,244$                 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 22.09%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in Benefit Terms: None

Change in Assumptions: None

1 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on the total payroll of employees that 
are provided pensions through the pension plan in accordance with GASB 68.

* Measurement period 2013-14 (fiscal year 2015) was the 1st year of implementation, therefore,
only one year is shown.

 
 
2.  OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE CITY’S PLAN 
(Most recent information available) 

 
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL

Actuarial Liability Unfunded as a % of
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

1/1/2010 -$              1,456,106$  1,456,106$  0.0% 4,641,533$  31.4%
7/1/2011 361,594        1,162,355    800,761        31.1% 3,879,418    20.6%
7/1/2013 896,496        1,181,306    284,810        75.9% 3,688,531    7.7%  

 

94



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the year ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

3. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
The City adopts an annual budget prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting for 
governmental funds. The City Manager or a designee is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts 
between the accounts of any department. Revisions that alter the total appropriations of any 
department or fund may be approved by the City Council. Prior year appropriations lapse unless they 
are approved for carryover into the following fiscal year. Expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations at the program level. Reserves for encumbrances are not recorded by the City. 
 
 

95



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 4,907,850$      5,222,850$      5,082,813$      (140,037)$          
Other taxes 3,066,495        3,113,595        3,170,560        56,965                
Charges for services 199,345           187,345           212,175           24,830                
Intergovernmental 3,856               5,856               6,511               655                     
Licenses and permits 396,097           396,097           408,778           12,681                
Fines and forfeitures 220,399           237,399           223,072           (14,327)              
Investment income 5,073               10,073             1,114               (8,959)                 
Miscellaneous 9,022               205,022           111,533           (93,489)              

Total revenues 8,808,137        9,378,237        9,216,556        (161,681)            

Expenditures:
Current:

General government:
Administrative Services 1,580,229        1,573,229        1,518,900        54,329                
Elected and Appointed 109,523           109,523           86,429             23,094                
  Total general government 1,689,752        1,682,752        1,605,329        77,423                

Public safety:
Police 3,905,106        3,865,108        3,387,335        477,773              
Fire 921,282           1,046,282        1,048,870        (2,588)                 
  Total public safety 4,826,388        4,911,390        4,436,205        475,185              

Public works 556,447           476,447           509,413           (32,966)              
Culture and recreation:

Community Services 1,067,865        202,323           199,135           3,188                  
Library Services 794,080           781,080           737,833           43,247                
  Total culture and recreation 1,861,945        983,403           936,968           46,435                

Total expenditures 8,934,532        8,053,992        7,487,915        566,077              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
   over (under) expenditures (126,395)          1,324,245        1,728,641        404,396              

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 99,911             99,911             131,445           31,534                
Transfers out (819,323)          (899,323)          (851,752)          47,571                

Total other financing sources (uses) (719,412)          (799,412)          (720,307)          79,105                

Net change to fund balance (845,807)          524,833           1,008,334        483,501              

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,446,334        6,446,334        6,446,334        -                      

Fund balance, end of year 5,600,527$      6,971,167$      7,454,668$      483,501$           

96



City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2015 
 
 
 

97



Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds by Fund Type

Special Revenue 
Funds

Capital Projects 
Funds

Citywide Debt 
Service Fund

Total Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

Assets:
Cash and investments 3,668,161$        -$                    6,768$                3,674,929$            
Receivables:

Accounts 21,679                -                      -                      21,679                    
Taxes 38,247                -                      -                      38,247                    

Due from other agencies 11,992                -                      -                      11,992                    
Total assets 3,740,079$        -                      6,768$                3,746,847$            

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 335,948$           -$                    -$                    335,948$               
Accrued payroll and
   related liabilities 58,604                -                      -                      58,604                    
Due to other funds 287,922              -                      -                      287,922                 
Deposits and retentions 229,575              -                      -                      229,575                 

Total liabilities 912,049              -                      -                      912,049                 

Fund balances:
Restricted 2,423,670          -                      6,768                  2,430,438              
Committed 661,036              -                      -                      661,036                 
Unassigned (256,676)            -                      -                      (256,676)                

Total fund balances 2,828,030          -                      6,768                  2,834,798              

Total liabilities and fund balances 3,740,079$        -$                    6,768$                3,746,847$            

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

June 30, 2015

98



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Governmental Funds by Fund Type
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue 
Funds

Capital 
Projects Funds

Citywide Debt 
Service Fund

Total Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds

Revenues:
Property taxes 181,658$           -$                 -$                   181,658$               
Charges for services 568,020              -                    91,042               659,062                 
Intergovernmental 1,067,386          -                    -                     1,067,386              
Licenses and permits 610,193              -                    -                     610,193                 
Investment income 4,274                  6                       -                     4,280                      
Miscellaneous 149,277              -                    -                     149,277                 

Total revenues 2,580,808          6                       91,042               2,671,856              

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 67,606                -                    -                     67,606                    
Public safety 946,191              -                    -                     946,191                 
Public works 1,161,282          135                   -                     1,161,417              
Development 1,019,712          -                    -                     1,019,712              
Culture and recreation 226,015              -                    -                     226,015                 

Debt Service:
Principal -                      -                    69,391               69,391                    
Interest -                      -                    21,651               21,651                    

Total expenditures 3,420,806          135                   91,042               3,511,983              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (839,998)            (129)                 -                         (840,127)                

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 815,764              (5,688)              -                     810,076                 
Transfers out (133,172)            (4,482)              -                     (137,654)                

Total other financing sources (uses) 682,592              (10,170)            -                     672,422                 

Net change to fund balances (157,406)            (10,299)            -                     (167,705)                

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated 2,985,436          10,299             6,768                 3,002,503              

Fund balances, end of year 2,828,030$        -$                 6,768$               2,834,798$            

99



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Grant Funds
 Assessment 

Funds
Other Special 

Revenue Funds
Total Special 

Revenue Funds

Assets:
Cash and investments 100,153$              458,512$              3,109,496$           3,668,161$           
Receivables:

Accounts -                         -                         21,679                   21,679                   
Taxes -                         3,396                     34,851                   38,247                   

Due from other agencies 11,992                   -                         -                         11,992                   
Total assets 112,145$              461,908$              3,166,026$           3,740,079$           

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                       4,719$                   331,229$              335,948$              
Accrued payroll and
   related liabilities -                         -                         58,604                   58,604                   
Due to other funds 11,992                   -                         275,930                 287,922                 
Deposits and retentions -                         -                         229,575                 229,575                 

Total liabilities 11,992                   4,719                     895,338                 912,049                 

Fund balances:
Restricted -                         457,189                 1,966,481             2,423,670             
Committed 100,153                 -                         560,883                 661,036                 
Unassigned -                         -                         (256,676)               (256,676)               

Total fund balances 100,153                 457,189                 2,270,688             2,828,030             

Total liabilities and fund balances 112,145$              461,908$              3,166,026$           3,740,079$           

June 30, 2015

100



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Grant Funds
Assessment 

Funds
Other Special 

Revenue Funds
Total Special 

Revenue Funds

Revenues:
Property taxes -$                 181,658$        -$                    181,658$            
Charges for services -                   -                   568,020             568,020               
Intergovernmental 1,916               -                   1,065,470          1,067,386           
Licenses and permits -                   -                   610,193             610,193               
Investment income -                   585                  3,689                  4,274                   
Miscellaneous -                   -                   149,277             149,277               

Total revenues 1,916               182,243          2,396,649          2,580,808           

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                   -                   67,606               67,606                 
Public safety -                   -                   946,191             946,191               
Public works -                   83,364             1,077,918          1,161,282           
Development -                   -                   1,019,712          1,019,712           
Culture and recreation 1,272               -                   224,743             226,015               

Total expenditures 1,272               83,364             3,336,170          3,420,806           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures 644                  98,879             (939,521)            (839,998)             

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 822                  22,101             792,841             815,764               
Transfers out (16,350)            -                   (116,822)            (133,172)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (15,528)            22,101             676,019             682,592               

Net change to fund balances (14,884)            120,980          (263,502)            (157,406)             

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated 115,037           336,209          2,534,190          2,985,436           

Fund balances, end of year 100,153$        457,189$        2,270,688$        2,828,030$         

101



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Grants

FMAG-Santa 
Anita Fire

Federal Transit 
Authority

Assets:
Cash and investments 100,153$           -$                    
Due from other agencies -                      -                      

Total assets 100,153$           -$                    

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Due to other funds -                      -                      
Total liabilities -                      -                      

Fund balances:
Committed 100,153              -                      

Total fund balances 100,153              -                      

Total liabilities and fund balances 100,153$           -$                    

June 30, 2015

102



2011 Windstorm
LA County Tree 

Mitigation Grant
Local History 
State Grant

LSTA Teen 
Docent Grant

Total Special 
Revenue-Grant 

Funds

-$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    100,153$              
-                      11,992                -                      -                      11,992                   
-$                    11,992$              -$                    -$                    112,145$              

-                      11,992                -                      -                      11,992                   
-                      11,992                -                      -                      11,992                   

-                      -                      -                      -                      100,153                 
-                      -                      -                      -                      100,153                 

-$                    11,992$              -$                    -$                    112,145$              

103



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Grants
For the year ended June 30, 2015

FMAG-Santa 
Anita Fire

Federal Transit 
Authority 2011 Windstorm

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total revenues -                      -                      -                      

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation -                      -                      -                      
Total expenditures -                      -                      -                      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures -                      -                      -                      

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      
Transfers out -                      (11,897)              (4,377)                 

Total other financing sources (uses) -                      (11,897)              (4,377)                 

Net change to fund balances -                      (11,897)              (4,377)                 

Fund balances, beginning of year 100,153              11,897                4,377                  

Fund balances, end of year 100,153$           -$                    -$                    

104



LA County Tree 
Mitigation Grant

Local History 
Grant

LSTA Teen 
Docent Grant

Total Special 
Revenue-Grant 

Funds

-$                    -$                    1,916$                1,916$                  
-                      -                      1,916                  1,916                    

-                      -                      1,272                  1,272                    
-                      -                      1,272                  1,272                    

-                      -                      644                     644                        

-                      822                     -                      822                        
-                      -                      (76)                      (16,350)                 
-                      822                     (76)                      (15,528)                 

-                      822                     568                     (14,884)                 

-                      (822)                    (568)                    115,037                

-$                    -$                    -$                    100,153$              

105



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Assessments

Bonita Sewer 
Assessment 

District

Central 
Business 

Assessment 
District

Fane/Winwood 
Assessment 

District
Lighting 

District #1

Assets:
Cash and investments 11,241$           407$                 13,038$               129,249$         
Taxes receivable -                    55                     -                       453                   

Total assets 11,241$           462$                 13,038$               129,702$         

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                 462$                 142$                    577$                 
Total liabilities -                    462                   142                      577                   

Fund balances:
Restricted 11,241             -                    12,896                 129,125           

Total fund balances 11,241             -                    12,896                 129,125           

Total liabilities and fund balances 11,241$           462$                 13,038$               129,702$         

June 30, 2015

106



Lighting 
District Zone A

Lighting 
District Zone B

Parking 
Maintenance 

District

Santa 
Anita/Arno 

Maintenance 
District

Sewer 
Assessment 

District
Sierra Madre 

CFD

Total Special 
Revenue-

Assessment Funds

117,985$         136,578$         1,244$             171$                 28,273$           20,326$           458,512$              
551                   1,546               200                   -                    591                   -                    3,396                    

118,536$         138,124$         1,444$             171$                 28,864$           20,326$           461,908$              

331$                 1,592$             1,444$             171$                 -$                 -$                 4,719$                  
331                   1,592               1,444               171                   -                    -                    4,719                    

118,205           136,532           -                    -                    28,864             20,326             457,189                
118,205           136,532           -                    -                    28,864             20,326             457,189                

118,536$         138,124$         1,444$             171$                 28,864$           20,326$           461,908$              

  

107



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Assessments
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Bonita Sewer 
Assessment 

District

Central 
Business 

Assessment 
District

Fane/Winwood 
Assessment 

District
Lighting 

District #1

Revenues:
Property taxes 10,291$           5,356$             -$                    37,999$           
Investment income 14                     -                    17                       166                   

Total revenues 10,305             5,356               17                       38,165             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 10,324             6,135               2,542                  8,787               
Total expenditures 10,324             6,135               2,542                  8,787               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (19)                    (779)                 (2,525)                 29,378             

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                    779                   -                      -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    779                   -                      -                    

Net change to fund balances (19)                    -                    (2,525)                 29,378             

Fund balances, beginning of year 11,260             -                    15,421                99,747             

Fund balances, end of year 11,241$           -$                 12,896$              129,125$         

108



Lighting 
District Zone A

Lighting 
District Zone B

Parking 
Maintenance 

District

Santa 
Anita/Arno 

Maintenance 
District

Sewer 
Assessment 

District
Sierra Madre 

CFD

Total Special 
Revenue-

Assessment Funds

44,316$           60,898$           8,917$             -$                 7,037$             6,844$             181,658$              
151                   175                   -                    -                    36                     26                     585                        

44,467             61,073             8,917               -                    7,073               6,870               182,243                

4,452               22,080             26,168             2,060               816                   -                    83,364                  
4,452               22,080             26,168             2,060               816                   -                    83,364                  

40,015             38,993             (17,251)            (2,060)              6,257               6,870               98,879                  

-                    -                    17,251             4,071               -                    -                    22,101                  
-                    -                    17,251             4,071               -                    -                    22,101                  

40,015             38,993             -                    2,011               6,257               6,870               120,980                

78,190             97,539             -                    (2,011)              22,607             13,456             336,209                

118,205$         136,532$         -$                 -$                 28,864$           20,326$           457,189$              

109



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Other

Development 
Fees

Development 
Impact Fees

Development 
Fees Art in 

Public Places
DUI 

Enforcement

Assets:
Cash and investments 475,487$         1,398,001$      57,789$           7,015$             
Receivables:

Accounts -                    -                    -                    -                    
Taxes -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total assets 475,487$         1,398,001$      57,789$           7,015$             

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 270,235$         -$                 -$                 -$                 
Accrued payroll and
    related liabilities 26,457             -                    -                    -                    
Due to other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    
Deposits and retentions 178,795           50,780             -                    -                    

Total liabilities 475,487           50,780             -                    -                    

Fund balances:
Restricted -                1,347,221    57,789          7,015            
Committed -                -                -                -                
Unassigned -                -                -                -                

Total fund balances -                    1,347,221        57,789             7,015               

Total liabilities and fund balances 475,487$         1,398,001$      57,789$           7,015$             

June 30, 2015

110



Narcotics 
Enforcement

Police 
Department 
Donations

Public Safety 
Augmentation 

Fund
State COPS 

Grant

Emergency 
Medical 
Services

Fire 
Department 
Donations

Community 
Arts 

Commission

449$                 19,312$           -$                   38,219$           29,700$           24,436$           6,159$             

-                    -                    -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    20,233               14,618             -                    -                    -                    
449$                 19,312$           20,233$             52,837$           29,700$           24,436$           6,159$             

-$                 4,895$             -$                   10,709$           11,071$           -$                 -$                 

-                    -                    -                     5,276               18,629             -                    -                    
-                    -                    20,233               -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    4,895               20,233               15,985             29,700             -                    -                    

449               -                -                  36,852          -                -                -                
-                14,417          -                  -                -                24,436          6,159            
-                -                -                  -                -                -                -                
449                   14,417             -                     36,852             -                    24,436             6,159               

449$                 19,312$           20,233$             52,837$           29,700$           24,436$           6,159$             
(continued)

  

111



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Other, Continued
June 30, 2015

Dog Park

Recreation 
Department 
Donations

Local 
Transportation 

Prop A Open Space

Assets:
Cash and investments 9,029$             45,090$           142,319$            -$                 
Receivables:

Accounts -                    -                    -                      -                    
Taxes -                    -                    -                      -                    

Total assets 9,029$             45,090$           142,319$            -$                 

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                 -$                 11,620$              -$                 
Accrued payroll and
    related liabilities -                    -                    -                      -                    
Due to other funds -                    -                    -                      255,697           
Deposits and retentions -                    -                    -                      -                    

Total liabilities -                    -                    11,620                255,697           

Fund balances:
Restricted -                -                130,699           -                
Committed 9,029            45,090          -                   -                
Unassigned -                -                -                   (255,697)      

Total fund balances 9,029               45,090             130,699              (255,697)          

Total liabilities and fund balances 9,029$             45,090$           142,319$            -$                 

112



Senior Center
SM Community 

Foundation
YAC-Youth 

Activity Center
Local Transit 

Prop C

CA Beverage 
Container 

Grant 
Clean Air Fund 

(AQMD)

198,731$         42,688$           58,681$           51,881$           28,458$           92,109$           

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,612               
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

198,731$         42,688$           58,681$           51,881$           28,458$           95,721$           

1,706$             -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

1,706               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                -                -                51,881          28,458          95,721          
197,025        42,688          58,681          -                -                -                

-                -                -                -                -                -                
197,025           42,688             58,681             51,881             28,458             95,721             

198,731$         42,688$           58,681$           51,881$           28,458$           95,721$           
(continued)

113



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Other, Continued
June 30, 2015

Environmental 
Fund Gas Tax Fund Measure R

Prop 42 
Congestion 
Mgmt Fund

Assets:
Cash and investments 63,714$              16,783$           210,396$         -$                 
Receivables:

Accounts 17,819                -                    -                    -                    
Taxes -                      -                    -                    -                    

Total assets 81,533$              16,783$           210,396$         -$                 

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 7,200$                11,149$           -$                 -$                 
Accrued payroll and
    related liabilities 2,608                  5,634               -                    -                    
Due to other funds -                      -                    -                    -                    
Deposits and retentions -                      -                    -                    -                    

Total liabilities 9,808                  16,783             -                    -                    

Fund balances:
Restricted -                   -                210,396        -                
Committed 71,725            -                -                -                
Unassigned -                   -                -                -                

Total fund balances 71,725                -                    210,396           -                    

Total liabilities and fund balances 81,533$              16,783$           210,396$         -$                 

114



Library Gift 
and Memorial

Friends of the 
Library

Local Historical 
Society

Total Other 
Special Revenue 

Funds

91,462$           1,417$             171$                 3,109,496$          

-                    248                   -                    21,679                  
-                    -                    -                    34,851                  

91,462$           1,665$             171$                 3,166,026$          

-$                 2,644$             -$                 331,229$              

-                    -                    -                    58,604                  
-                    -                    -                    275,930                
-                    -                    -                    229,575                
-                    2,644               -                    895,338                

-                -                -                1,966,481         
91,462          -                171               560,883             

-                (979)              -                (256,676)           
91,462             (979)                 171                   2,270,688             

91,462$           1,665$             171$                 3,166,026$          
(concluded)

115



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Other
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Development 
Fees

Development 
Impact Fees

Development 
Fees Art in 

Public Places
DUI 

Enforcement

Revenues:
Charges for services 306,630$         -$                 -$                 -$                 
Intergovernmental -                    -                    -                    7,006               
Licenses and permits 415,942           43,156             61,678             -                    
Investment income 147                   1,792               74                     9                       
Miscellaneous -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total revenues 722,719           44,948             61,752             7,015               

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 67,606             -                    -                    -                    
Public safety -                    -                    -                    -                    
Public works -                    -                    -                    -                    
Development 1,015,712        -                    4,000               -                    
Culture and recreation -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total expenditures 1,083,318        -                    4,000               -                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (360,599)          44,948             57,752             7,015               

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 360,599           -                    -                    -                    
Transfers out -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) 360,599           -                    -                    -                    

Net change to fund balances -                    44,948             57,752             7,015               

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated -                    1,302,273        37                     -                    

Fund balances, end of year -$                 1,347,221$      57,789$           7,015$             

116



Narcotics 
Enforcement

Police 
Department 
Donations

Public Safety 
Augmentation 

Fund
State COPS 

Grant

Emergency 
Medical 
Services

Fire 
Department 
Dontations

Community 
Arts 

Commission

-$                 -$                 -$                    -$                 256,354$         -$                 -$                 
-                    -                    122,379             120,848           -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    25                     131                     49                     -                    31                     8                       
-                    5,575               -                      -                    -                    6,850               -                    
-                    5,600               122,510             120,897           256,354           6,881               8                       

-                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    7,517               -                      240,037           688,596           10,041             -                    
-                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                      -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    7,517               -                      240,037           688,596           10,041             -                    

-                    (1,917)              122,510             (119,140)          (432,242)          (3,160)              8                       

-                    -                    -                      -                    432,242           -                    -                    
-                    -                    (122,510)            -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    (122,510)            -                    432,242           -                    -                    

-                    (1,917)              -                      (119,140)          -                    (3,160)              8                       

449                   16,334             -                      155,992           -                    27,596             6,151               

449$                 14,417$           -$                    36,852$           -$                 24,436$           6,159$             
(continued)

117



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Other, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Dog Park

Recreation 
Department 
Donations

Local 
Transportation 

Prop A Open Space

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                 -$                 5,036$                -$                 
Intergovernmental -                    -                    194,945              -                    
Licenses and permits -                    -                    -                      -                    
Investment income 12                     58                     182                     58                     
Miscellaneous -                    -                    -                      49,578             

Total revenues 12                     58                     200,163              49,636             

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                    -                    -                      -                    
Public safety -                    -                    -                      -                    
Public works -                    -                    -                      -                    
Development -                    -                    -                      -                    
Culture and recreation -                    -                    145,381              4,748               

Total expenditures -                    -                    145,381              4,748               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures 12                     58                     54,782                44,888             

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                    -                    -                      -                    
Transfers out -                    -                    -                      -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    -                    -                      -                    

Net change to fund balances 12                     58                     54,782                44,888             

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated 9,017               45,032             75,917                (300,585)          

Fund balances, end of year 9,029$             45,090$           130,699$           (255,697)$        

118



Senior Center
SM Community 

Foundation
YAC-Youth 

Activity Center
Local Transit 

Prop C

CA Beverage 
Container 

Grant 
Clean Air Fund 

(AQMD)

-$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
-                    -                    -                    161,659           5,000               13,488             
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
255                   55                     75                     67                     36                     118                   

33,863             4,691               -                    -                    -                    -                    
34,118             4,746               75                     161,726           5,036               13,606             

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    119,578           472                   1,200               
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

10,157             1,416               15,000             -                    -                    -                    
10,157             1,416               15,000             119,578           472                   1,200               

23,961             3,330               (14,925)            42,148             4,564               12,406             

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

23,961             3,330               (14,925)            42,148             4,564               12,406             

173,064           39,358             73,606             9,733               23,894             83,315             

197,025$         42,688$           58,681$           51,881$           28,458$           95,721$           
(continued)

119



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds-Other, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Environmental 
Fund Gas Tax Fund Measure R

Prop 42 
Congestion 
Mgmt Fund

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 
Intergovernmental -                       318,841           121,304           -                    
Licenses and permits 89,417                -                    -                    -                    
Investment income 83                        -                    307                   -                    
Miscellaneous -                       -                    -                    -                    

Total revenues 89,500                318,841           121,611           -                    

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                       -                    -                    -                    
Public safety -                       -                    -                    -                    
Public works 97,198                296,092           563,378           -                    
Development -                       -                    -                    -                    
Culture and recreation -                       -                    -                    -                    

Total expenditures 97,198                296,092           563,378           -                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (7,698)                 22,749             (441,767)          -                    

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                       -                    -                    -                    
Transfers out -                       5,688               -                    -                    

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       5,688               -                    -                    

Net change to fund balances (7,698)                 28,437             (441,767)          -                    

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated 79,423                (28,437)            652,163           -                    

Fund balances, end of year 71,725$              -$                 210,396$         -$                 

120



Library Gift 
and Memorial

Friends of the 
Library

Library 
Historical 
Society

Total Other 
Special Revenue 

Funds

-$                 -$                 -$                 568,020$              
-                    -                    -                    1,065,470             
-                    -                    -                    610,193                
117                   -                    -                    3,689                    

8,803               39,917             -                    149,277                
8,920               39,917             -                    2,396,649             

-                    -                    -                    67,606                  
-                    -                    -                    946,191                
-                    -                    -                    1,077,918             
-                    -                    -                    1,019,712             

7,229               40,812             -                    224,743                
7,229               40,812             -                    3,336,170             

1,691               (895)                 -                    (939,521)               

-                    -                    -                    792,841                
-                    -                    -                    (116,822)               
-                    -                    -                    676,019                

1,691               (895)                 -                    (263,502)               

89,771             (84)                    171                   2,534,190             

91,462$           (979)$               171$                 2,270,688$          
(concluded)

121



AM Radio Tower

Street 
Improvement 

Projects
Total Capital 

Project Funds

Assets:
Cash and investments -$                      -$                      -$                      

Total assets -$                      -$                      -$                      

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities: -$                      -$                      -$                      

Total liabilities -                         -                         -                         

Fund balances:
Assigned -                         -                         -                         

Total fund balances -                         -                         -                         

Total liabilities and fund balances -$                      -$                      -$                      

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Capital Project Funds
June 30, 2015

122



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Capital Project Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

AM Radio Tower

Street 
Improvement 

Projects
Total Capital 

Project Funds

Revenues:
Investment income 6$                          -$                      6$                          

Total revenues 6                            -                         6                            

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 135                        -                         135                        
Total expenditures 135                        -                         135                        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (129)                      -                         (129)                      

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                         (5,688)                   (5,688)                   
Transfers out (4,482)                   -                         (4,482)                   

Total other financing sources (uses) (4,482)                   (5,688)                   (10,170)                 

Net change to fund balance (4,611)                   (5,688)                   (10,299)                 

Fund balances, beginning of year 4,611                    5,688                    10,299                  

Fund Balances, end of year -$                      -$                      -$                      

123



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
LSTA Teen Docent Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$                 -$                 1,916$             1,916$             

Total revenues -                    -                    1,916               1,916               

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation -                    -                    1,272               (1,272)              
Total expenditures -                    -                    1,272               (1,272)              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures -                -                644               644               

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                    -                    -                    -                    
Transfers out -                    -                    (76)                    (76)                    

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    -                    (76)                    (76)                    

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    568                   568                   

(568)                 (568)                 (568)                 -                    

Fund balance, end of year (568)$               (568)$               -$                 568$                 

Fund balance, beginning of year

124



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Bonita Sewer Assessment District Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 10,480$           10,480$           10,291$           (189)$               
Investment income -                    -                    14                     14                     

Total revenues 10,480             10,480             10,305             (175)                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 10,325             10,325             10,324             1                       
Total expenditures 10,325             10,325             10,324             1                       

Net change to fund balance 155                   155                   (19)                    (174)                 

11,260             11,260             11,260             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 11,415$           11,415$           11,241$           (174)$               

Fund balance, beginning of year

125



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Central Business Assessment District Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 5,075$             5,075$             5,356$             281$                 

Total revenues 5,075               5,075               5,356               281                   

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 11,792             11,792             6,135               5,657               
Total expenditures 11,792             11,792             6,135               5,657               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (6,717)           (6,717)           (779)              5,938            

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 6,547               6,547               779                   (5,768)              

Total other financing sources (uses) 6,547               6,547               779                   (5,768)              

Net change to fund balance (170)                 (170)                 -                    170                   

-                    -                    -                    -                    

Fund balance, end of year (170)$               (170)$               -$                 170$                 

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

126



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Fane/Winwood Lane Assessment District Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 964$                 964$                 -$                 (964)$               
Investment income -                    -                    17                     17                     

Total revenues 964                   964                   17                     (947)                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 3,053               3,053               2,542               511                   
Total expenditures 3,053               3,053               2,542               511                   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (2,089)           (2,089)           (2,525)           (436)              

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,005               1,005               -                    (1,005)              

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,005               1,005               -                    (1,005)              

Net change to fund balance (1,084)              (1,084)              (2,525)              (1,441)              

15,421             15,421             15,421             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 14,337$           14,337$           12,896$           (1,441)$            

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

127



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Lighting District #1 Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 18,473$           18,473$           37,999$           19,526$           
Investment income -                    -                    166                   166                   

Total revenues 18,473             18,473             38,165             19,692             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 14,525             14,525             8,787               5,738               
Total expenditures 14,525             14,525             8,787               5,738               

Net change to fund balance 3,948               3,948               29,378             25,430             

99,747             99,747             99,747             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 103,695$         103,695$         129,125$         25,430$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

128



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Lighting District Zone A Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 4,771$             4,771$             44,316$           39,545$           
Investment income -                    -                    151                   151                   

Total revenues 4,771               4,771               44,467             39,696             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 6,061               6,061               4,452               1,609               
Total expenditures 6,061               6,061               4,452               1,609               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (1,290)           (1,290)           40,015          41,305          

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,192               1,192               -                    (1,192)              

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,192               1,192               -                    (1,192)              

Net change to fund balance (98)                    (98)                    40,015             40,113             

78,190             78,190             78,190             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 78,092$           78,092$           118,205$         40,113$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

129



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Lighting District Zone B Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 26,898$           26,898$           60,898$           34,000$           
Investment income -                    -                    175                   175                   

Total revenues 26,898             26,898             61,073             34,175             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 25,701             25,701             22,080             3,621               
Total expenditures 25,701             25,701             22,080             3,621               

Net change to fund balance 1,197               1,197               38,993             37,796             

97,539             97,539             97,539             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 98,736$           98,736$           136,532$         37,796$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

130



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Parking Maintenance District Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 8,337$             8,337$             8,917$             580$                 

Total revenues 8,337               8,337               8,917               580                   

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 23,712             23,712             26,168             (2,456)              
Total expenditures 23,712             23,712             26,168             (2,456)              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (15,375)         (15,375)         (17,251)         (1,876)           

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 15,375             15,375             17,251             1,876               

Total other financing sources (uses) 15,375             15,375             17,251             1,876               

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    

Fund balance, end of year -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

131



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Santa Anita/Arno Maintenance District Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Total revenues -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works -                    -                    2,060               (2,060)              
Total expenditures -                    -                    2,060               (2,060)              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures -                -                (2,060)           (2,060)           

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                    -                    4,071               4,071               

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    -                    4,071               4,071               

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    2,011               2,011               

(2,011)              (2,011)              (2,011)              -                    

Fund balance, end of year (2,011)$            (2,011)$            -$                 2,011$             

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

132



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Sewer Assessment District Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes 8,150$             8,150$             7,037$             (1,113)$            
Investment income -                    -                    36                     36                     

Total revenues 8,150               8,150               7,073               (1,077)              

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 814                   814                   816                   (2)                      
Total expenditures 814                   814                   816                   (2)                      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures 7,336            7,336            6,257            (1,079)           

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (7,336)              (7,336)              -                    7,336               

Total other financing sources (uses) (7,336)              (7,336)              -                    7,336               

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    6,257               6,257               

22,607             22,607             22,607             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 22,607$           22,607$           28,864$           6,257$             

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

133



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Sierra Madre CFD Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Property taxes -$                 -$                 6,844$             6,844$             
Investment income -                    -                    26                     26                     

Total revenues -                    -                    6,870               6,870               

Expenditures:
Total expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    6,870               6,870               

13,456             13,456             13,456             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 13,456$           13,456$           20,326$           6,870$             

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

134



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Development Fees Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Charges for services 121,487$         121,487$         306,630$         185,143$         
Licenses and permits 423,425           423,425           415,942           (7,483)              
Investment income -                    -                    147                   147                   

Total revenues 544,912           544,912           722,719           177,807           

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                    -                    67,606             (67,606)            
Development 982,273           982,273           1,015,712        (33,439)            

Total expenditures 982,273           982,273           1,083,318        (101,045)          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (437,361)      (437,361)      (360,599)      76,762          

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 301,361           301,361           360,599           59,238             

Total other financing sources (uses) 301,361           301,361           360,599           59,238             

Net change to fund balance (136,000)          (136,000)          -                    136,000           

-                    -                    -                    -                    

Fund balance, end of year (136,000)$        (136,000)$        -$                 136,000$         

Fund balance, beginning of year

135



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Development Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Licenses and permits 7,647$             7,647$             43,156$           35,509$           
Investment income 125                   125                   1,792               1,667               

Total revenues 7,772               7,772               44,948             37,176             

Expenditures:
Total expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    

Net change to fund balance 7,772               7,772               44,948             37,176             

1,302,273        1,302,273        1,302,273        -                    

Fund balance, end of year 1,310,045$      1,310,045$      1,347,221$      37,176$           

Fund balance, beginning of year

136



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Development Fees Art in Public Places Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Licenses and permits -$                 -$                 61,678$           61,678$           
Investment income -                    -                    74                     74                     

Total revenues -                    -                    61,752             61,752             

Expenditures:
Current:

Development -                    -                    4,000               (4,000)              
Total expenditures -                    -                    4,000               (4,000)              

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    57,752             57,752             

37                     37                     37                     -                    

Fund balance, end of year 37$                   37$                   57,789$           57,752$           

Fund balance, beginning of year

137



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
DUI Enforcement Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 3,098$             3,098$             7,006$             3,908$               
Investment income 6                       6                       9                       3                         

Total revenues 3,104               3,104               7,015               3,911                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 1,500               1,500               -                    1,500                 
Total expenditures 1,500               1,500               -                    1,500                 

Net change to fund balance 1,604               1,604               7,015               5,411                 

-                    -                    -                    -                     

Fund balance, end of year 1,604$             1,604$             7,015$             5,411$               

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

138



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Police Department Donations Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income 19$                   19$                   25$                   6$                     
Miscellaneous 3,490               3,490               5,575               2,085               

Total revenues 3,509               3,509               5,600               2,091               

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 2,093               2,093               7,517               (5,424)              
Total expenditures 2,093               2,093               7,517               (5,424)              

Net change to fund balance 1,416               1,416               (1,917)              (3,333)              

16,334             16,334             16,334             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 17,750$           17,750$           14,417$           (3,333)$            

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

139



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Public Safety Augmentation Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 99,911$            99,911$            122,379$          22,468$           
Investment income -                     -                     131                    131                   

Total revenues 99,911              99,911               122,510            22,599             

Expenditures:
Total expenditures -                     -                     -                     -                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures 99,911           99,911           122,510         22,599          

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (99,911)             (99,911)             (122,510)           (22,599)            

Total other financing sources (uses) (99,911)             (99,911)             (122,510)           (22,599)            

Net change to fund balance -                     -                     -                     -                    

-                     -                     -                     -                    

Fund balance, end of year -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                 

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

140



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
State COPS Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 100,000$         100,000$         120,848$         20,848$           
Investment income -                    -                    49                     49                     

Total revenues 100,000           100,000           120,897           20,897             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 155,992           255,992           240,037           15,955             
Total expenditures 155,992           255,992           240,037           15,955             

Net change to fund balance (55,992)            (155,992)          (119,140)          36,852             

155,992           155,992           155,992           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 100,000$         -$                 36,852$           36,852$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

141



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Emergency Medical Services Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Charges for services 281,895$         281,895$         256,354$         (25,541)$          

Total revenues 281,895           281,895           256,354           (25,541)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 736,478           736,478           688,596           47,882             
Total expenditures 736,478           736,478           688,596           47,882             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (454,583)      (454,583)      (432,242)      22,341          

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 466,583           466,583           432,242           (34,341)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 466,583           466,583           432,242           (34,341)            

Net change to fund balance 12,000             12,000             -                    (12,000)            

-                    -                    -                    -                    

Fund balance, end of year 12,000$           12,000$           -$                 (12,000)$          

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

142



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Fire Department Donations Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income -$                 -$                 31$                   31$                   
Miscellaneous 6,000               6,000               6,850               850                   

Total revenues 6,000               6,000               6,881               881                   

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 6,000               6,000               10,041             (4,041)              
Total expenditures 6,000               6,000               10,041             (4,041)              

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    (3,160)              (3,160)              

27,596             27,596             27,596             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 27,596$           27,596$           24,436$           (3,160)$            

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

143



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Community Arts Commission Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income -$                 -$                 8$                     8$                     

Total revenues -                    -                    8                       8                       

Expenditures:
Total expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    8                       8                       

6,151               6,151               6,151               -                    

Fund balance, end of year 6,151$             6,151$             6,159$             8$                     

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

144



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Local Transportation Prop A Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Charges for services 12,000$           12,000$           5,036$             (6,964)$            
Intergovernmental 159,350           159,350           194,945           35,595             
Investment income -                    -                    182                   182                   

Total revenues 171,350           171,350           200,163           28,813             

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation 175,440           175,440           145,381           30,059             
Total expenditures 175,440           175,440           145,381           30,059             

Net change to fund balance (4,090)              (4,090)              54,782             58,872             

75,917             75,917             75,917             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 71,827$           71,827$           130,699$         58,872$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

145



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Open Space Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income 490$                 490$                 58$                   (432)$               
Miscellaneous 50,000             50,000             49,578             (422)                 

Total revenues 50,490             50,490             49,636             (854)                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation 4,750               4,750               4,748               2                       
Total expenditures 4,750               4,750               4,748               2                       

Net change to fund balance 45,740             45,740             44,888             (852)                 

(300,585)          (300,585)          (300,585)          -                    

Fund balance, end of year (254,845)$        (254,845)$        (255,697)$        (852)$               

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

146



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Senior Center Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income -$                 -$                 255$                 255$                 
Miscellaneous 20,000             20,000             33,863             13,863             

Total revenues 20,000             20,000             34,118             14,118             

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation 20,000             20,000             10,157             9,843               
Total expenditures 20,000             20,000             10,157             9,843               

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    23,961             23,961             

173,064           173,064           173,064           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 173,064$         173,064$         197,025$         23,961$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

147



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
SM Community Foundation Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income -$                 -$                 55$                   55$                   
Miscellaneous -                    -                    4,691               4,691               

Total revenues -                    -                    4,746               4,746               

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation -                    -                    1,416               (1,416)              
Total expenditures -                    -                    1,416               (1,416)              

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    3,330               3,330               

39,358             39,358             39,358             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 39,358$           39,358$           42,688$           3,330$             

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

148



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
YAC-Youth Activity Center Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income -$                 -$                 75$                   75$                   
Miscellaneous 7,250               7,250               -                    (7,250)              

Total revenues 7,250               7,250               75                     (7,175)              

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation 18,750             18,750             15,000             3,750               
Total expenditures 18,750             18,750             15,000             3,750               

Net change to fund balance (11,500)            (11,500)            (14,925)            (3,425)              

73,606             73,606             73,606             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 62,106$           62,106$           58,681$           (3,425)$            

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

149



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Local Transit Prop C Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 126,716$         126,716$         161,659$         34,943$           
Investment income -                    -                    67                     67                     

Total revenues 126,716           126,716           161,726           35,010             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 128,595           128,595           119,578           9,017               
Total expenditures 128,595           128,595           119,578           9,017               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (1,879)           (1,879)           42,148          44,027          

Net change to fund balance (1,879)              (1,879)              42,148             44,027             

9,733               9,733               9,733               -                    

Fund balance, end of year 7,854$             7,854$             51,881$           44,027$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

150



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
CA Beverage Container Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             -$                 
Investment income -                    -                    36                     36                     

Total revenues 5,000               5,000               5,036               36                     

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 4,975               4,975               472                   4,503               
Total expenditures 4,975               4,975               472                   4,503               

Net change to fund balance 25                     25                     4,564               4,539               

23,894             23,894             23,894             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 23,919$           23,919$           28,458$           4,539$             

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

151



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Clear Air (AQMD) Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 12,674$           12,674$           13,488$           814$                 
Investment income -                    -                    118                   118                   

Total revenues 12,674             12,674             13,606             932                   

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 12,610             12,610             1,200               11,410             
Total expenditures 12,610             12,610             1,200               11,410             

Net change to fund balance 64                     64                     12,406             12,342             

83,315             83,315             83,315             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 83,379$           83,379$           95,721$           12,342$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

152



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Environmental Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Licenses and permits 128,000$         128,000$         89,417$           (38,583)$          
Investment income -                    -                    83                     83                     

Total revenues 128,000           128,000           89,500             (38,500)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 130,818           130,818           97,198             33,620             
Total expenditures 130,818           130,818           97,198             33,620             

Net change to fund balance (2,818)              (2,818)              (7,698)              (4,880)              

79,423             79,423             79,423             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 76,605$           76,605$           71,725$           (4,880)$            

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

153



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 285,331$         285,331$         318,841$         33,510$           

Total revenues 285,331           285,331           318,841           33,510             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 428,148           428,148           296,092           132,056           
Total expenditures 428,148           428,148           296,092           132,056           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (142,817)      (142,817)      22,749          165,566        

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out -                    -                    5,688               5,688               

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    -                    5,688               5,688               

Net change to fund balance (142,817)          (142,817)          28,437             171,254           

(28,437)            (28,437)            (28,437)            -                    

Fund balance, end of year (171,254)$        (171,254)$        -$                 171,254$         

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

154



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Measure R Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 116,000$         114,904$         121,304$         6,400$             
Investment income -                    -                    307                   307                   

Total revenues 116,000           114,904           121,611           6,707               

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 650,274           650,274           563,378           86,896             
Total expenditures 650,274           650,274           563,378           86,896             

Net change to fund balance (534,274)          (535,370)          (441,767)          93,603             

652,163           652,163           652,163           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 117,889$         116,793$         210,396$         93,603$           

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

155



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Library Gift and Memorial Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income -$                 -$                 117$                 117$                 
Miscellaneous 65,000             65,000             8,803               (56,197)            

Total revenues 65,000             65,000             8,920               (56,080)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation 65,000             65,000             7,229               57,771             
Total expenditures 65,000             65,000             7,229               57,771             

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    1,691               1,691               

89,771             89,771             89,771             -                    

Fund balance, end of year 89,771$           89,771$           91,462$           1,691$             

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

156



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Friends of the Library Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Miscellaneous 60,000$           60,000$           39,917$           (20,083)$          

Total revenues 60,000             60,000             39,917             (20,083)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation 55,000             55,000             40,812             14,188             
Total expenditures 55,000             55,000             40,812             14,188             

Net change to fund balance 5,000               5,000               (895)                 (5,895)              

(84)                    (84)                    (84)                    -                    

Fund balance, end of year 4,916$             4,916$             (979)$               (5,895)$            

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

157



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Library Historical Society Special Revenue Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Total revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    

Expenditures:
Total expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    -                    -                    

171                   171                   171                   -                    

Fund balance, end of year 171$                 171$                 171$                 -$                 

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

158



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Capital Projects Fund
For the year ending June 30, 2015

Original 
Budget

Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 

Budget

Revenues:
Investment income -$                 -$                 3$                     3$                     

Total revenues -                    -                    3                       3                       

Expenditures:
Total expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    

Net change to fund balance -                    -                    3                       3                       

1,683,001        1,683,001        1,683,001        -                    

Fund balance, end of year 1,683,001$      1,683,001$      1,683,004$      3$                     

 Fund balance, beginning of year 

159



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Net Position
Non-Major Enterprise Funds

Special Strike 
Team Services Aquatics Recreation Classes

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments 126,483$              149,121$              6,331$                   
Total current assets 126,483                 149,121                 6,331                     
Total assets 126,483                 149,121                 6,331                     

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable -                         2,058                     3,927                     
Accrued payroll and related 

liabilities -                         -                         1,289                     
Deposits and retentions -                         -                         -                         
Compensated absences - current -                         -                         223                        

Total current liabilities -                         2,058                     5,439                     
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences -                         -                         892                        
Total noncurrent liabilities -                         -                         892                        
Total liabilities -                         2,058                     6,331                     

Net Position:
Unrestricted 126,483                 147,063                 -                         

Total net position 126,483$              147,063$              -$                       

June 30, 2015

160



Special Events Filming
Total Non-Major 
Enterprise Funds

6,109$                   99,279$                 387,323$              
6,109                     99,279                   387,323                 
6,109                     99,279                   387,323                 

1,197                     2,000                     9,182                     

3,426                     309                        5,024                     
-                         6,417                     6,417                     
297                        -                         520                        

4,920                     8,726                     21,143                   

1,189                     -                         2,081                     
1,189                     -                         2,081                     
6,109                     8,726                     23,224                   

-                         90,553                   364,099                 
-$                       90,553$                 364,099$              

  

161



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Non-Major Enterprise Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Special Strike 
Team Services Aquatics Recreation Classes

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 65,212$                 107,216$              40,520$                 
Licenses and permits -                         -                         -                         

Total operating revenues 65,212                   107,216                 40,520                   

Operating expenses:
Personnel services 23,447                   -                         23,078                   
Contractual services -                         -                         31,452                   
Materials and supplies -                         71                           -                         
Utilities -                         35,560                   -                         
Maintenance and operation -                         -                         -                         

Total operating expenses 23,447                   35,631                   54,530                   

Operating income (losses) 41,765                   71,585                   (14,010)                  

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment Income 162                        191                        -                         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 162                        191                        -                         

Income (loss) before transfers 41,927                   71,776                   (14,010)                  

Transfers:
Transfers in -                         -                         14,010                   

Total transfers -                         -                         14,010                   

Change in net position 41,927                   71,776                   -                         

Net position, beginning of year 84,556                   75,287                   -                         

Net position, end of year 126,483$              147,063$              -$                       

162



Special Events Filming
Total Non-Major 
Enterprise Funds

69,275$                 19,546$                 301,769$                 
-                         15,708                   15,708                      

69,275                   35,254                   317,477                    

52,375                   17,759                   116,659                    
28,885                   -                         60,337                      

3,959                     -                         4,030                        
-                         -                         35,560                      

16,000                   276                        16,276                      
101,219                 18,035                   232,862                    

(31,944)                  17,219                   84,615                      

-                         128                        481                           
-                         128                        481                           

(31,944)                  17,347                   85,096                      

26,236                   -                         40,246                      
26,236                   -                         40,246                      

(5,708)                    17,347                   125,342                    

5,708                     73,206                   238,757                    

-$                       90,553$                 364,099$                 

163



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Non-Major Enterprise Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Special Strike 
Team Services Aquatics

Recreation 
Classes

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users 65,212$              107,216$           40,520$              
Payments to suppliers -                      (34,966)              (27,525)              
Payments to employees (25,326)              -                      (24,489)              

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 39,886                72,250                (11,494)              

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds -                      -                      14,010                

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 
financing activities -                      -                      14,010                

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 162                     191                     -                      

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 162                     191                     -                      

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 40,048                72,441                2,516                  

Cash and investments:
Beginning of year 86,435                76,680                3,815                  

End of year 126,483$           149,121$           6,331$                

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 41,765$              71,585$              (14,010)$            
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
  cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -                      -                      -                      
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable -                      665                     3,927                  
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (1,879)                 -                      (132)                    
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable -                      -                      -                      
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences -                      -                      (1,279)                 

Total adjustments (1,879)                 665                     2,516                  

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 39,886$              72,250$              (11,494)$            

164



Special Events Filming
Total Non-Major 
Enterprise Funds

69,275$              35,254$              317,477$              
(48,219)              2,039                  (108,671)               
(51,945)              (17,526)              (119,286)               

(30,889)              19,767                89,520                   

26,236                -                      40,246                   

26,236                -                      40,246                   

-                      128                     481                        

-                      128                     481                        

(4,653)                 19,895                130,247                

10,762                79,384                257,076                

6,109$                99,279$              387,323$              

(31,944)$            17,219$              84,615$                

1,650                  -                      1,650                     
(1,025)                 2,000                  5,567                     
1,338                  233                     (440)                       

-                      315                     315                        
(908)                    -                      (2,187)                   

1,055                  2,548                  4,905                     

(30,889)$            19,767$              89,520$                

165



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds

Fleet
Facilities 

Management Administration

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments 950,563$             1,685,604$          405,392$             
Accounts Receivable -                        -                        -                        
Prepaids -                        -                        963                       

Total current assets 950,563               1,685,604            406,355               
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets -                        162,275,945        -                        
Depreciable-net 593,296               17,935,551          314,619               

Total noncurrent assets 593,296               180,211,496        314,619               
Total assets 1,543,859            181,897,100        720,974               

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension related 11,706                 23,409                 70,231                 

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 5,813                    27,779                 7,221                    
Accrued payroll and related 

liabilities 4,283                    9,380                    26,505                 
Interest payable 947                       -                        -                        
Claims payable - current -                        -                        -                        
Compensated absences - current 4,289                    5,015                    8,184                    
Capital lease payable - current 11,184                 -                        -                        

Total current liabilities 26,516                 42,174                 41,910                 
Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims payable -                        -                        -                        
Compensated absences 17,156                 20,059                 32,736                 
Net Pension Liability 90,214                 180,427               541,285               
Capital lease payable 50,160                 -                        -                        

Total noncurrent liabilities 157,530               200,486               574,021               
Total liabilities 184,046               242,660               615,931               

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension related 21,925                 43,850                 131,551               

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 531,952               180,211,496        314,619               
Unrestricted 817,642               1,422,503            (270,896)              

Total net position 1,349,594$          181,633,999$     43,723$               

June 30, 2015

166



Technology

Personnel and 
Risk 

Management
General Plan and 
Housing Update

Total Internal 
Service Funds

642,027$             1,338,823$          107,774$             5,130,183$              
3,672                    -                        -                        3,672                        
8,661                    2,713                    -                        12,337                      

654,360               1,341,536            107,774               5,146,192                 

-                        -                        -                        162,275,945            
-                        -                        -                        18,843,466              
-                        -                        -                        181,119,411            

654,360               1,341,536            107,774               186,265,603            

-                        -                        -                        105,346                    

18,028                 6,132                    -                        64,973                      

5,266                    21,419                 -                        66,853                      
-                        -                        -                        947                            
-                        197,000               -                        197,000                    
452                       6,715                    -                        24,655                      
-                        -                        -                        11,184                      

23,746                 231,266               -                        365,612                    

-                        980,851               -                        980,851                    
1,807                    26,861                 -                        98,619                      

-                        -                        -                        811,926                    
-                        -                        -                        50,160                      

1,807                    1,007,712            -                        1,941,556                 
25,553                 1,238,978            -                        2,307,168                 

-                        -                        -                        197,326                    

-                        -                        -                        181,058,067            
628,807               102,558               107,774               2,808,388                 
628,807$             102,558$             107,774$             183,866,455$          

  

167



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Fleet
Facilities 

Management Administration

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 533,360$             917,400$             696,850$             
Licenses and permits -                        -                        -                        
Miscellaneous 1,360                    -                        -                        

Total operating revenues 534,720               917,400               696,850               

Operating expenses:
Personnel services 96,221                 187,384               489,989               
Contractual services 10,063                 90,728                 125,426               
Materials and supplies 64,973                 48,240                 45,604                 
Insurance, claims and charges -                        -                        -                        
Utilities 77,227                 290,004               -                        
Maintenance and operation 1,352                    20,879                 36,388                 
Depreciation 115,933               1,551,722            48,403                 

Total operating expenses 365,769               2,188,957            745,810               

Operating income (loss) 168,951               (1,271,557)           (48,960)                

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 1,221                    2,187                    530                       
Loss on disposal of property -                        (93,820)                -                        
Interest expense (3,170)                  -                        -                        

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,949)                  (91,633)                530                       

Income (loss) before transfers 
   and capital contributions 167,002               (1,363,190)           (48,430)                

Transfers:
Transfers in -                        11,897                 -                        
Transfer out -                        (18,030)                -                        

Total transfers -                        (6,133)                  -                        

Change in net position 167,002               (1,369,323)           (48,430)                

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 1,182,592            183,003,322        92,153                 

Net position, end of year 1,349,594$          181,633,999$     43,723$               

168



Technology

Personnel and 
Risk 

Management
General Plan and 
Housing Update

Total Internal 
Service Funds

529,900$             1,628,361$          -$                      4,305,871$              
10,859                 -                        -                        10,859                      

-                        -                        -                        1,360                        
540,759               1,628,361            -                        4,318,090                 

106,549               472,100               -                        1,352,243                 
230,433               60,454                 69,781                 586,885                    

64,575                 27,843                 -                        251,235                    
-                        966,982               -                        966,982                    
-                        -                        -                        367,231                    
-                        -                        -                        58,619                      
-                        -                        -                        1,716,058                 

401,557               1,527,379            69,781                 5,299,253                 

139,202               100,982               (69,781)                (981,163)                   

826                       1,576                    138                       6,478                        
-                        -                        -                        (93,820)                     
-                        -                        -                        (3,170)                       
826                       1,576                    138                       (90,512)                     

140,028               102,558               (69,643)                (1,071,675)               

-                        -                        -                        11,897                      
-                        -                        -                        (18,030)                     
-                        -                        -                        (6,133)                       

140,028               102,558               (69,643)                (1,077,808)               

488,779               -                        177,417               184,944,263            

628,807$             102,558$             107,774$             183,866,455$          

169



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Fleet
Facilities 

Management Administration

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from interfund services provided 534,720$              917,400$              696,850$              
Payments to suppliers (161,345)              (449,933)              (212,026)              
Payments to employees (94,183)                 (182,948)              (497,834)              

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 279,192                284,519                (13,010)                 

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds -                         11,897                  -                         
Transfers to other funds -                         (18,030)                 -                         

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 
financing activities -                         (6,133)                   -                         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,304)                   -                         -                         
Principal paid (10,689)                 -                         -                         
Interest paid (3,335)                   -                         -                         

Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities (16,328)                 -                         -                         

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 1,221                    2,188                    530                        

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,221                    2,188                    530                        

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 264,085                280,574                (12,480)                 

Cash and investments:
Beginning of year 686,478                1,405,030            417,872                

End of year 950,563$              1,685,604$          405,392$              

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 168,951$              (1,271,557)$         (48,960)$              
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
  cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 115,933                1,551,722            48,403                  
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable -                         -                         -                         
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -                         -                         (613)                       
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (7,730)                   (82)                         (3,995)                   
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 605                        2,022                    3,327                    
Increase (decrease) in claims payable -                         -                         -                         
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 2,664                    4,874                    (3,794)                   
Increase (decrease) in net pensiol liability (1,231)                   (2,460)                   (7,378)                   

Total adjustments 110,241                1,556,076            35,950                  

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 279,192$              284,519$              (13,010)$              

170



Technology
Personnel and 

Risk Management
General Plan and 
Housing Update

Total Internal 
Service Funds

537,087$              1,628,361$          -$                       4,314,418$          
(306,425)              47,638                  (69,781)                 (1,151,872)           
(108,501)              (638,245)              -                         (1,521,711)           

122,161                1,037,754            (69,781)                 1,640,835            

-                         -                         -                         11,897                  
-                         -                         -                         (18,030)                 

-                         -                         -                         (6,133)                   

-                         -                         -                         (2,304)                   
-                         -                         -                         (10,689)                 
-                         -                         -                         (3,335)                   

-                         -                         -                         (16,328)                 

826                        1,576                    138                        6,479                    

826                        1,576                    138                        6,479                    

122,987                1,039,330            (69,643)                 1,624,853            

519,040                299,493                177,417                3,505,330            

642,027$              1,338,823$          107,774$              5,130,183$          

139,202$              100,982$              (69,781)$              (981,163)$            

-                         -                         -                         1,716,058            

(3,672)                   -                         -                         (3,672)                   
(8,661)                   1,097,287            -                         1,088,013            
(2,756)                   5,630                    -                         (8,933)                   

(891)                       6,592                    -                         11,655                  
-                         (180,206)              -                         (180,206)              

(1,061)                   7,469                    -                         10,152                  
-                         -                         -                         (11,069)                 

(17,041)                 936,772                -                         2,621,998            

122,161$              1,037,754$          (69,781)$              1,640,835$          

171



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Deposit Trust
Flexible Spending 

Account
Medical 

Insurance
Total Agency 

Funds

Assets:
Cash and investments -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total assets -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Liabilities:
Accounts payable -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Deposits and retentions -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total liabilities -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

June 30, 2015

172



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Balance at 
June 30, 2014 Additions Deletions

Balance at 
June 30, 2015

Deposit Trust

Assets:
Cash and investments 115$                 -$                     (115)$                    -$                 

Total assets 115$                 -$                     (115)$                    -$                 

Liabilities:
Deposits and retentions 115$                 -$                     (115)$                    -$                 

Total liabilities 115$                 -$                     (115)$                    -$                 

Flexible Spending Account

Assets:
Cash and investments -$                 36,077$               (36,077)$              -$                 

Total assets -$                 36,077$               (36,077)$              -$                 

Liabilities:
Accrued payroll and related
   liabilities -$                 36,077$               (36,077)$              -$                 

Total liabilities -$                 36,077$               (36,077)$              -$                 

Medical Insurance

Assets:
Cash and investments 6,703$             3,547,578$         (3,554,281)$         -$                 

Total assets 6,703$             3,547,578$         (3,554,281)$         -$                 

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 6,703$             7,721,621$         (7,728,324)$         -$                 

Total liabilities 6,703$             7,721,621$         (7,728,324)$         -$                 

173



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

174



City of Sierra Madre, California 
Village of the Foothills 

 
 
 

 
    
 
 

Statistical Section 
For the Year Ending 

June 30, 2015 
 
 
 

175



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Net Position by Component
(accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009

Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital assets 185,944,619$      189,766,201$      188,972,208$      187,749,494$      
Restricted 7,025,972            5,134,708            4,861,347            4,473,882            
Unrestricted 2,671,257            2,189,681            3,873,992            5,880,289            

Total governmental activities net position 195,641,848$      197,090,590$      197,707,547$      198,103,665$      

Business-Type activities:
Net investment in capital assets 16,586,449$        14,818,105$        15,133,429$        16,526,965$        
Restricted -                        -                        -                        -                        
Unrestricted (897,008)              8,030,762            6,734,062            6,338,095            

Total business-type activities net position 15,689,441$        22,848,867$        21,867,491$        22,865,060$        

Primary government:
Net investment in capital assets 202,531,068$      204,584,306$      204,105,637$      204,276,459$      
Restricted 7,025,972            5,134,708            4,861,347            4,473,882            
Unrestricted 1,774,249            10,220,443          10,608,054          12,218,384          

Total primary government net position 211,331,289$      219,939,457$      219,575,038$      220,968,725$      

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

176



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

187,804,691$      186,635,375$      185,544,420$      184,344,066$      183,193,689$    181,862,536$    
4,681,595            8,648,585            10,779,254          10,341,052          14,035,399 6,051,883
5,876,098            1,634,124            870,761                555,794                121,479 764,679

198,362,384$      196,918,084$      197,194,435$      195,240,912$      197,350,567$    188,679,098$    

15,741,252$        15,842,534$        15,665,079$        15,804,079$        15,963,970$       16,668,550$       
-                        -                        1,145,841            1,149,456            1,149,456 1,149,456

6,822,253            6,324,287            4,437,196            3,894,603            4,053,155 1,994,086

22,563,505$        22,166,821$        21,248,116$        20,848,138$        21,166,581$       19,812,092$       

203,545,943$      202,477,909$      201,209,499$      200,148,145$      199,157,659$    198,531,086$    
4,681,595            8,648,585            11,925,095          11,490,508          15,184,855         7,201,339           

12,698,351          7,958,411            5,307,957            4,450,397            4,174,634           2,758,765           

220,925,889$      219,084,905$      218,442,551$      216,089,050$      218,517,148$    208,491,190$    

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

177



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Changes in Net Position
(accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009
Expenses:

Governmental activities:
General government 6,702,190$          6,618,475$          6,611,903$          7,851,142$          
Public safety 2,966,427             3,838,128             3,938,272             6,698,070             
Public works 1,450,448             833,215                917,320                805,897                
Development -                         -                         -                         431,174                
Culture and recreation 1,660,368             1,776,581             2,006,435             1,231,928             
Interest on long-term debt 433,659                251,635                178,109                167,567                

Total governmental activities expenses 13,213,092          13,318,034          13,652,039          17,185,778          

Business-type activities:
Water 3,164,465             3,309,580             9,519,066             3,137,904             
Sewer 705,900                767,100                627,238                651,945                
Recreation services 433,847                391,107                414,058                445,244                
Special services 3,796                    52,954                  136,705                195,286                
Film services 86,376                  61,481                  65,954                  26,561                  

Total business-type activities expenses 4,394,384             4,582,222             10,763,021          4,456,940             

Total primary government expenses 17,607,476$        17,900,256$        24,415,060$        21,642,718$        

Program revenues:
Governmental activities:

Charges for services 5,685,124$          4,240,302$          5,486,438$          5,521,416$          
Operating grants and contributions 376,161                624,932                1,444,440             2,920,814             
Capital grants and contributions -                         -                         428,708                121,739                

Total governmental activities 
program revenues 6,061,285             4,865,234             7,359,586             8,563,969             

Business-type activities:
Charges for services 4,197,696             5,952,735             6,322,222             4,412,306             
Capital grants and contributions 271,576                -                         -                         1,043,645             

Total business-type activities 
program revenues 4,469,272             5,952,735             6,322,222             5,455,951             

Total primary government 
program revenues 10,530,557$        10,817,969$        13,681,808$        14,019,920$        

Net revenue/(expense):
Governmental activities (7,151,807)$         (8,452,800)$         (6,292,453)$         (8,621,809)$         
Business-type activities 74,888                  1,370,513             (4,440,799)           999,011                

Total primary government 
net revenue/(expense) (7,076,919)$         (7,082,287)$         (10,733,252)$       (7,622,798)$         

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

178



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

7,779,996$          3,495,144$          1,756,491$          2,350,968$          742,540$         1,581,532$      
4,380,352             5,504,146             5,243,664             5,240,506             5,525,072 5,500,997

884,015                1,756,538             2,669,022             1,311,100             2,188,313 2,255,560
375,842                1,738,918             998,147                874,469                993,035 1,089,493

1,444,584             1,392,657             1,695,105             1,449,653             1,405,087 1,325,706
156,125                181,711                95,211                  8,241                    23,697 20,580

15,020,914          14,069,114          12,457,640          11,234,937          10,877,744      11,773,868      

3,399,076             3,442,699             3,806,990             3,980,084             3,542,063 4,626,949
856,702                951,566                927,102                1,022,868             844,486 939,202
493,509                503,796                306,613                115,980                131,897 113,608

89,909                  37,462                  168,546                112,482                92,752 101,219
47,529                  46,681                  70,275                  58,589                  54,817 18,035

4,886,725             4,982,204             5,279,526             5,290,003             4,666,015        5,799,013        

19,907,639$        19,051,318$        17,737,166$        16,524,940$        15,543,759$    17,572,881$    

5,065,422$          2,390,204$          2,013,245$          2,512,450$          3,525,563$      2,374,090$      
757,868                957,136                1,331,720             992,239                1,237,489 1,071,981

48,228                  1,008,836             51,342                  -                         -                    -                    

5,871,518             4,356,176             3,396,307             3,504,689             4,763,052        3,446,071        

4,173,073             4,379,502             4,090,554             4,525,723             4,978,343 5,497,755
248,500                29,619                  -                         316,930                258,882 242,500

4,421,573             4,409,121             4,090,554             4,842,653             5,237,225        5,740,255        

10,293,091$        8,765,297$          7,486,861$          8,347,342$          10,000,277$    9,186,326$      

(9,149,396)$         (9,712,938)$         (9,061,333)$         (7,730,248)$         (6,114,692)$     (8,327,797)$     
(465,152)               (573,083)               (1,188,972)           (447,350)               571,210            (58,758)             

(9,614,548)$         (10,286,021)$       (10,250,305)$       (8,177,598)$         (5,543,482)$     (8,386,555)$     

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

179



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Changes in Net Position, (continued)
(accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009
General revenues and other changes in net position:

Governmental activities:
Taxes 5,715,743$        6,944,803$        6,493,372$        8,198,847$        
Investment income 511,590              1,118,952          521,398              334,793              
Grants and contributions, not restricted 1,028,383          1,185,396          -                      -                      
Capital contributions -                      568,579              -                      168,991              
Extraordinary gain/(loss) -                      -                      -                      -                      
Loss on disposal of property -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfers (182,727)            176,108              (96,533)              94,135                

Total governmental activities 7,072,989          9,993,838          6,918,237          8,796,766          

Business-type activities:
Investment income -                      194,901              222,005              210,854              
Capital contributions -                      -                      3,140,885          -                      
Loss on disposal of property -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfers 182,727              (176,108)            96,533                (94,135)              

Total business-type activities 182,727              18,793                3,459,423          116,719              

Total primary government 7,255,716$        10,012,631$      10,377,660$      8,913,485$        

Change in net position:
Governmental activities (78,818)$            1,541,038$        625,784$           174,957$           
Business-type activities 257,615              1,389,306          (981,376)            1,115,730          

Total primary government 178,797$           2,930,344$        (355,592)$          1,290,687$        

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

180



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

8,905,659$        8,437,401$        7,774,266$        7,739,306$        8,217,065$    8,435,031$    
231,953              54,370                16,405                21,761                11,671 11,875

-                      -                      -                      -                      -                  -                  
369,848              65,294                -                      15,209                -                  -                  

-                      -                      1,499,139          -                      -                  -                  
-                      -                      -                      -                      (854,341)        -                  

(114,988)            (167,071)            (164,500)            (47,372)              (4,389) (54,018)
9,392,472          8,389,994          9,125,310          7,728,904          7,370,006      8,392,888      

38,667                11,044                2,827                  -                      6,826 6,425
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                  -                  
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                  -                  

114,988              167,071              164,500              47,372                4,389 54,018
153,655              178,115              167,327              47,372                11,215           60,443           

9,546,127$        8,568,109$        9,292,637$        7,776,276$        7,381,221$    8,453,331$    

243,076$           (1,322,944)$       63,977$              (1,344)$              1,255,314$    65,091$         
(311,497)            (394,968)            (1,021,645)         (399,978)            582,425         1,685              

(68,421)$            (1,717,912)$       (957,668)$          (401,322)$          1,837,739$    66,776$         

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

181



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009

General fund:
Unreserved (1) 2,371,490$           3,408,285$           3,841,994$           3,454,249$           
Reserved (1) -                         -                         300,000                490,000                
Nonspendable -                         -                         -                         -                         
Committed -                         -                         -                         -                         
Assigned -                         -                         -                         -                         
Unassigned -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total General Fund 2,371,490$           3,408,285$           4,141,994$           3,944,249$           

All other governmental funds:
Reserved: (1)

Debt service funds 2,848,789$           3,451,710$           3,178,349$           2,445,701$           
Land held for resale 1,682,998             1,682,998             1,682,998             1,682,998             
Capital projects funds 275,369                (494,512)               112,656                407,967                

Unreserved, reported in: (1)

Special revenue funds 300,579                871,674                568,536                1,580,312             
Non-spendable -                         -                         -                         -                         
Restricted -                         -                         -                         -                         
Committed -                         -                         -                         -                         
Assigned -                         -                         -                         -                         
Unassigned -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total all other governmental funds 5,107,735$           5,511,870$           5,542,539$           6,116,978$           

Total all governmental funds 7,479,225$           8,920,155$           9,684,533$           10,061,227$        

(1)  In FY 2010-2011, the City of Sierra Madre adopted GASB 54, Fund Balances. The City follows the designations of 
Non-spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned for Government Funds. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

182



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

4,246,065$           -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   
890,000                -                         -                         -                         -                     -                     

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                     19,535              
-                         800,000                250,000                635,000                1,255,290 1,280,500
-                         -                         3,989,683             4,400,416             4,635,021 5,133,278
-                         4,721,717             870,761                900,121                470,213 1,021,355

5,136,065$           5,521,717$           5,110,444$           5,935,537$           6,360,524$      7,454,668$      

2,528,671$           -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   
1,682,998             -                         -                         -                         -                     -                     

469,927                -                         -                         -                         -                     -                     

2,040,378             -                         -                         -                         -                     -                     
-                         401,575                -                         -                         -                     -                     
-                         1,682,998             1,682,998             1,682,998             1,682,998         4,113,442         
-                         5,863,012             888,909                1,658,115             2,199,679 661,036
-                         854,020                1,453,098             981,304                1,237,371 -                     
-                         (2,902,573)            (395,035)               (344,327)               (348,734) (256,676)

6,721,974$           5,899,032$           3,629,970$           3,978,090$           4,771,314$      4,517,802$      

11,858,039$        11,420,749$        8,740,414$           9,913,627$           11,131,838$    11,972,470$    

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

183



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2006 2007 2008 2009

Revenues:
Taxes 5,715,743$           6,944,803$            6,493,372$            8,198,847$            
Property Taxes -                         -                          -                          -                          
Other Taxes -                         -                          -                          -                          
Charges for services 1,321,951             624,678                 578,794                 545,968                 
Intergovernmental 1,404,544             1,810,328              1,873,146              3,042,552              
Licenses and permits 427,661                558,884                 987,713                 847,977                 
Fines and forfeitures 229,338                127,206                 179,912                 189,677                 
 Investment Income 511,590                700,133                 521,398                 278,739                 
Miscellaneous 483,261                412,979                 224,668                 188,538                 

Total revenues 10,094,088           11,179,011            10,859,003            13,292,298            

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 3,139,621             2,742,176              2,407,126              2,664,527              
Public safety 2,966,427             3,838,128              3,938,272              6,698,070              
Public works 1,450,449             833,215                 917,320                 805,897                 
Development -                         -                          -                          431,174                 
Culture and recreation 1,660,368             1,776,581              2,006,435              1,231,928              

Debt service:
Principal 195,000                205,000                 215,000                 225,000                 
Interest 204,580                191,129                 181,520                 171,288                 

Capital outlay 1,168,030             619,475                 421,953                 615,364                 
Total expenditures 10,784,475           10,205,704            10,087,626            12,843,248            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (690,387)               973,307                 771,377                 449,050                 

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of City property -                         400,000                 -                          -                          
Equipment Financing -                         -                          -                          -                          
Transfers in 2,095,408             1,394,269              2,767,157              3,869,613              
Transfers out (1,904,058)            (1,200,272)             (2,765,329)             (3,789,486)             

Total other financing sources (uses) 191,350                593,997                 1,828                      80,127                    

Extraordinary gain (loss) -                         -                          -                          -                          

Net change in fund balances (499,037)               1,567,304              773,205                 529,177                 

7,978,261             7,352,851              8,911,328              9,532,050              

Fund balances, end of year 7,479,224$           8,920,155$            9,684,533$            10,061,227$          

*Note: Prior to FY 2012-2013 taxes were not segregated to subcategories, such as property taxes and other taxes.
**Note: Prior to FY 2012-2013 Property Tax in-lieu of VLF was reported as intergovernmental revenues. In FY 2012-2013 and FY 2013-2014  

it was reported as Other Taxes.
***Note: In FY 2014-2015 Property Tax in-lieu of VLF is  reported as part of Property Taxes.   

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated

184



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

8,905,659$            8,437,444$            6,758,148$            -$                        -$                  -$                  
-                          -                          -                          3,902,682              4,391,262        5,264,471        
-                          -                          -                          3,724,541              3,707,633 3,170,560

658,809                 616,947                 595,203                 897,281                 820,236 871,237
757,869                 1,965,972              2,249,029              1,065,088              1,248,338 1,073,897
854,492                 1,221,741              1,160,456              1,131,957              2,431,117 1,018,971
189,899                 235,260                 223,902                 328,707                 240,188 223,072
170,391                 49,439                    10,571                    -                          6,636 5,397
153,766                 316,214                 184,835                 163,313                 169,853 260,810

11,690,885            12,843,017            11,182,144            11,213,569            13,015,263      11,888,415      

3,091,208              1,444,497              2,107,607              1,921,278              1,871,441 1,672,935
4,380,352              5,504,146              5,081,731              5,074,457              5,382,934 5,382,396

884,016                 1,756,537              2,210,897              794,165                 1,844,412 1,670,830
375,842                 1,132,604              1,259,802              842,273                 940,335 1,019,712

1,444,583              1,392,657              1,540,117              1,284,435              1,244,718 1,162,983

235,000                 302,998                 315,581                 63,385                    66,321 69,391
160,125                 181,711                 101,461                 27,656                    24,721 21,651
574,064                 1,553,968              95,735                    31,790                    14,833 -                    

11,145,190            13,269,118            12,712,931            10,039,439            11,389,715      10,999,898      

545,695                 (426,101)                (1,530,787)             1,174,130              1,625,548        888,517           

-                          65,294                    -                          -                          -                    -                    
725,402                 -                          -                          -                          -                    -                    

1,950,479              3,590,490              2,845,339              1,376,732              881,171 941,521
(1,403,676)             (3,579,472)             (3,017,170)             (1,377,649)             (1,288,508) (989,406)
1,272,205              76,312                    (171,831)                (917)                        (407,337)          (47,885)            

-                          -                          (1,085,861)             -                          -                    -                    

1,817,900              (349,789)                (2,788,479)             1,173,213              1,218,211        840,632           

10,040,139            11,770,538            11,528,893            8,740,414              9,913,627        11,131,838      

11,858,039$          11,420,749$          8,740,414$            9,913,627$            11,131,838$    11,972,470$    

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

185



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Category 2006 2007 2008 2009

Residential 1,166,416,663$     1,295,572,193$    1,391,361,479$    1,469,859,412$    
Commercial 28,988,463            34,892,478            38,120,509            44,106,361            
Industrial 5,523,681               5,663,629              5,776,878              7,240,625              
Govt. Owned 144,405                  498,870                 508,845                 519,020                 
Institutional 2,251,162               2,296,184              2,342,105              2,388,942              
Irrigated 3,676,009               -                          -                          -                          
Recreational 984,042                  579,793                 591,386                 603,211                 
Vacant 14,485,379            33,464,760            43,044,306            39,531,555            
SBE Nonunitary -                               -                          -                          -                          
Cross Reference 4,962,841               5,062,095              1,918,774              1,977,310              
Unsecured 7,336,999               7,311,177              6,993,385              7,021,368              

Total assessed value 1,234,769,644$     1,385,341,179$    1,490,657,667$    1,573,247,804$    

Tax-Exempt Property (4,425,339)             (4,268,753)             (4,224,002)             (3,601,786)             

Total taxable assessed value 1,230,344,305$     1,381,072,426$    1,486,433,665$    1,569,646,018$    

Total direct rate 0.28023               0.28118               0.28220               0.28474               

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

186



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

1,469,610,878$    1,482,410,204$    1,522,225,014$    1,569,368,492$    1,657,387,265$     1,750,546,835$     
47,818,195            47,606,368            47,274,344            50,519,744            52,244,923            53,659,841            

7,385,414              7,447,664              7,503,723              7,653,776              7,806,831               7,842,250               
156,306                 155,935                 157,109                 542,759                 163,456                  164,198                  

2,436,717              2,430,940              6,669,589              3,943,818              4,105,294               6,618,344               
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

615,272                 613,810                 618,428                 1,647,693              1,680,645               1,688,272               
47,752,008            41,417,109            44,660,373            44,480,022            44,785,823            46,880,985            

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
1,538,550              1,530,912              1,542,439              1,573,286              1,604,751               1,792,372               
6,881,054              6,823,278              6,990,234              6,711,328              6,183,887               6,657,788               

1,584,194,394$    1,590,436,220$    1,637,641,253$    1,686,440,918$    1,775,962,875$     1,875,850,885$     

(3,605,034)             (3,605,034)             (3,605,034)             (3,605,034)             (3,605,138)             (3,605,138)             

1,580,589,360$    1,586,831,186$    1,634,036,219$    1,682,835,884$    1,772,357,737$     1,872,245,747$     

0.28501               0.28519               0.28433               0.28214               0.22284               0.22310               

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

187



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Property Tax Rates
Direct and Overlapping Governments
(Rate per $100 of Taxable Value)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Agency 2006 2007 2008 2009

Basic Levy 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000
Arcadia Unified 0.02746 0.02831 0.08086 0.07911
County Detention Facilities 1987 Debt 0.00080 0.00066 0.00000 0.00000
La County Flood Control 0.00005 0.00005 0.00000 0.00000
Pasadena Community College Dist 0.00410 0.02080 0.01972 0.01742
Pasadena Unified School Dist 0.10991 0.11717 0.05491 0.06375
San Gabriel Vly Mwd State Water Bond 0.02000 0.02000 0.02000 0.01800
Sierra Madre Lighting 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902

Total Direct & Overlapping² Tax Rates 1.47134 1.49601 1.48451 1.48730

City's Share of 1% Levy Per Prop 13³ 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911

Voter Approved City Debt Rate -                          -                          -                          -                          

Redevelopment Rate⁴ 1.02084 1.02072 1.02000 1.01800

Total Direct Rate⁵ 0.28023 0.28118 0.28220 0.28474

Data Source:  HDL Coren & Cone, L.A. County Assessor combined 2014/15 Lien Data Tax Rolls

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

188



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000
0.07561 0.07456 0.07691 0.07670 0.07550 0.07653
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
0.02300 0.01986 0.01956 0.02056 0.01899 0.01032
0.10836 0.10195 0.11120 0.11403 0.10351 0.10601
0.01800 0.01800 0.01800 0.01800 0.01800 0.01800
0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902 0.30902

1.53399 1.52339 1.53469 1.53831 1.52502 1.51988

0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911 0.21911

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

1.01800 1.01800 1.01800 -                          -                          -                          

0.28501 0.28519 0.28433 0.28214 0.22284 0.22310

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

189



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Taxpayer
Taxable Assesed 

Value

% of Net 
Assesed 

Value Rank
Taxable Assesed 

Value

% of Net 
Assesed 

Value Rank

One Carter Llc $6,269,910 0.51% 1 $11,240,352 0.60% 2
Barbera Family Lp $4,417,658 0.36% 2 $5,033,858 0.27% 5
Century-Tci California Lp $3,244,247 0.26% 3
Maranatha High School $3,118,572 0.25% 4
Zhang Hongmei $2,700,000 0.22% 5
Jeffrey M. And Kimberly 
Stokes $2,525,000 0.20% 6
Renaissance Plaza Llc $2,382,202 0.19% 7
Ivan V. And Barbara R. 
Oviedo $2,329,336 0.19% 8

San Gabriel Properties Llc $2,009,323 0.16% 9
Sierra Madre Land Co Llc $2,000,000 0.16% 10
Cett Madre Limited $12,136,675 0.65% 1
Ginkgo Stonehouse Ii Llc $8,723,239 0.47% 3

City Of Sierra Madre Lessor $6,987,610 0.37% 4
William L Sullivan Family 
Trust $4,904,309 0.26% 6
Jason And Heather Young $3,775,000 0.20% 7
Kensington Sm Gp Llc $3,716,796 0.20% 8
Mb Equity Llc $3,619,091 0.19% 9
Marie A Sullivan Trust $3,568,880 0.19% 10

Top Ten Total $30,996,248 2.51% $63,705,810 3.40%

City Total $1,234,769,644 $1,875,850,885

Data Source:  HDL Coren & Cone, L.A. County Assessor combined 2014/15 Lien Data Tax Rolls

2006 2015

190



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Direct & Overlapping Debt 
As of June 30,2015

Direct Debt

Gross 
Bonded 
Debt 
Balance

Percent 
Applicabel 
to City

Net Bonded 
Debt

REF BOND SERIES 1998A 1,730,000 100.000  $   1,730,000 
CAPITAL LEASE1 459,574 100.000 459,574
CAPITAL LEASE2 221,775 100.000 221,775
COMPENSATED ABSENCES1 606,413 100.000 606,413
COMPENSATED ABSENCES2 108,876 100.000 108,876
LOAN PAYABLE TO SGV MUNI 
WATER DIST

874,126 100.000 874,126
WATER REF REF BONDS SERIES 
1998A

1,840,000 100.000 1,840,000
WATER REV PARITY BONDS 
SERIES 2003

6,750,000 100.000 6,750,000

Total Direct Debt 12,590,764

Overlapping Debt
PASADENA CCD DS 2006 SERIES 
B

25,385,000 2.668 677,192
PASADENA CCD DS 2002, 2006 
SERIES D

24,160,000 2.668 644,513
PASADENA CCD 2002, 2009 
SERIES E (BABS)

25,295,000 2.668 674,791
PASADENA CCD DS 2014 REF 
SERIES A

16,780,000 2.668 447,638
ARCADIA UNIFIED DS 1993 
SERIES A

3,107,113 0.341 10,610
ARCADIA UNIFIED DS 1993 
SERIES C

856,360 0.341 2,924
ARCADIA UNIFIED DS REF. 
BONDS 1993 2005 SERIES A

2,400,000 0.341 8,196
ARCADIA UNIFIED DS 2006 
SERIES A

157,065,423 0.341 536,360
ARCADIA UNIFIED DS 2006 
SERIES B

27,000,000 0.341 92,202
PASADENA USD DS 2004 REF 
BONDS

36,660 5.509 771,538
PASADENA USD DS 2005 REF 
BONDS

4,585,000 5.509 252,588
PASADENA USD DS 2008 SERIES 
2009

21,890,000 5.509 1,205,924
PASADENA USD DS 2008 SERIES 
2009A 2 BABS

84,680,000 5.509 4,665,036
PASADENA USD DS 2008 SERIES 
2012

112,770,000 5.509 6,212,518
PASADENA USD DS 2014 REF 
BONDS SERIES A

5,875,000 5.509 323,655
PASADENA USD DS 2014 REF 
BONDS SERIES B

92,750,000 5.509 5,109,613

Total Overlapping Debt 21,635,298

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt  $ 34,226,062 

2014/15 Assessed Valuation: $1,719,014,890 After Deducting $156,835,995 Incremental Value.

Debt To Assessed Valuation Ratios: 

Direct Debt 0.73%
Overlapping Debt 1.26%
Total Debt 1.99%

Data Source:  HDL Coren & Cone, L.A. County Assessor combined 2014/15 Lien Data Tax Rolls

256.01

256.01

817.55
817.57

256.01

256.01

256.01
256.01

812.51

909.60
909.59

909.57

256.01
256.01

817.53
817.54

812.55
817.51

812.53
812.54

909.56

909.58

909.54
909.55

191



Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30,

Master Lease 
Equipment 
Financing

General 
Obligation Bonds

Tax Increment 
Bonds (1) Total

2007 103,685$             -$                     3,965,000$         4,068,685$         
2008 69,123                 -                        3,760,000            3,829,123            
2009 34,562                 -                        3,545,000            3,579,562            
2010 1,224,674            -                        3,320,000            4,544,674            
2011 759,254               -                        2,840,000            3,599,254            
2012 689,341               -                        -                        689,341               
2013 616,191               -                        -                        616,191               
2014 539,654               -                        -                        539,654               
2015 459,574               -                        -                        459,574               

The City has elected to show only nine years of data for this schedule.

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Governmental Activities

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements.

(1) Due to the dissolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency, the Tax Allocation Bonds were 
transferred to the Successor Agency in 2012.

192



Master Lease 
Equipment 
Financing

Revenue Parity 
Bonds Loans Total

Total Primary 
Government

-$                     11,630,000$       1,456,875$         13,086,875$       17,155,560$       
-                        11,350,000         1,456,875            12,806,875         16,635,998         
-                        11,060,000         1,456,875            12,516,875         16,096,437         

433,040               10,760,000         1,456,875            12,649,915         17,194,589         
366,391               10,105,000         1,456,875            11,928,266         15,527,520         
332,653               9,755,000            1,311,188            11,398,841         12,088,182         
297,353               9,385,000            1,165,500            10,847,853         11,464,044         
260,419               8,995,000            1,019,812            10,275,231         10,814,885         
221,775               8,590,000            874,126               9,685,901            10,145,475         

   
     

Business-type Activities

193



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Pledged Revenue Coverage

Governmental Activities

Debt Service
Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, Tax Increment (1) Principal Interest Coverage

2006 916,217$                195,000$          200,131$          2.32                       
2007 945,446                  205,000             191,129             2.39                       
2008 1,109,761               215,000             181,520             2.80                       

2009 (2) 1,128,402               225,000             171,288             2.85                       
2010 (3) 697,666                  235,000             160,125             1.77                       
2011 (4) 1,174,727               245,000             148,125             2.99                       
2012 (5) 1,249,669               255,000             156,042             3.04                       
2013 (6) 555,072                  270,000             120,187             1.42                       
2014 (6) 505,387 300,000 106,188 1.24                       
2015 (6) 738,195 300,000 94,000 1.87                       

(1)  Tax increment figures are net of related pass-through payments.
(2)  Tax increment figures are net of related pass-through payments,  beginning in 2008-2009,

 the City began paying AB1389 pass through payments.
(3)  Tax increment figures are net of related pass-through payments, including AB1389 and 

State SERAF of $542,513.
(4)  Tax increment figures are net of related pass-through payments, including AB1389 and

 State SERAF of $161,861.
(5)  Due to the dissolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency, the Tax Allocation 

Bonds were transferred to the Successor Agency. This funding represents both the 
Private Purpose Trust Fund and former Special Revenue Fund.

(6)  Due to the dissolution of the Community Redevelopment Agency, the Tax Allocation 
Bonds were transferred to the Successor Agency. This funding represents the Private
Purpose Trust Fund.

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

194



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Pledged Revenue Coverage

Business-type Activities - Water Fund

Debt Service

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 

Operating 
Revenues

Operation and 
Maintenance 

Costs Net Revenues Principal Interest Coverage

2006 3,054,798$  1,782,573$           1,272,225$       270,000$  580,757$  1.50                
2007 4,727,750    2,508,870             2,218,880         280,000    693,759    2.28                
2008 5,031,771    5,828,036             (796,265)           290,000    556,042    (0.94)              
2009 3,037,500    2,596,025             441,475            300,000    541,878    0.52                
2010 * 2,920,048    1,564,470             1,355,578         320,000    531,845    1.59                
2011 * 3,155,645    1,523,156             1,632,489         335,000    515,470    1.92                
2012 * 3,038,056    1,907,143             1,130,913         350,000    498,345    1.33                
2013 * 3,558,161    2,084,614             1,473,547         370,000    480,345    1.73                
2014 * 3,834,017    1,606,098             2,227,919 390,000 461,345 2.62                
2015 4,373,849    2,574,322             1,799,527 405,000 441,470 2.13                

* The City has recalculated coverage based on rate covenant definitions per official statements for FY 2010-2014.

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements.

195



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Demographic and Economic Statistices

Calendar 
Year Population

Personal 
Income (In 
Thousands)

Per Capita 
Personal 
Income

Unemployment 
Rate

Median 
Age

% of  Pop 25+ 
with High 

School Degree

% of  Pop 
25+ with 

High 

2005 11,068 $521,226 $47,093 1.6%
2006 10,969 $550,606 $50,197 1.4%
2007 10,934 $571,401 $52,259 1.5%
2008 11,034 $581,887 $52,736 2.2%
2009 11,042 $565,812 $51,242 3.5% 45.7 96.0% 54.0%
2010 11,099 $580,056 $52,262 3.9% 45.7 97.5% 58.4%
2011 10,963 $558,203 $50,917 3.8% 46.4 96.6% 57.5%
2012 11,023 $568,214 $51,548 2.8% 48.2 96.5% 57.4%
2013 11,094 $531,369 $47,897 2.3% 48 96.4% 57.1%
2014 11,098 $545,034 $49,111 5.5% 47.3 96.8% 59.1%

Data Source:  HDL Coren & Cone, California State Department of Finance, California  EDD, US Census

196



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Top 25 Sales Tax Producers
For Fiscal Yeaar Ended June 30, 2015

Business Name Business Category

Ad Security Specialty Stores
Arnolds Frontier Hardware Hardware Stores
Bean Town Quick-Service Restaurants
Best Buy Chemical & Supply Co Non-Store Retailers
Bottle Shop Liquor Stores
Buccaneer Lounge Casual Dining
Casa Del Rey Casual Dining
Corfu Restaurant Casual Dining
Happys Liquor Liquor Stores
Leonora Moss Florist Shops
Lingo Industrial Electronics Heavy Industrial
Lucky Baldwins Delirium Cafe Casual Dining
Moes Automotive Service Center Auto Repair Shops
Only Place in Town Casual Dining
Peppertree Grill Casual Dining
Sierra Briganti Casual Dining
Sierra Madre Pizza Co Quick-Service Restaurants
Sierra Madre Service Station Service Stations
Sierra Madre Valero Service Stations
Starbucks Quick-Service Restaurants
Taco Fiesta Quick-Service Restaurants
Talianko Design Group Llc Specialty Stores
Ugos Bakery Deli Cafe Casual Dining
Village Pizzeria Fast-Casual Restaurants
Wistaria Restaurant & Bar Casual Dining

Data Source:  HDL Coren & Cone, L.A. County Assessor combined 2014/15 Lien Data Tax Rolls

197



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

General Government 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 9

Public Safety
Police

Officers 17 17 17 17 18 18 18 16 17 16
Civilians 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4

Fire
Full-Time 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4

Public Works 20 20 21 21 20 20 20 19 17.5 18

Development 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3.5 4

Library and Recreation 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 9 8 6

Total 67 67 68 68 68 68 68 64 63 61

Employees as of June 30,

198



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Operating Indicators by Function

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Police
Number of:

Physical Arrests 252 580 417 370 467 129 328 399 345            327            
Parking Violations 1,625 2,931 3,283 3,516 2,812 2,495 2,031 3,266 2,976         2,764         
Traffic Violations 1,255 1,039 1,339 1,574 1,740 1,989 1,798 1,435 1,967         571            

Fire
Number of:

Calls Answered 688 816 851 818 885 940 967 947 863            970            
Inspections 1,406 1,662 53 2,040 1,964 1,970 2,002 1,943 2,000         1,739         

Public Works
Number of:

Water Mains Repaired n/a 20 18 18 25 24 45 30 25               58               
Water service leaks repaired n/a 19 15 25 28 13 19 19 8                 7                 
Street resurfacing/repair (SF) n/a 0 0 0 331,235 0 0 0 69,000       284,790    
Sidewalk Repairs (SF) n/a 1,250 1,625 1,050 1,950 4,755 3,207 12,000 4,096         4,605         
Trees planted 29 0 47 6 34 28 14 8 63               -             
Trees pruned 706 274 470 444 171 24 20 537 514            37               
Trees removed 10 23 12 18 18 37 50 20 30               62               
Sewer cleaned/inspected (LF) 90,000 90,000 186,055 186,055 186,055 155,761 151,659 102,720 143,711    167,168    
Sewer Manhole inspected (each) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 346 171 104            676            
Sewer lines inspected (LF) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 500 200 330            1,064         
Meters replaced 152 105 111 463 624 479 398 138 129            168            
Valves exercised 450 137 350 234 257 829 583 299 406            284            
Pot holes repaired n/a 78 66 106 106 87 14 100 188            380            
Water Mains Replaced (LF) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 150 4,165 n/a n/a 2,870         

Recreation and Community Services
Number of participants:

Recreation classes n/a 1,476 1,518 1,419 1,008 1,658 1,382 2,510 1,730         731            
Aquatic (1) n/a 2,348 3,665 3,398 3,720 3,584 3,146 n/a n/a n/a
Summer pool memberships n/a 13 7 22 22 10 16 n/a n/a n/a
Annual Events (2) n/a 729 671 738 708 758 789
  Movie Series n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,100 1,050         1,400         
  Concert Series n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,600 4,550         4,835         
  Summer Fun in the Park n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 274 320            293            
  Huck Finn (campsites) n/a 34 34 28 37 41 43 40 60               63               
  Oktoberfest n/a 64 57 59 55 73 70 57 n/a n/a
  Mt. Wilson Trail Race n/a 355 335 335 328 319 323 328 350            325            
  Window Painting n/a 74 72 130 119 163 163 89 n/a n/a
  Halloween Happenings n/a 154 131 133 149 153 153 112 n/a 150            
  Whale Watching n/a 48 42 53 20 47 37 45 25               n/a

(1) Aquatics contracted out beginning FY 2012-2013
(2) Annual events divided into new categories beginning FY 2012-2013

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

199



CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Operating Indicators by Function, (continued)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Library
Number of:

Registered borrowers 13,308      13,968      10,942      10,970      11,162      11,292      11,994      13,044      11,366       10,530       
Circulation 101,461    81,879      90,985      101,513    107,535    111,384    105,121    86,829      79,673       85,779       
Reference 6,947        7,208        5,823        5,707        6,682        7,781        6,705        5,663        5,795         6,548         
Book volumes held 61,150      61,515      59,037      59,540      58,956      56,415      55,845      51,681      54,663       56,891       
User’s of E-Resources 14,155      15,226      14,104      12,762      14,288      13,962      13,312      13,844      14,173       14,798       
Media 4,486        4,688        4,982        4,940        5,381        5,301        5,323        5,512        5,993         6,307         
Periodicals 106           115           115           108           119           115           115           109           95              98              

Municipal Utilities
Number of:

Number of Customers
Commercial n/a 105           106           110           111           110           111           112           70              n/a *
Multi-Unit n/a 353           353           351           356           354           356           353           212            n/a *
City n/a 75             75             75             75             75             75             63             40              n/a *
Residential n/a 3,136        3,184        3,198        3,312        3,284        3,255        3,280        3,424         3,550         
Non-Residential n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 204            *

Water Consumption in Units (000's) 947           1,051        1,146        956           1,010 1,086 1,212 1,232 1325 821

Administrative Services
Number of:

Number of Customers
Online Bill Pay (average) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 155           131           156            211            
Business Licenses Issued n/a 1,180        1,200        1,266        1,275        1,288        1,232        1,360        2,358         1,374         

Development Services
Number of:

Conditional Use Permit 18             5               2               7               5               13             5               5 37
Minor Conditional Use Permit 6               8               5               5               3               2               5               10              7                
Variance 4               7               4               4               2               4               1               -             1                
Minor Variance 8               3               5               5               -            -            3               1                1                
Municipal Code Text Amendment 5               4               1               1               3               2               3               1                6                
Building Permit 302           242           245           125           242           304           278           249            231            
Electrical Permit 187           123           132           86             57             81             165           208            159            
Mechanical Permit 111           188           75             22             36             38             110           130            129            
Plumbing Permit 184           133           104           45             49             59             161           166            215            
Sewer 18             8               9               2               6               13             25             26              3                

* Account Class categories changed as of March 2014 in line with the Water Rate Study.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

200



This page intentionally left blank.

201



2007 2008 2009
Roadways

Pavement AC (Governmental Funds-ISF Facilities) 22,116,904$          17,056,270$          16,209,394$          
Street Appurtenances

Bridges (Governmental Funds-ISF Facilities) 276,685                  86,464                     79,547                     
Parks

Park Structures (Governmental Funds-ISF Facilities) 534,527                  184,980                  183,792                  

Trees (Governmental Funds-ISF Facilities) 1,070,400               1,206,214               1,206,214               
Wastewater 

Manholes (Sewer) 1,649,811               893,647                  866,151                  
Sewer Pipelines (Sewer) 5,848,948               3,168,180               3,070,698               

Domestic Water Network
Spreading Basins (Water) 1,959,726               1,356,188               1,257,907               
Pump Stations (Water) 1,308,070               1,756,896               1,702,838               
Meters (Water) 857,703                  71,475                     42,885                     
Pipelines (Water) 9,127,009               4,107,154               3,924,614               
Pressure Reducing Stations (Water) 649,490                  381,575                  365,338                  
Fire Hydrants (Water) 500,453                  225,204                  215,195                  
Wells (Water) 2,010,791               904,856                  864,640                  
Reservoirs (Water) 7,032,861               12,824,440             14,539,434             

Buildings All
Buildings (Water Fund) 410,645                  201,216                  176,577                  
Buildings (Sewer Fund) 410,645                  201,216                  176,577                  
Buildings (Government-ISF Facilities) 11,782,716             7,822,061               7,273,863               

Land All
Land (Water Fund) 1,483,250               1,483,250               1,483,250               
Land (Government-ISF Facilities) 162,275,945          162,275,945          162,275,945          

General Equipment All
Vehicle & Equipment (Water Fund) 418,332                  55,804                     39,215                     
Vehicle & Equipment (Sewer Fund) 237,656                  19,203                     18,522                     
Vehicle & Equipment (Government-GASB34 only)
Vehicle & Equipment (Government-ISF Fleet) 1,926,882               340,274                  520,740                  
Accounting Software (Governmental-ISF Administration)

Total 233,889,449$        216,622,513$        216,493,335$        

The City has elected to show only nine years of data for this schedule. 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
Fixed Assets - Current Value

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

202



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

15,364,491$          14,523,998$          13,686,599$          12,858,351$          12,041,539$      11,331,409$      

72,630                     65,713                     58,796                     51,878                     44,961                 38,044                 

172,614                  164,767                  156,919                  149,072                  141,224              133,376              
73,317                     167,586                  162,738                  155,976              155,976              

1,206,214               1,206,214               1,206,214               1,206,214               1,206,214           1,206,214           

838,654                  811,157                  783,660                  756,163                  728,666              701,169              
2,973,215               2,875,733               2,778,250               2,680,768               2,583,285           2,993,188           

1,225,146               1,192,386               1,159,626               1,126,865               1,094,105           1,061,345           
1,648,780               1,594,721               1,540,663               1,486,605               1,432,546           1,378,488           

14,295                     -                           -                           -                           -                       -                       
3,742,074               3,559,533               3,376,993               3,511,413               3,587,725           3,731,255           

349,101                  332,864                  316,626                  300,389                  284,152              267,915              
205,186                  195,177                  185,168                  175,159                  165,149              155,140              
824,424                  784,209                  743,993                  703,777                  663,561              623,345              

14,399,392             14,195,770             13,992,147             13,788,524             13,584,901         13,381,279         

168,365                  160,152                  151,939                  143,726                  135,513              127,300              
168,365                  160,152                  151,939                  143,726                  135,513              127,300              

7,050,994               6,825,034               6,599,074               6,373,114               6,147,154           5,733,392           

1,483,250               1,483,250               1,483,250               1,483,250               1,483,250           1,483,250           
162,275,945          162,275,945          162,275,946          162,275,946          162,275,946      162,275,945      

27,081                     20,780                     14,820                     10,360                     24,555                 30,890                 
3,841                       404,918                  404,918                  341,205                  336,248              292,587              

270,108                  794,752                  740,834                  686,766                  641,723              541,302              
1,021,846               980,860                  881,965                  784,751                  704,962              591,833              

369,848                  484,029                  459,827                  411,425                  363,022              314,619              
215,875,857$        215,165,429$        213,317,751$        211,612,185$        209,961,890$    208,676,561$    

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

203



This page intentionally left blank.

204



735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite I 00 

San Bernardino, CA 92408 

909 889 087 I T 

909 889 5361 F 

ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L. Odle, CPA MST 

Terry P. Shea, CPA 

Kirk A Franks, CPA 

Scott W. Manno, CPA CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag, CPA MST, CGMA 

Jay H . Zercher, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

Phillip H. Waller, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

DIRECTORS 

Bradferd A Welebir, CPA, MBA 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Jenny Liu. CPA MST 

Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA MBA 

Charles De Simoni, CPA 

Nathan Statham, CPA MBA 

Brigitta Bartha. CPA 

Gardenya Duran, CPA 
Juan Romero, CPA 
Ivan Gonzales, CPA, MSA 
Brianna Pascoe, CPA 
Daniel Hernandez. CPA MBA 
Ryan Smith, CPA 

MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Alliance 
far CPA Firms 

Governmental Audit 
Quality Center 

California Society of 
Certified Public Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SINCE 1948 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Sierra Madre, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Sierra Madre (the City), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated February 12, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opin ion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST 



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section  and was  not  designed  to  identify  all  deficiencies  in  internal  control  that might  be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies  in  internal  control  that  we  consider  to  be  material  weaknesses.  However,  material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material  misstatement,  we  performed  tests  of  its  compliance  with  certain  provisions  of  laws, 
regulations,  contracts,  and  grant  agreements,  noncompliance  with  which  could  have  a  direct  and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The  purpose  of  this  report  is  solely  to  describe  the  scope  of  our  testing  of  internal  control  and 
compliance and  the  results of  that  testing, and not  to provide an opinion on  the effectiveness of  the 
entity’s  internal  control  or  on  compliance.  This  report  is  an  integral  part  of  an  audit  performed  in 
accordance  with  Government  Auditing  Standards  in  considering  the  entity’s  internal  control  and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
San Bernardino, CA 
February 12, 2016 



735 E. Carnegie Dr. Suite I 00 

San Bernardino . CA 92408 

909 889 087 I T 

909 889 5361 F 

ramscpa. net 

PARTNERS 

Brenda L. Odle, CPA. MST 

Terry P. Shea. CPA 

Kirk A. Franks, CPA 

Scott W. Manno, CPA. CGMA 

Leena Shanbhag. CPA, MST, CGMA 

Jay H. Zercher, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

Phillip H. Waller, CPA (Partner Emeritus) 

DIRECTORS 

Bradferd A. Welebir, CPA. MBA 

MANAGERS I STAFF 

Jenny Liu. CPA. MST 

Seong-Hyea Lee, CPA. MBA 

Charles De Simoni, CPA 

Nathan Statham, CPA. MBA 

Brigitta Bartha, CPA 

Gardenya Duran. CPA 
Juan Romero, CPA 
Ivan Gonzales, CPA. MSA 
Brianna Pascoe, CPA 
Daniel Hernandez. CPA. MBA 
Ryan Smith, CPA 

MEMBERS 
American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants 

PCPS The A/CPA Alliance 
for CPA Firms 

Governmental Audit 
Quality Center 

California Society of 
Certified Public Accountants 

ROGERS, ANDERSON , MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIFI ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, SIN CE 1948 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Sierra Madre 

February 12, 2016 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of City of Sierra Madre (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 1, 2015. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting 
policies. The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 
1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, 
the City changed accounting policies related to pensions by adopting 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements (GASBS) No. 68 and 71, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An Amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 68, respectively, in fiscal year 2015. Accordingly, the 
cumulative effect of the accounting change as of the beginning of the year is 
reported in the financial statements as needed. We noted no transactions entered 
into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance 
or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about 
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may 
differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the 
City's financial statements were: 

Management's estimate of the fair value of investments is based 
on information provided by financial institutions. We evaluated the 
key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of 
investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

STABILITY. ACCURACY. TRUST. 



Honorable City Council          February 12, 2016 
City of Sierra Madre               Page 2 
 
 

Management’s estimate of capital asset depreciation is based on historical estimates of 
each capitalized item’s useful life. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the estimated useful lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole 
 
Management’s estimate of the liability for other post-employment benefits is based on 
actuarial reports provided by independent actuaries. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to 
the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related actuarial deferred inflows 
and outflows are based on actuarial reports provided by independent actuaries. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining 
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 
 

The disclosure of fair value of investments in the notes to the basic financial statements 
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations. 
 
The disclosure of accumulated depreciation in the notes to the basic financial statements 
is based on estimated useful lives which could differ from actual useful lives of each 
capitalized item. 
 
The disclosure of net pension liability and related actuarial deferred inflows and outflows in 
the notes to the basic financial statements is based on actuarial assumptions. Actual future 
liabilities and actuarial deferred inflows and outflows may vary from disclosed estimates. 
 
The disclosure of the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) in the notes to the basic 
financial statements identifies the annual OPEB cost and the funded status of the actuarial 
accrued liability. The information disclosed is based on actuarial assumptions which could 
differ from actual costs. 
 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements 
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or 
in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.  
 



Honorable City Council          February 12, 2016 
City of Sierra Madre               Page 3 
 
 

 

Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or 
the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated February 12, 2016. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were 
not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, certain budgetary 
comparison schedules, the OPEB Schedule of Funding Progress, the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate 
Share of the Plans’ Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios as of the Measurement Date, and the Schedule 
of Plans’ Contributions which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the 
budgetary comparison schedules, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect 
to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, 
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has 
not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit 
of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 



Honorable City Council          February 12, 2016 
City of Sierra Madre               Page 4 
 
 

 

We were not engaged to report on introductory and statistical sections, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Honorable City Council and management of the City 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 


















































	City Council Meeting Agenda 02-23-2016
	Unapproved City Council Meeting Minutes 2-9-2016
	1a - Approving Certain Demands
	1b - CENIC Agreement for Broadband
	1c - Exchange of STP-I Federal Funds
	1d- General Services Agreement with L A County
	2 - CAFR for FY 2014-2015
	CAFR Agenda Report
	Final CAFR FY 2014-2015
	Index -MD&A Section
	Blank
	Index -Notes to Financial Statements Section
	Blank
	Index -RSI Section
	CAFR - Required Supplementary Info
	CAFR - GF Budget v Actual Schedules
	RSI-GF 10000

	Index -Supplemental Information Section
	CAFR - Non-Major Governmental Funds
	Nonmajor BS
	Nonmajor IS
	Nonmajor SR IS
	Nonmajor SR Grants BS
	Nonmajor SR Grants IS
	Nonmajor SR Assessmts BS
	Nonmajor SR Assessmts IS
	Nonmajor SR Other BS
	Nonmajor SR Other IS
	Nonmajor CP BS
	Nonmajor CP IS

	CAFR - Budget v Actual Schedules
	32001
	32002
	32003
	32005
	32006
	32007
	32008
	32009
	32010
	32011
	34001
	34002
	34003
	35001
	35003
	35004
	35005
	36001
	36002
	37001
	37004
	37005
	37006
	37007
	37008
	37009
	38001
	38003
	38004
	38005
	38007
	39002
	39006
	39007
	47000

	CAFR - Statements Non-Major Enterprise
	Nonmajor Enterprise BS
	Nonmajor Enterprise IS
	Nonmajor Enterprise CF
	ISF BS
	ISF IS
	ISF CF
	Agency BS
	Agency BS Chgs

	Index -Statistical Section
	CAFR - Budget v Actual Schedules TD.pdf
	29006

	FY1415 CAFR Statistical Section.pdf
	NA by Component
	Changes in NA
	Changes in NA-cont
	FB of Govt Funds
	Changes in FB
	Assessed Value
	Property Tax Rates
	Top Ten Prop Tx Payers
	Direct & Overlapping Debt
	Ratios of OS Debt
	Pledged Rev
	Pledged Rev (cont)
	Demographic
	Top 25 Sales Tax Producers
	FT EE by Function
	Blank 
	Op Indicators by Func
	Op Indicators by Func (cont)
	Fixed Assets
	Blank  (2)

	CAFR - Basic Financial Stmts.pdf
	Gov Wide BS
	Gov Wide IS
	Govt Major BS
	Reconciliation BS
	Govt Major IS
	Reconciliation IS
	Proprietary BS
	Proprietary IS
	Proprietary CF
	Fiduciary BS
	Fiduciary IS

	CAFR - Non Major BS.pdf
	Nonmajor SR BS

	CAFR - Basic Recon to Statement of Activities.pdf
	Reconciliation IS


	Report on Internal Control
	SAS 114 Post Audit Letter

	3 - Temporary Supplemental Police Services
	4 - Consolidated Election Discussion for Stop UUT Measure



